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 PART I

 ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General
CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc. (“CorEnergy”) was organized as a Maryland corporation and commenced operations on December 8, 2005. Prior to December 3, 2012 our
name was Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation. As used in this report, the terms “we”, “us”, “our” and the “Company” refer to CorEnergy and its subsidiaries.

Our business objective is to provide shareholders with an attractive risk-adjusted return, with an emphasis on distributions and distribution growth. We invest primarily in the
U.S energy infrastructure sector. We believe the U.S. energy infrastructure offers significant opportunities for investment. We intend to pursue attractive opportunities to
provide lease-based financing to energy infrastructure companies in connection with real property assets. We believe that we can acquire these assets while also satisfying the
requirements for qualification as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”), and that becoming qualified and electing REIT status is in the best interests of our stockholders.

We are externally managed by Corridor InfraTrust Management, LLC (“Corridor”), an affiliate of Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C. (“TCA”). TCA is a registered investment
adviser with approximately $10.4 billion of assets under management in the U.S. energy infrastructure sector and 49 employees as of January 31, 2013. Corridor is an asset
manager with a focus on U.S. energy infrastructure real property assets and will have access to certain resources of TCA while acting as our manager. We historically operated
as a business development company under the name Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation and invested primarily in securities of privately held and micro-cap public
companies operating in the U.S. energy sector. In April 2011, in connection with our strategic decision to become a REIT and focus on the acquisition of real property assets in
the energy infrastructure sector, our stockholders authorized withdrawal of our election to be treated as a business development company. We do not plan on making additional
investments in securities (other than short-term, highly liquid investments to be held pending acquisition of real property assets) and intend to liquidate our existing securities
portfolio in an orderly manner.

Subsequent to year-end, we completed a follow-on equity offering in which we raised approximately $83 million of net proceeds. We have used the majority of the net proceeds
from the offering and cash on hand, cash from the sale of a portion of our portfolio of publicly traded and liquid master limited partnership securities, and certain other
securities to make a capital contribution to our newly formed acquisition subsidiary. That subsidiary utilized our contributed assets, along with proceeds of a concurrent co-
investment and debt financing, to acquire a system of gathering, storage and pipeline facilities and certain associated real property rights located in the Pinedale Anticline in
Wyoming from a subsidiary of Ultra Petroleum Corp. We entered into a triple-net lease with the subsidiary of Ultra Petroleum Corp. This Acquisition (as defined in the Recent
Developments section below) was our largest acquisition of REIT-qualifying assets to date.

Strategy
We seek to acquire midstream and downstream U.S. energy infrastructure assets and concurrently enter into long-term triple net leases with energy companies. Targeted assets
may include oil, natural gas and refined products gathering systems, pipelines and storage tanks; and electric, transmission and distribution systems, among other energy
infrastructure assets. These sale-leaseback transactions provide the lessee company with a source of capital that is an alternative to other capital sources such as corporate
borrowing, mortgaging real property or equity offerings. We expect our leases to include provisions that enable us to participate in the revenue and/or value of the underlying
infrastructure real property asset. We intend to acquire infrastructure assets that qualify as real property for REIT purposes.

In recent years, the IRS issued several separate private letter rulings that defined certain energy infrastructure assets as real estate assets for tax purposes. The potential
qualifying real estate assets in the energy infrastructure sector include electric transmission and distribution systems; and hydrocarbon gathering systems, storage, terminaling
and distribution systems. We refer to such REIT-qualifying assets herein as “real property assets.” While private letter rulings provide insight into the current thinking of the
IRS on tax issues, such rulings may only be relied upon by the taxpayer to whom they were issued.

On December 20, 2012 we acquired a system of gathering, storage and pipeline facilities, with certain associated real property rights in the Pinedale Anticline in Wyoming. (For
additional detail see the Recent Developments section below.) We anticipate that this acquisition (taking into account our other holdings) will allow us to meet the income and
assets tests necessary to qualify and elect to be taxed as a REIT for 2013.
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During 2013, we will continue to focus on acquiring real property assets that are REIT-qualifying. There are opportunities that are in preliminary stages of review, and
consummation of any of these opportunities depends on a number of factors beyond our control. There can be no assurance that any of these acquisition opportunities will result
in consummated transactions.

If we are able to satisfy the REIT requirements through 2013, we expect to make an election to be treated as a REIT for tax purposes for 2013 by filing a Form 1120-REIT on or
before March 15, 2014, or such later date to which we have properly extended filing such income tax return.

Recent Developments
On December 20, 2012, our subsidiary, Pinedale Corridor, LP (“Pinedale LP”), closed on a Purchase and Sale Agreement with an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Ultra
Petroleum Corp. (NYSE: UPL) (“Ultra Petroleum”). Pinedale LP acquired a system of gathering, storage and pipeline facilities (the “Liquids Gathering System” or “LGS”),
with certain associated real property rights in the Pinedale Anticline in Wyoming (the “Acquisition”) for $205 million in cash and certain investment securities having an
approximate market value of $23.0 million.

Pinedale LP entered into a customized long-term triple net Lease Agreement on December 20, 2012, relating to the use of the LGS (the “Lease Agreement”) with Ultra
Wyoming LGS, LLC, another indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Ultra Petroleum (“Ultra Newco”). Ultra Newco will utilize the LGS to gather and transport a commingled
stream of oil, natural gas and water. At the central storage stations in the LGS, the commingled stream is separated into its separate components. Ultra Newco’s obligations
under the Lease Agreement will be guaranteed by Ultra Petroleum and Ultra Petroleum’s operating subsidiary, Ultra Resources, Inc. (“Ultra Resources”), pursuant to the terms
of a Parent Guaranty (the “Guaranty”). Annual rent for the initial term under the Lease Agreement will be a minimum of $20 million (as adjusted annually for changes based on
the Consumer Price Index (“CPI”)) and a maximum of $27.5 million, with the exact rental amount determined by the actual volume of the components handled by the LGS, and
subject to Pinedale LP not being in default under the Lease Agreement.

On December 18, 2012, we closed a follow on public offering of 13,000,000 shares of common stock, raising approximately $78 million in gross proceeds at $6.00 per share
(net proceeds of approximately $73.6 million after underwriters’ discount). On December 24, 2012 we closed the sale of an additional 1,950,000 shares of common stock at
$6.00 per share, less the same underwriting discount, for total net proceeds of $11.04 million. The additional shares were sold pursuant to an over-allotment option granted to the
underwriters of CorEnergy’s public offering of 13,000,000 shares. Approximately $73.6 million of the net proceeds from this offering were used to finance the Acquisition.

On December 20, 2012, Pinedale LP closed $70 million secured term credit facility with KeyBank National Association (“KeyBank”) serving as a lender and the administrative
agent on behalf of other lenders participating in the credit facility. Outstanding balances under the credit facility will generally accrue interest at a variable annual rate equal to
LIBOR plus 3.25%. The credit facility will remain in effect through December 2015, with an option to extend through December 2016. The credit facility will be secured by the
LGS. On the same date Pinedale LP closed the sale of $30 million of Pinedale LP interests to Ross Avenue Investments, LLC, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Prudential Financial, Inc. (collectively “Prudential”).

We financed the Acquisition with cash, proceeds of the sale of investments, a common stock offering, the secured term credit facility, the co-investment from Prudential, and
certain investment securities. Currently, the LGS accounts for a significant portion of our total assets and the lease payments under the Lease Agreement accounts for a
significant portion of our total revenue. The financial condition of Ultra Newco, Ultra Petroleum and Ultra Resources and the ability and willingness of each to satisfy its
obligations under the Lease Agreement and Guaranty will have a major impact on our results of operation, ability to service our indebtedness and ability to make distributions.
Financial information regarding Ultra Petroleum can be found in our 8-K filed on December 10, 2012.

The Acquisition is our largest acquisition of REIT-qualifying assets to date and will serve as a cornerstone asset for our energy infrastructure real estate asset strategy. We
anticipate that the Acquisition will allow us to meet the income and asset tests necessary for us to qualify and elect to be taxed as a REIT for 2013.

With the completion of the Acquisition, and based on the value of our existing assets as of August 31, 2012, our pro forma income for the nine month period ended August 31,
2012 now satisfy the REIT income tests and at least 75% of our pro forma assets as of August 31, 2012 will qualify under the REIT requirements. We intend to liquidate a
portion of our securities portfolio to allow us to meet both the asset and income tests necessary to qualify for REIT status for 2013.
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In the last week of December 2012, we restructured the manner in which we held certain assets and related liabilities. This restructuring, which was done to best position the
Company to elect to be taxed as a REIT for 2013, included the creation of three new taxable REIT subsidiaries. One of those entities is a wholly-owned corporation that now
owns all of the interests in Mowood, LLC (“Mowood”) that were directly held by us. Another wholly-owned entity was created, both to hold our remaining portfolio of publicly
traded securities and to hold all of the stock of another newly created entity that itself holds our remaining portfolio of illiquid private securities.

Competitive Advantages
We believe that we are well-positioned to meet the capital needs of companies within the U.S. energy infrastructure sector for the following reasons:
 

 

•  Attractive Partner for Energy Infrastructure Companies. We believe that we are a desirable partner for energy infrastructure companies because we have
specialized knowledge of the economic, regulatory, and stakeholder considerations faced by them. We are an attractive capital provider because we do not
intend to compete with the operations of our lessees and are willing to enter into long-term lease and capital arrangements that suit the requirements and
achieve the goals of energy infrastructure companies.

 

 

•  Broad Energy Infrastructure Scope. The universe of assets that may be owned by a REIT has expanded significantly. The Internal Revenue Service has,
through a series of private letter rulings; recently confirmed new types of assets in the energy sector are eligible to be owned by a REIT, including electric
transmission and distribution systems, pipeline systems, and storage and terminaling systems. While only the requesting party may rely on these rulings,
they give insight into the potential for REIT qualifying assets. We also intend to acquire assets that do not generate qualifying income for MLPs, such as
renewables and electric power transmission.

 

 
•  Efficient Capital Provider. If we are able to qualify as a REIT, our stockholders will generally not receive Unrelated Business Taxable Income or

Effectively Connected Income. This offers us access to investors desiring the risk-adjusted return profile that we intend to provide but who are unable to
invest directly in companies owning infrastructure assets, such as private equity funds or MLPs.

 

 

•  Disciplined Investment Philosophy. Our investment approach emphasizes overall asset operational and financial performance with the potential for
enhanced returns through incremental asset growth, capital appreciation, and minimization of downside risk. Our process for selecting investments
involves an assessment of the overall attractiveness of the specific subsector of the energy infrastructure sector in which a prospective tenant company is
involved; such company’s specific competitive position within that subsector; operational asset engineering due diligence; potential commodity price
impact, supply and demand and regulatory concerns; the stability and potential growth of the prospective real property asset’s cash flows; the prospective
operating company’s management track record; and our ability to structure an attractive investment.

 

 

•  Experienced Management Team. The principals of Corridor have an average of over 26 years of experience in energy operations of multi-national electric
and gas utilities and other national energy marketing and trading businesses and in optimizing portfolios for real property energy asset investments.
Based on their real property asset operational experience and strong industry relationships, we believe that the principals of Corridor provide the expertise
and knowledge necessary to acquire real property assets with strong performance standards.

 

 
•  Extensive Relationships. The principals of Corridor maintain relationships with various owners and operators of real property assets in the energy

infrastructure sector. They regularly communicate with these owners and operators to discuss their real property assets and the potential for structuring
financing transactions that would be both beneficial to them and to us.

 

 
•  Manager’s Affiliation with Tortoise Capital Advisors, LLC. Our manager, Corridor, is an affiliate of TCA, a registered investment adviser with

approximately $10.4 billion of assets under management in the U.S. energy infrastructure sector as of January 31, 2013. Corridor has access to certain
resources of TCA while acting as our manager.

Market Opportunity
We believe the environment for acquiring energy infrastructure real property assets is attractive for the following reasons:
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•  Energy infrastructure provides essential services, and the demand for energy resources is expected to grow in the future. We believe energy infrastructure is the

backbone of the U.S. economy. The energy infrastructure sector includes the pipes, wires and storage facilities that connect and deliver some of our most critical
resources: electricity, oil and natural gas.

The demand for energy resources is correlated with population growth and has a low correlation to market cycles. U.S. energy consumption is forecasted to grow by 9%
from 2010 to 2035 according to the U.S. Energy Information Administration’s (“EIA”) Annual Energy Outlook (April 2012). Demand for natural gas continues to increase
as electric power generation companies switch to lower-cost, cleaner burning fuels such as natural gas. Natural gas is the cleanest fossil fuel, with lower carbon dioxide
emissions than coal or oil. In recent years, 80 to 90 percent of the natural gas consumed in the United States is produced domestically.

The U.S. is the third largest producer of crude oil and the second largest producer of natural gas and natural gas liquids in the world. The United States has an abundant
supply of natural gas, enough to last for approximately 150 years, according to the Interstate Natural Gas Association of America Foundation (“INGAA”).

 

 

•  Investment is needed in U.S. energy infrastructure. Due to renewable energy requirements, rapid technological advances in the methods used to extract oil and
natural gas and aging infrastructure, substantial amounts of capital are expected to be invested in energy infrastructure. A 2012 study by INGAA noted that in the
U.S. lower 48 states alone, $200 billion in midstream investments will be required to accommodate the development of natural gas, oil and natural gas liquid
resources from 2012 through 2035.

In 2010, for entities under the jurisdiction of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”), investments in the electric power transmission sector quadrupled
investments in the same sector during the 1990s. According to Edison Electric Institute (“EEI”) data, planned transmission investment by shareholder-owned utilities from
2012 through 2015 will total $11.6 to $15.2 billion. A Brattle Group study based on North America Electric Reliability Corporation (“NERC”) and EEI data, projects
transmission additions of 3,000 to 6,000 miles per year from 2010 through 2015. We believe that the U.S. energy infrastructure sector’s high level of projected capital
expenditures and continued investiture activity provide numerous attractive acquisition opportunities.

 

 

•  There are a number of attractive operating companies with capital needs. We believe that the capital expansion plans of operating companies in the midstream
and downstream segments of the U.S. energy infrastructure sector provide us attractive real property acquisition opportunities. The energy industry is
characterized by assets with high barriers to entry, providing confidence that over an extended lease term an asset is unlikely to lose market share to a newly
constructed asset. In addition, we can offer capital for assets that currently do not generate qualifying income for MLPs, such as renewables and electric power
transmission.

 

 

•  There are a large number of assets in the energy infrastructure sector that are able to be held by a REIT. In recent years, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”)
issued several separate private letter rulings that defined certain energy infrastructure assets as real property assets for tax purposes. The qualifying real property
assets in the energy infrastructure sector include electric transmission and distribution systems, hydrocarbon gathering systems, storage, terminaling and
distribution systems. While private letter rulings provide insight into the current thinking of the IRS on tax issues, such rulings may only be relied upon by the
taxpayer to whom they were issued. We have not obtained any private letter rulings.

Targeted Investment Characteristics
We pursue our business objective by investing principally in the energy infrastructure sector. The energy infrastructure sector broadly includes midstream, downstream and
upstream assets. We intend to focus primarily on midstream and downstream assets as described below.
 

 
•  Midstream – the gathering, processing, storing, terminaling and transporting of energy resources and their byproducts in a form that is usable by wholesale power

generation, utility, petrochemical, industrial and refined products customers, including pipelines, natural gas processing plants, liquefied natural gas facilities and other
energy infrastructure companies.

 

 •  Downstream – the refining of energy sources, and the marketing and distribution of products, such as natural gas, propane and gasoline, to end-user customers; and the
transmission and distribution of electricity from coal, nuclear, natural gas, agricultural, thermal, solar, wind and biomass power generation facilities.
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We anticipate that our targeted real property asset acquisitions will have the following characteristics:
 

 

•  Long-Life Assets with Stable Cash Flows and Limited Commodity Price Sensitivity. We will seek real property assets having the potential to generate stable cash flows
over long periods of time. We have historically invested in companies that own and operate assets with long useful lives and that generate cash flows by providing
critical services primarily to the producers or end-users of energy. We have attempted to limit the direct exposure to energy commodity price risk in our portfolio. We
have targeted companies that have a majority of their cash flows generated by contractual obligations. Our planned acquisitions of real property assets will continue to
reflect these characteristics. Acquired real property assets will have a long useful life. We anticipate our real property assets will generate contracted cash flows with third
party entities over the term of the investment, thus providing stable cash flows underlying our leases.

 

 
•  Experienced Management Teams with Energy Focus. We have targeted assets operated by management teams that have a track record of success and that have

substantial knowledge in particular segments of the energy sector or with certain types of assets. We expect that our management teams’ extensive experience and
network of business relationships in the energy sector will allow us to identify and attract opportunities to acquire real property assets that meet these criteria.

 

 
•  Fixed Asset-Intensive Investments. Most of our investments have been made in companies with a relatively significant base of fixed assets. As we directly acquire

infrastructure real property assets, our portfolio will reflect the nature of fixed-asset investments. Fixed-asset investments characteristically display such attributes as
long-term stability, low volatility, diversification via low correlation and relatively inelastic demand.

 

 •  Limited Technological Risk. We generally do not target acquisition opportunities involving the application of new technologies or significant geological, drilling or
development risk.

 

 
•  Growth Opportunities. We generally will seek to enter into leases that provide base rent and participating rent over the term of the lease. These increases are expected to

be fixed or tied generally to increases in indices such as the CPI. We may also attempt to obtain equity enhancements in connection with transactions. These equity
enhancements may involve warrants exercisable at a future time to purchase stock of the tenant or borrower or their parent.

Assets, Wholly-owned Subsidiary and Private Equity Investments
Pinedale Liquids Gathering System (“Pinedale LGS”), acquired December 20, 2012
Construction of the Pinedale LGS was completed by Ultra Petroleum in 2010 and consists of more than 150 miles of pipelines with 107 receipt points, and four central storage
facilities that are utilized by Ultra Petroleum as a method for the gathering of commingled hydrocarbon stream, then this stream is separated into its components of water,
condensate and natural gas, and subsequently storing, selling or disposing of these separated components. Prior to entering the Pinedale LGS, Ultra Petroleum will separate the
produced stream into wellhead natural gas and the liquids stream. The wellhead natural gas is then transported to market by a third-party. The remaining liquids, primarily
water, are transported by the Pinedale LGS to one of its four central storage facilities where it is separated into components and stored. Condensate is a valuable hydrocarbon
commodity that is sold by Ultra Petroleum; water is transported to disposal wells or a treatment facility for re-use; and natural gas sold by Ultra Petroleum or otherwise used by
Ultra Petroleum for fueling onsite operational equipment. Ultra Petroleum’s non-operating working interest partners in the Pinedale field where the Pinedale LGS is located pay
Ultra Petroleum a fee for the use of Ultra Petroleum’s LGS. As of June 30, 2012, Ultra Petroleum held an approximately 70% average working interest among the land it
operates in the Pinedale field. To date, no major operational issues have been reported with respect to the Pinedale LGS.

Ultra Petroleum was incorporated in 1979 and is an independent oil and gas company engaged in the development, production, operation, exploration and acquisition of oil and
natural gas properties. Ultra Petroleum leases approximately 93,000 gross (53,000 net) acres in and around the Pinedale and Jonah natural gas fields of the Greater Green River
Basin in southwest Wyoming. The most recently available EIA data, dated 2009, indicated that the Pinedale field was among the top five U.S. natural gas plays based on proved
reserves. As of December 31, 2011, Ultra Petroleum held an approximately 50% working interest in approximately 1,700 producing wells in these fields. The Pinedale and
Jonah fields have estimated natural gas reserves of over 48 Tcfe as of December 31, 2011.
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Eastern Interconnect Project (“EIP”)
The EIP project is a 40 percent undivided interest in a 216 mile, 345-KV bulk power transmission line (“Line”) and related equipment and substations including conductors,
towers, easement rights, converters and other grid support components. These transmission assets move electric power across New Mexico between Albuquerque and Clovis.
The project is leased on a triple net basis through April 1, 2015 to Public Service Company of New Mexico (“PNM”). PNM is an independent electric utility company serving
approximately 500,000 customers in New Mexico. PNM is a subsidiary of PNM Resources. EIP is a critical, East-West link on the PNM transmission grid. Construction of the
Line was completed in 1984 and is expected to have at a minimum an additional twenty years of useful life.

On November 1, 2012, we entered into a definitive Asset Purchase Agreement (“Agreement”) with PNM to sell our 40 percent undivided interest in the EIP upon lease
termination on April 1, 2015 for $7.68 million. Per the Agreement, PNM will also accelerate its remaining lease payments to us. Both lease payments due in 2013 were paid to
us upon execution of the definitive Agreement on November 1, 2012. In addition, per the Agreement, PNM paid $100,000 during the fourth quarter to compensate us for legal
costs resulting from its filings with FERC. The three remaining lease payments due April 1, 2014, October 1, 2014 and April 1, 2015 will be paid on January 1, 2014 in full.

The negotiation of the end-of-lease purchase option was prompted in part by a directive from FERC, which directed PNM, in consultation with us, to identify the party that
would provide transmission service over the leased portion of the EIP project beyond the lease expiration in 2015. The Agreement completes the response to FERC’s order.

Mowood, LLC – Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Mowood is the holding company of Omega Pipeline Company, LLC (“Omega”). Omega is a natural gas service provider located primarily on the Fort Leonard Wood military
post in south-central Missouri. Omega has a long term contract with the Department of Defense to provide natural gas and gas distribution services to Fort Leonard Wood
through Omega’s approximately 70 mile pipeline distribution system on the post. In addition, Omega provides natural gas marketing services to several customers in the
surrounding area. We own indirectly 100 percent of the equity interests in Mowood.

VantaCore Partners LP (“VantaCore”)
VantaCore was formed to acquire companies in the aggregate industry and currently owns a quarry and asphalt plant in Clarksville, Tennessee, sand and gravel operations
located near Baton Rouge, Louisiana, a quarry in Todd County, Kentucky and a regional provider of limestone aggregate products to industries in SW Pennsylvania, Northern
West Virginia, Western Maryland and Eastern Ohio. Aggregates consist of crushed stone, sand and gravel, and limestone used in the construction, concrete and the energy
industries. The company also controls several hundred acres of land adjacent to its Clarksville location which recently received zoning approval for a port on the Cumberland
River.

Lightfoot Capital Partners, LP and Lightfoot Capital Partners GP LLC (“Lightfoot”)
Lightfoot owns controlling interest in Arc Terminals (“ARC”), a limited partnership that operates 11 refined product storage terminal located throughout the United States with
a combined working storage capacity of approximately 3.6 million barrels. Arc provides storage and delivery services for petroleum, petrochemical and chemical products to
customers under long-term storage and throughput terminaling contracts. Lightfoot owns a minority position in a liquefied natural gas facility located in Mississippi.

Investment Strategies and Due Diligence
In analyzing potential real property acquisitions, we intend to review all aspects of a transaction, including tenant and asset fundamentals, to determine whether a potential
acquisition and lease can be structured to satisfy our investment criteria. In evaluating net lease transactions, we generally consider, among other things, the following aspects of
each transaction:
 

 

•  Tenant/Borrower Evaluation — We evaluate each potential tenant or borrower for its creditworthiness, typically considering factors such as management experience,
industry position and fundamentals, operating history, and capital structure, as well as other factors that may be relevant to a particular acquisition. We seek
opportunities in which we believe the tenant may have a stable or improving credit profile or credit potential that has not been recognized by the market. In evaluating a
possible investment, the creditworthiness of a tenant or borrower often will be a more significant factor than the value of the underlying real estate, particularly if the
underlying property is specifically suited to the needs of the tenant; however, in certain circumstances where the real estate is attractively valued, the creditworthiness of
the tenant may be a secondary consideration. Whether a prospective tenant or borrower is creditworthy will be determined by our investment department and reviewed
by the investment committee, as described below. Creditworthy does not necessarily mean “investment grade.”
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•  Important to Tenant/Borrower Operations—We generally will focus on properties that we believe are essential or important to the ongoing operations of the tenant. We

believe that this type of property will provide a relatively low risk of loss in the case of a potential bankruptcy or abandonment scenario since a tenant/borrower is less
likely to risk the loss of a critically important lease or property.

 

 
•  Diversification—We attempt to diversify our portfolio to avoid dependence on any one particular tenant, borrower, collateral type, and geographic location within the

U.S. or tenant/borrower industry. By diversifying, we seek to reduce the adverse effect of a single under-performing investment or a downturn in any particular asset or
geographic region within the U.S.

 

 

•  Lease Terms—Generally, the net leased properties we will acquire will be leased on a full recourse basis to the tenants or their affiliates. In addition, we generally will
seek to include a clause in each lease that provides for increases in rent over the term of the lease. These increases are fixed or tied generally to increases in indices such
as the CPI. The lease will also generally seek to provide for participation in gross revenues of the tenant at the property, thereby providing exposure to the commercial
activity of the tenant, and providing the tenant some flexibility in lease terms. Alternatively, a lease may provide for mandated rental increases on specific dates, and we
may adopt other methods in the future.

 

 

•  Collateral Evaluation—We review the physical condition of the property and assess the likelihood of replacing the rental payment stream if the tenant defaults. We also
generally engage a third party to conduct, or require the seller to conduct a preliminary examination, or Phase 1 assessment, of the site to determine the potential for
contamination or similar environmental site assessments in an attempt to identify potential environmental liabilities associated with a property prior to its acquisition. If
potential environmental liabilities are identified, we generally require that identified environmental issues be resolved by the seller prior to property acquisition or, where
such issues cannot be resolved prior to acquisition, require tenants contractually to assume responsibility for resolving identified environmental issues post-closing and
provide indemnification protections against any potential claims, losses or expenses arising from such matters. We generally rely on our own analysis to determine
whether to make an acquisition. Our analysis may take into consideration, among other things, the terms and conditions of the particular lease transaction, the quality of
the lessee’s credit and the conditions of the credit markets at the time the lease transaction is negotiated. The value may be greater than the construction cost or the
replacement cost of a property, and the actual sale price of a property if sold may be greater or less than the acquisition cost. In cases of special purpose real estate which
we expect to acquire, a property is examined in light of the prospects for the tenant/borrower’s enterprise and the financial strength and the role of that asset in the context
of the tenant’s overall viability. Operating results of properties and other collateral may be examined to determine whether or not projected income levels are likely to be
met.

 

 

•  Transaction Provisions to Enhance and Protect Value—We attempt to include provisions in the leases that we believe may help protect a real property asset from
changes in the operating and financial characteristics of a tenant that may affect its ability to satisfy its obligations or reduce the value of the real property asset. Such
provisions include requiring our consent to specified tenant activity, requiring the tenant to provide indemnification protections, and requiring the tenant to satisfy
specific operating tests. We may also seek to enhance the likelihood of a tenant’s lease obligations being satisfied through a guaranty of obligations from the tenant’s
corporate parent or other entity or a letter of credit. This credit enhancement, if obtained, provides additional financial security. However, in markets where competition
for net lease transactions is strong, some or all of these provisions may be replaced by other measures of credit quality such as tenant investment in leasehold
improvements and commercial enterprise value of the tenant business conducted in the property.

In addition, in some circumstances, tenants may retain the right to repurchase the leased property. We expect, in those situations that the option purchase price will generally be
the greater of the contract purchase price or the fair market value of the property at the time the option is exercised.
 

 
•  Equity Enhancements—We may attempt to obtain equity enhancements in connection with transactions. These equity enhancements may involve warrants exercisable at

a future time to purchase stock of the tenant or borrower or their parent. If warrants are obtained, and become exercisable, and if the value of the stock subsequently
exceeds the exercise price of the warrant, equity enhancements can help achieve the goal of increasing investor returns.

 

 •  Other Real Estate Related Assets—As other opportunities arise, we may also seek to expand the portfolio to include other types of real estate-related investments, in all
cases within the energy infrastructure sector, such as:

 

 •  equity investments in real properties that are not long-term net leased to a single-tenant and may include partially leased properties, undeveloped properties and
properties subject to short-term net leases, among others;
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 •  mortgage loans secured by real properties;
 

 •  subordinated interests in first mortgage real estate loans, or B-notes;
 

 •  mezzanine loans related to real estate, which are senior to the borrower’s equity position but subordinated to other third-party financing; and
 

 
•  equity and debt securities (including preferred equity, limited partnership interests, trusts and other higher-yielding structured debt and equity investments) issued

by companies that are engaged in real-estate-related businesses as defined by regulations promulgated under the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”), including
other REITs.

Environmental Matters
A discussion of the current effects and potential future impacts on our business and properties of compliance with federal, state and local environmental regulations is presented
in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the subheading “Risks Related to an Investments in Real Estate and the U.S. Energy Infrastructure Sector – Costs of
complying with governmental laws and regulations, including those relating to environmental matters, may adversely affect our income and the cash available for distribution.”

Financing Strategies
Consistent with our asset acquisition policies, we use leverage when available on terms we believe are favorable. The amount of leverage that we may employ will depend on
our assessment of market conditions and other factors at the time of any proposed borrowing. Although we currently do not anticipate doing so, the amount of total leverage we
employ may exceed 50% of our total assets, which was the maximum amount of leverage we could employ as a BDC. Substantially all of our mortgage loans are expected to be
non-recourse. A lender on non-recourse mortgage debt generally has recourse only to the property collateralizing such debt and not to any of our other assets, while full
recourse financing would give lender recourse to all of our assets. The use of non-recourse debt, therefore, helps us to limit the exposure of all of our assets to any one debt
obligation. Lenders may, however, have recourse to our other assets in limited circumstances not related to the repayment of the indebtedness, such as under an environmental
indemnity. We also expect to have an unsecured line of credit that can be used in connection with refinancing existing debt and making new acquisitions, as well as to meet
other working capital needs. We intend to incur debt which bears interest at fixed rates, or is effectively converted to fixed rates through interest rate caps or swap agreements.
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Competition
We compete with public and private funds, commercial and investment banks and commercial financing companies to make the types of investments that we plan to make in the
U.S. energy infrastructure sector. Many of our competitors are substantially larger and have considerably greater financial, technical and marketing resources than us. For
example, some competitors may have a lower cost of funds and access to funding sources than are available to us. In addition, some of our competitors may have higher risk
tolerances or different risk assessments, allowing them to consider a wider variety of investments and establish more relationships than us. These competitive conditions may
adversely affect our ability to make investments in the energy infrastructure sector and could adversely affect our distributions to stockholders.

MANAGEMENT
Our Manager
We have no employees. We are externally managed by Corridor, an affiliate of TCA, a registered investment adviser with approximately $10.4 billion of assets under
management in the U.S. energy infrastructure sector as of January 31, 2013. Corridor is a real property asset manager with a focus on U.S. energy infrastructure real assets and
has access to certain resources of TCA while acting as our manager. Corridor assists us in identifying infrastructure real property assets that can be leased to businesses that
make goods, provide services or own assets other than securities, and is generally responsible for our day-to-day operations.

Corridor Team
Each of our officers is an employee of Corridor or one of its affiliates. Corridor is not obligated to dedicate certain of its employees exclusively to us, nor are it or its employees
obligated to dedicate any specific portion of its or their time to our business. As described below, we pay a management fee and certain other fees to Corridor, which it uses in
part to pay compensation to its officers and employees who, notwithstanding that certain of them also are our officers, receive no cash compensation directly from us.

We pay Corridor a management fee based on total assets under management. In aligning our strategy to focus on distributions and distribution growth, Corridor is paid an
incentive fee based on increases in distributions to our stockholders. A percentage of the Corridor incentive fee is reinvested in CorEnergy. Pursuant to a Management
Agreement and Administration Agreement, Corridor has agreed to use its reasonable best efforts to present us with suitable acquisition opportunities consistent with our
investment objectives and policies and is generally responsible, subject to the supervision and review of our Board of Directors, for our day-to-day operations.

Real Property Asset Management
The Corridor team has experience across several segments of the energy sector and is primarily responsible for investigating, analyzing and selecting potential infrastructure
asset acquisition opportunities. The Acquisition of the Pinedale LGS assets was reviewed and approved by the Corridor Investment Committee, consisting of the managing
directors of Corridor and TCA. Post the Acquisition of the Pinedale LGS assets the Corridor Investment Committee was dissolved, at which point future transactions are to be
submitted to our Board of Directors for final approval following a recommendation from the managing directors of Corridor.

We believe that effective management of our assets is essential to maintain and enhance property values. Important aspects of asset management include restructuring
transactions to meet the evolving needs of current tenants, re-leasing properties, refinancing debt, selling properties and knowledge of the bankruptcy process.

We monitor, on an ongoing basis, compliance by tenants with their lease obligations and other factors that could affect the financial performance of any of our properties.
Monitoring involves receiving assurances that each tenant has paid real estate taxes, assessments and other expenses relating to the properties it occupies and confirming that
appropriate insurance coverage is being maintained by the tenant. We review financial statements of tenants and undertake regular physical inspections of the condition and
maintenance of properties. In addition, we periodically analyze each tenant’s financial condition, the industry in which each tenant operates and each tenant’s relative strength in
its industry.

Portfolio Monitoring
We monitor each portfolio company to determine progress relative to meeting the Company’s business plan and to assess the Company’s strategic and tactical courses of action.
This monitoring is accomplished by attendance at Board of Directors meetings, ad hoc communications with portfolio company management, the review of periodic operating
and financial reports, an analysis of relevant reserve information and capital expenditure plans, and periodic consultations with engineers, geologists, and other experts. The
performance of each private portfolio company is also periodically compared to performance of similarly sized companies with comparable assets and businesses to assess
performance relative to peers. Corridor’s monitoring activities are expected to provide us with information that will enable us to monitor compliance with existing covenants.
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Management Agreement
On December 1, 2011, we executed a Management Agreement with Corridor. The Management Agreement has a current expiration date of June 30, 2013. The terms of the
Management Agreement include a quarterly management fee equal to 0.25 percent (1.00 percent annualized) of the value of the Company’s average monthly Managed Assets
for such quarter. For purposes of the Management Agreement, “Managed Assets” means all of the securities of the Company and all of the real property assets of the Company
(including any securities or real property assets purchased with or attributable to any borrowed funds) minus all of the accrued liabilities other than (1) deferred taxes and
(2) debt entered into for the purpose of leverage. For purposes of the definition of Managed Assets, “securities” includes the Company’s security portfolio, valued at then
current market value. For purposes of the definition of Managed Assets, “real property assets” includes the assets of the Company invested, directly or indirectly, in equity
interests in or loans secured by real estate and personal property owned in connection with such real estate (including acquisition related costs and acquisition costs that may be
allocated to intangibles or are unallocated, valued at the aggregate historical cost, before reserves for depreciation, amortization, impairment charges or bad debts or other
similar noncash reserves.) The Management Agreement also includes a quarterly incentive fee of 10 percent of the increase in distributions paid over a threshold distribution
equal to $0.125 per share per quarter. The Management Agreement also requires at least half of any incentive fees to be reinvested in the Company’s common stock. The base
Management fee for any partial quarter will be appropriately prorated. We paid a total of $1.0 million in management fees during 2012.

Advisory Agreement
On December 1, 2011, we entered into an Advisory Agreement by and among the Company, TCA and Corridor, under which TCA provided certain securities focused
investment services necessary to evaluate, monitor and liquidate the Company’s remaining securities portfolio (“Designated Advisory Services”), and also provide the
Company with certain operational (i.e. non-investment) services (“Designated Operational Services”). Effective December21, 2012, that agreement was replaced by an
Amended Advisory Agreement pursuant to which TCA provides investment services related to the monitoring and disposition of our current securities portfolio.

Administrative Agreement
On December 1, 2011, we entered into an Administrative Agreement with TCA. During the fourth quarter of 2012, Corridor assumed the Company’s administrator duties,
retroactive to August 7, 2012. The Administration Agreement has a current expiration date of June 30, 2013. Our administrator performs (or oversees or arranges for the
performance of) the administrative services necessary for our operation, including without limitation providing us with equipment, clerical, bookkeeping and record keeping
services. For these services we pay our administrator a fee equal to 0.04% of our aggregate average daily Managed Assets, with a minimum annual fee of $30,000.

Pursuant to the Management and Administrative Agreements, Corridor furnishes us with office facilities and clerical and administrative services necessary for our operation
(other than services provided by our custodian, accounting agent, administrator, dividend and interest paying agent and other service providers). Corridor is authorized to enter
into agreements with third parties to provide such services. To the extent we request, Corridor will (i) oversee the performance and payment of the fees of our service providers
and make such reports and recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning such matters as the parties deem desirable, (ii) respond to inquiries and otherwise assist such
service providers in the preparation and filing of regulatory reports, proxy statements, and stockholder communications, and the preparation of materials and reports for the
Board of Directors; (iii) establish and oversee the implementation of borrowing facilities or other forms of leverage authorized by the Board of Directors and (iv) supervise any
other aspect of our administration as may be agreed upon by us and Corridor. We have agreed, pursuant to the Agreement, to reimburse Corridor for all out-of-pocket expenses
incurred in providing the foregoing.

We bear all expenses not specifically assumed by Corridor and incurred in our operations. The compensation and allocable routine overhead expenses of all investment
professionals of Corridor and its staff, when and to the extent engaged in providing us investment advisory management services, is provided and paid for by Corridor and not
us.

Duration and Termination
The Management Agreement and the Administrative Agreement (“the Agreements”) were initially reviewed and approved by our Board of Directors. The Agreements will
remain in effect until June 30, 2013 and are renewable annually thereafter by us. The Agreements may be terminated by us, by vote of the Board of Directors, without penalty
upon not more than 60 days’ written notice to Corridor. The Management Agreement may also be terminated by Corridor, without penalty, upon not less than 60 days’ written
notice to us.
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Available Information
Our principal executive offices are located at 4200 W. 115th Street, Suite 210, Leawood, Kansas 66211. Our telephone number is (913) 387-2790, or toll-free (877) 699-2677,
and our Web site is http://corenergy.corridortrust.com. We are required to file reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. We will make available free of
charge our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports on or through our Web site at
http://corenergy.corridortrust.com as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. This information may also be
obtained, without charge, upon request by calling us at (913) 387-2790 or toll-free at (877) 699-2677. This information will also be available at the SEC’s Public Reference
Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The
SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information filed by us with the SEC which is available on the SEC’s internet
site at www.sec.gov. Please note that any internet addresses provided in this Form 10-K are for informational purposes only and are not intended to be hyperlinks. Accordingly,
no information found and/or provided at such internet address is intended or deemed to be included by reference herein.

 ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
There are many risks and uncertainties that can affect our future business, financial performance or share price. Many of these are beyond our control. A description follows of
some of the important factors that could have a material negative impact on our future business, operating results, financial condition or share price. This discussion includes a
number of forward-looking statements. You should refer to the description of the qualifications and limitations on forward-looking statements in the first paragraph under
Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of this Form 10-K.

Risks Related to Our Business and Properties
The majority of our infrastructure real property assets are leased to a single tenant.
The LGS represented approximately 81% of our total assets on a pro forma basis as of August 31, 2012 and the lease payments under the Lease Agreement with Ultra Newco
represented approximately 66% of our total revenue on a pro forma basis as of August 31, 2012. Ultra Newco or Ultra Petroleum, one of the guarantors of Ultra Newco’s
obligations under the Lease Agreement and Ultra Newco’s ultimate parent company, may experience a downturn in its business, which may weaken its financial condition and
result in Ultra Newco’s failure to make timely lease payments or give rise to default under the Lease Agreement or Ultra Petroleum’s failure to meet its Guaranty obligations. In
the event of a default by Ultra Newco or Ultra Petroleum, we may experience delays in enforcing our rights as landlord and may incur substantial costs in protecting our
investment. In addition, if Ultra Newco fails to renew the Lease Agreement and we cannot find a new lessee at the same or better lease rates, the expiration of the Lease
Agreement in fifteen years could have a material adverse impact on our business and financial condition.

The following is a brief summary of certain risk factors disclosed by Ultra Petroleum in its most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, which should be carefully considered
before you decide to invest in shares of our common stock. For a complete discussion of the risks that may be applicable to Ultra Petroleum, please review its complete Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.
 

 •  Ultra Petroleum’s reserve estimates may turn out to be incorrect if the assumptions upon which these estimates are based are inaccurate. Any material
inaccuracies in these reserve estimates or underlying assumptions will materially affect the quantities and present value of Ultra Petroleum’s reserves.

 

 •  Competitive industry conditions may negatively affect Ultra Petroleum’s ability to conduct operations.
 

 •  Factors beyond Ultra Petroleum’s control may affect its ability to effectively market production and may ultimately affect its financial results.
 

 •  A decrease in oil and natural gas prices may adversely affect Ultra Petroleum’s results of operations and financial condition.
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•  A substantial portion of Ultra Petroleum’s reserves and production is natural gas. Prices for natural gas have been lower in recent years than at various

times in the past and may remain lower in the future. Sustained low prices for natural gas may adversely affect Ultra Petroleum’s operational and
financial condition.

 

 •  Compliance with environmental and other governmental regulations could be costly and could negatively impact Ultra Petroleum’s production.
 

 •  Climate change legislation or regulations restricting emissions of “greenhouse gases” could result in increased operating costs and reduced demand for the
oil and natural gas that Ultra Petroleum produces.

 

 •  Ultra Petroleum may not be able to replace its reserves or generate cash flows if it is unable to raise capital. Ultra Petroleum will be required to make
substantial capital expenditures to develop existing reserves and to discover new oil and natural gas reserves.

 

 •  Ultra Petroleum’s operations may be interrupted by severe weather or drilling restrictions.
 

 •  Ultra Petroleum is exposed to operating hazards and uninsured risks that could adversely impact its results of operations and cash flows.
 

 •  If oil and natural gas prices decrease, Ultra Petroleum may be required to write down the carrying value of its oil and natural gas properties.

We are subject to risks associated with ownership of the Liquids Gathering System.
Our ownership of the LGS subjects us to all of the inherent hazards and risks normally incidental to the transmission, storage and distribution of natural gas and natural gas
liquids, such as well site blowouts, cratering and explosions, pipe and other equipment and system failures, uncontrolled flows of natural gas or well fluids, fires, formations
with abnormal pressures, pollution and environmental risks and natural disasters. These risks could result in substantial losses due to personal injury and/or loss of life,
significant damage to and destruction of property and equipment and pollution or other environmental damage. Moreover, if one or more of these hazards occur, there can be no
assurance that a response will be adequate to limit or reduce damage. As a result of these risks, we may also sometimes be a defendant in legal proceedings and litigation arising
in the ordinary course of business. There can be no assurance that the insurance policies that we maintain to limit our liability for such losses will be adequate to protect us from
all material expenses related to potential future claims for personal injury and property damage or that such levels of insurance will be available in the future at economical
prices or to cover all risks.

We are subject to the risk of Ultra Newco transferring its obligations under the Lease Agreement.
The terms of the Lease Agreement provide that Ultra Newco may transfer its rights and obligations under the Lease Agreement at any time, subject to certain conditions. We
thus bear the risk that Ultra Newco will transfer its rights and obligations under the Lease Agreement to a third party whose creditworthiness may not be on par with that of
Ultra Newco, which could inhibit such transferee’s ability to make timely lease payments under the Lease Agreement or increase the likelihood that a downturn in the business
of such transferee could give rise to a default under the Lease Agreement. The occurrence of either of these events could have a material adverse impact on our business and
financial condition.

Our operations could be adversely affected if third-party pipelines or other facilities interconnected to our facilities become partially or fully unavailable.
The LGS connects to other pipelines or facilities owned by third parties. The continuing operation of such third-party pipelines or facilities is not within our control. These
pipelines and other facilities may become unavailable, or available only at a reduced capacity. If any of these third-party pipelines or facilities becomes unable to transport the
natural gas or natural gas liquids stored or distributed by the LGS, our business, results of operations, financial condition and ability to make cash distributions to our
stockholders could be adversely affected.

The terms of the co-investment in Pinedale LP may limit our ability to take certain actions in the future.
Pinedale GP, our wholly-owned subsidiary, is the general partner of Pinedale LP. Under the Pinedale LP partnership agreement, Pinedale GP is given broad authority to
manage the affairs of Pinedale LP and to ensure that Pinedale LP complies with the terms of various agreements to which it is a party, including the Lease Agreement and the
credit agreement
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with KeyBank. The Pinedale LP partnership agreement, however, requires the approval of the holder of a majority of a class of limited partner interests (all of which will be
held initially by Prudential) before certain actions can be taken by Pinedale LP, including granting any consent under the Lease Agreement to: extend the term of the Lease
Agreement; change the methodology of determining the rent; improve the leased property; reduce the present value of rental payments; merge with, or acquire unrelated assets
from, a third party; incur debt, or amend the terms of any existing Pinedale LP debt, that would increase that debt above a specified amount; or issue partnership interests with
rights superior to those held initially by Prudential. The approval of one or more of the foregoing matters may not be obtained at a time when we believe that an action requiring
approval should be taken.

The Acquisition must be approved by the U.S. Bureau of Land Management. If such approval is not granted, the Acquisition may be unwound.
We must submit the Acquisition to the U.S. Bureau of Land Management (the “BLM”) for approval. There is a risk that the BLM will not approve the Acquisition. As a result,
we would not be viewed by the BLM as the holder of rights in the BLM easements, which could adversely affect our ability to pledge the LGS as collateral for any future debt
or sell our interest in the LGS.

We are subject to risks involved in single tenant leases.
We intend to focus our acquisition activities on real properties that are net-leased to single tenants. Therefore, the financial failure of, or other default by, a single tenant under
its lease: (i) is likely to cause a significant reduction in the operating cash flow generated by the property leased to that tenant, (ii) might decrease the value of that property, and
(iii) will expose us to 100% of all applicable operating costs.

Risks Related to Our Financing Arrangements
Our indebtedness is substantial and could have important consequences, including impairing our ability to obtain additional financing or pay future distributions.
As of December 31, 2012, we had outstanding consolidated indebtedness of approximately $70 million. Our substantial leverage could have important consequences. For
example, it could:
 

 •  result in the acceleration of a significant amount of debt for non-compliance with the terms of such debt or, if such debt contains cross-default or cross-
acceleration provisions, other debt;

 

 •  result in the loss of assets due to foreclosure or sale on unfavorable terms, which could create taxable income without accompanying cash proceeds;
 

 •  materially impair our ability to borrow undrawn amounts under existing financing arrangements or to obtain additional financing or refinancing on
favorable terms or at all;

 

 •  require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow to paying principal and interest on our indebtedness, thereby reducing the cash flow available
to fund our business, to pay distributions, including those necessary to maintain REIT qualification, or to use for other purposes;

 

 •  increase our vulnerability to economic downturns;
 

 •  limit our ability to withstand competitive pressures; or
 

 •  reduce our flexibility to respond to changing business and economic conditions.

We may not be able to refinance the indebtedness that we incurred to fund the Acquisition.
Pinedale LP borrowed $70 million under its credit facility to finance the Acquisition and such indebtedness will mature in 2015 or 2016, if the option to extend the date of
maturity is exercised. Pinedale LP may not be able to refinance that indebtedness on its existing terms or at all. If funding is not available when needed, or is available only on
unfavorable terms, we may not be able to meet our obligations as they come due. Moreover, without adequate funding, we may be unable to execute our growth strategies,
complete future acquisitions, take advantage of other business opportunities or respond to competitive pressures, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our
revenues and results of operations.
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We mortgage our properties, which subjects us to the risk of foreclosure in the event of non-payment.
We expect to mortgage many of our properties to secure payment of indebtedness. If we are unable to meet mortgage payments, the property could be foreclosed upon or
transferred to the mortgagee with a consequent loss of income and asset value. A foreclosure of one or more of our properties could adversely affect our financial condition,
results of operations, cash flow, and ability to service debt and make distributions and the market price of our preferred and common stock.

We face risks associated with our dependence on external sources of capital.
In order to qualify as a REIT, we will be required each year to distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, and we will be subject to tax on our
income to the extent it is not distributed. Because of this distribution requirement, we may not be able to fund all future capital needs from cash retained from operations. As a
result, to fund capital needs, we must rely on third-party sources of capital, which we may not be able to obtain on favorable terms, if at all. Our access to third-party sources of
capital depends upon a number of factors, including (i) general market conditions; (ii) the market’s perception of our growth potential; (iii) our current and potential future
earnings and cash distributions; and (iv) the market price of our capital stock. Additional debt financing may substantially increase our debt-to-total capitalization ratio.
Additional equity issuances may dilute the holdings of our current stockholders.

Covenants in our loan documents could limit our flexibility and adversely affect our financial condition.
The terms of our various credit agreements and other indebtedness require us to comply with a number of customary financial and other covenants, such as maintaining debt
service coverage and leverage ratios and maintaining insurance coverage. These covenants may limit our flexibility in our operations, and breaches of these covenants could
result in defaults under the instruments governing the applicable indebtedness even if we had satisfied our payment obligations. If we were to default under credit agreements or
other debt instruments, our financial condition would be adversely affected.

We face risks related to “balloon payments” and refinancings.
Certain of our mortgages will have significant outstanding principal balances on their maturity dates, commonly known as “balloon payments.” There can be no assurance that
we will be able to refinance the debt on favorable terms or at all. To the extent we cannot refinance this debt on favorable terms or at all, we may be forced to dispose of
properties on disadvantageous terms or pay higher interest rates, either of which would have an adverse impact on our financial performance and ability to service debt and
make distributions.

Risks Related to REIT Qualification and Federal Income Tax Laws
We intend to elect to be taxed as a REIT for fiscal 2013, but may not be able to qualify as a REIT.
We intend to elect to be a REIT for federal income tax purposes. In order to qualify as a REIT, a substantial percentage of our income must be derived from, and our assets
consist of, real estate assets, and, in certain cases, other investment property. We intend to acquire and manage investments to satisfy the REIT tests. Whether a particular
investment is considered a real estate asset for such purposes depends upon the facts and circumstances of the investment. Due to the factual nature of the determination, at this
time we do not know whether any particular investment will qualify as a real estate asset or realize income which satisfies the REIT income tests. In determining whether an
investment is a real property asset, we will look at the Code and the IRS’s interpretation of the Code in regulations, published rulings, private letter rulings and other guidance.
In the case of a private letter ruling issued to another taxpayer, we would not be able to bind the IRS to the holding of such ruling. If we fail to qualify as a REIT we may not be
able to achieve our objectives and the value of our stock may decline.

Although we believe that the Liquids Gathering System constitutes a real estate asset for tax purposes, that belief is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service or any
court and does not guarantee our qualification as a REIT.
In recent years, the IRS issued several separate private letter rulings that defined certain energy infrastructure assets as real estate assets for tax purposes. The potential
qualifying real estate assets in the energy infrastructure sector include electric transmission and distribution systems, pipeline systems, and storage and terminaling systems. We
believe that the Liquids Gathering System constitutes a real estate asset for tax purposes consistent with these private letter rulings. Although private letter rulings provide
insight into the current thinking of the IRS on tax issues, such rulings may only be relied upon by the taxpayer to whom they were issued and are not binding on the IRS with
respect to us or the Liquids Gathering System. We have not obtained any private letter rulings with respect to the Liquids Gathering System. If the Liquids Gathering System
does not constitute a real estate asset for federal income tax purposes, we would likely fail to qualify as a REIT, would not achieve our objectives and the value of our stock
could decline.
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If we elect to be taxed as a REIT, we would be subject to a corporate level tax on certain built in gains if certain assets were sold during the 10 year period following such
election.
We are currently taxed as a C corporation, which subjects our income to double level taxation. Generally, a REIT is treated as a flow-through entity for federal income tax
purposes, as a REIT’s income is generally subject to a single level of federal taxation.

If we find sufficient suitable REIT-qualifying investments and satisfy the REIT requirements throughout our fiscal year, we expect to make an election to be treated as a REIT
for tax purposes for that fiscal year by filing a Form 1120-REIT on or before March 15 of the subsequent fiscal year, or such later date to which we have properly extended filing
such income tax return. We do not currently expect that we will be able to elect to be treated as a REIT for tax purposes for the 2012 fiscal year, but also do not expect that our
lack of REIT status will hinder our ability to pay distributions on a quarterly basis.

A REIT generally operates without incurring any corporate level federal income tax, which is accomplished by the REIT annually distributing at least ninety percent of its REIT
taxable income. If it satisfies the minimum distribution requirement, the REIT generally is entitled to a deduction for dividends paid. The REIT stockholders are then required to
report the REIT dividend as ordinary income. A REIT stockholder’s receipt of dividends generally will not qualify as qualified dividend income or for the dividends received
deduction discussed above. Thus, if we are able to qualify as a REIT, we will be more favorably treated for federal income tax purposes than our current taxation.

In order to qualify as a REIT, we would be required to satisfy gross income and asset tests. Generally, such tests require that a substantial percentage of the REIT’s income be
derived from, and assets consist of, real estate assets, and, in certain cases, other investment property. This will be a factual determination that we generally will have to make
annually with respect to the income tests and quarterly with respect to the asset tests.

There are uncertainties relating to the estimate of our anticipated special distribution.
To qualify for taxation as a REIT, we will be required to distribute to our stockholders all of our pre-REIT accumulated earnings and profits, if any, as measured for federal
income tax purposes, prior to the end of our first taxable year as a REIT. Failure to make the special distribution could result in our disqualification for taxation as a REIT. The
determination of the timing and amount to be distributed in the special distribution is a complex factual and legal determination. We may have less than complete information at
the time we undertake our analysis or may interpret the applicable law differently than the IRS. We currently believe and intend that our special distribution will satisfy the
requirements relating to the distribution of our pre-REIT accumulated earnings and profits. There are, however, substantial uncertainties relating to the computation of our
special distribution, including the possibility that the IRS could, in auditing tax years prior to our REIT election, successfully assert that our taxable income should be increased,
which could increase our pre-REIT accumulated earnings and profits. Thus, we may fail to satisfy the requirement that we distribute all of our pre-REIT accumulated earnings
and profits by the close of our first taxable year as a REIT. Moreover, although there are procedures available to cure a failure to distribute all of our pre-REIT accumulated
earnings and profits, we cannot now determine whether we will be able to take advantage of them or the economic impact to us of doing so.

Failure to qualify as a REIT would have significant adverse consequences to us and the value of our common stock.
Although we anticipate that completion of the Acquisition of the Liquids Gathering System, when combined with the expected contribution of certain of our assets to taxable
REIT subsidiaries, the acquisition of other assets and the receipt of other income, will allow us to meet the income and asset tests necessary for us to qualify for and elect to be
taxed as a REIT for fiscal 2013, we cannot assure you that we will qualify to elect to be taxed as a REIT. Furthermore, qualification as a REIT involves the application of highly
technical and complex provisions of the Internal Revenue Code as to which there may only be limited judicial and administrative interpretations and involves the determination
of facts and circumstances not entirely within our control. Future legislation, new regulations, administrative interpretations or court decisions may significantly change the tax
laws or the application of the tax laws with respect to qualification as a REIT for federal income tax purposes or the federal income tax consequences of such qualification.
Accordingly, we cannot assure you that we will be organized or will operate to qualify as a REIT for fiscal 2013 or thereafter. In addition, we have not obtained an opinion of
counsel that we have been organized in conformity with the requirements for qualification as a REIT or that our proposed method of operation for fiscal 2013 and thereafter will
enable us to satisfy the requirements for such qualification. If, with respect to any taxable year, we fail to qualify as a REIT, we would not be allowed to deduct distributions to
stockholders in computing our taxable income. After an initial election and qualification as a REIT, if we later failed to so qualify and we were not entitled to relief under the
relevant statutory provisions, we would also be disqualified from treatment as a REIT for four subsequent taxable years. If we fail to qualify as a REIT, corporate-level income
tax, including any applicable alternative minimum tax,
 

17



Table of Contents

would apply to our taxable income at regular corporate rates. As a result, the amount available for distribution to holders of equity securities would be reduced for the year or
years involved, and we would no longer be required to make distributions. In addition, our failure to qualify as a REIT could impair our ability to expand our business and raise
capital, and it may adversely affect the value of our common stock.

The ability of stockholders to control our policies and effect a change of control of our company will be limited by certain provisions of our articles of incorporation and by
Maryland law.
Our articles of incorporation authorize our board of directors to amend our charter to increase or decrease the aggregate number of authorized shares of stock, to authorize us to
issue additional shares of our common stock or preferred stock and to classify or reclassify unissued shares of our common stock or preferred stock and thereafter to authorize
us to issue such classified or reclassified shares of stock. We believe that these articles of incorporation provisions will provide us with increased flexibility in structuring
possible future financings and acquisitions and in meeting other needs that might arise. The additional classes or series, as well as the additional authorized shares of common
stock, will be available for issuance without further action by our stockholders, unless such action is required by applicable law or the rules of any stock exchange or automated
quotation system on which our securities may be listed or traded. Although our board of directors does not currently intend to do so, it could authorize us to issue a class or
series of stock that could, depending upon the terms of the particular class or series, delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change of control of our company that might
involve a premium price for holders of our common stock or that our common stockholders otherwise believe to be in their best interests.

To maintain our qualification as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and because we expect to elect to be taxed as a REIT for fiscal 2013, our articles of incorporation
will be amended in the first quarter of 2013 so that not more than 50% in value of our outstanding stock may be owned, directly or indirectly, by or for five or fewer individuals
(as defined in the Internal Revenue Code to include certain entities such as private foundations) at any time during the last half of any taxable year. Our stockholders approved
that amendment to our articles of incorporation, and our articles will soon be amended, to generally prohibit any individual (as defined under the Internal Revenue Code to
include certain entities) from actually owning or being deemed to own by virtue of the applicable constructive ownership provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, (i) more than
9.8% (in value or in number of shares, whichever is more restrictive) of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock or (ii) more than 9.8% in value of the aggregate
of the outstanding shares of all classes and series of our stock, in each case, excluding any shares of our stock not treated as outstanding for federal income tax purposes.
Subject to the exceptions described below, our articles of incorporation further prohibit any person or entity from actually or constructively owning shares in excess of these
limits. We refer to these restrictions as the “ownership limitation provisions.” These ownership limitation provisions may prevent or delay a change in control and, as a result,
could adversely affect our stockholders’ ability to realize a premium for their shares of common stock. However, upon request, our board of directors may waive the ownership
limitation provisions with respect to a particular stockholder and establish different ownership limitation provisions for such stockholder. In granting such waiver, our board of
directors may also require the stockholder receiving such waiver to make certain representations, warranties and covenants related to our ability to qualify as a REIT.

Complying with the REIT requirements may cause us to forgo otherwise attractive opportunities or liquidate certain of our investments.
To qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we must continually satisfy tests concerning, among other things, the sources of our income, the nature and
diversification of our assets, the amounts we distribute to our stockholders and the ownership of our stock. We may be required to make distributions to our stockholders at
disadvantageous times or when we do not have funds readily available for distribution. Thus, compliance with the REIT requirements may hinder our ability to make certain
otherwise attractive investments or undertake other activities that might otherwise be beneficial to our company and our stockholders, or may require us to borrow or liquidate
investments in unfavorable market conditions. In addition, Corridor may be unable to find investments that comply with REIT requirements, thereby limiting our ability to grow
or even maintain our asset base.

In connection with such requirements if we elect to be taxed as a REIT, we must ensure that, at the end of each calendar quarter, at least 75% of the value of our assets consists
of cash, cash items, government securities and qualified real property assets. The remainder of our investments in securities (other than cash, cash items, government securities,
securities issued by a REIT taxable subsidiary or certain other qualified assets) generally cannot include more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of any one issuer or
more than 10% of the total value of the outstanding securities of any one issuer. In addition, in general, no more than 5% of the value of our total assets (other than cash, cash
items, government securities, certain other securities and qualified real property assets) can consist of the securities of any one issuer, and no more than 25% of the value of our
total securities can be represented by securities of one or more of a certain class of issuers. After meeting these
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requirements at the close of a calendar quarter, if we fail to comply with these requirements at the end of any subsequent calendar quarter, we must correct the failure within
30 days after the end of the calendar quarter or qualify for certain statutory relief provisions to avoid losing our REIT qualification. As a result, we may be required to liquidate
from our portfolio otherwise attractive investments. These actions could have the effect of reducing our income and amounts available for distribution to our stockholders.

If we elect to be taxed as a REIT, re-characterization of sale-leaseback transactions may cause us to lose our REIT status.
We intend to purchase properties and simultaneously lease the same property back to the seller of such properties. While we will use our best efforts to structure any such sale-
leaseback transaction so that the lease will be characterized as a “true lease,” thereby allowing us to be treated as the owner of the property for U.S. federal income tax purposes,
the IRS could challenge such characterization. In the event that any sale-leaseback transaction is recharacterized as a financing transaction or loan for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, deductions for depreciation and cost recovery relating to such property would be disallowed. If a sale-leaseback transaction were so recharacterized, we might fail to
satisfy the REIT qualification “asset tests” or the “income tests” and, consequently, lose our REIT status effective with the year of re-characterization. Alternatively, the amount
of our REIT taxable income could be recalculated which might also cause us to fail to meet the distribution requirement for a taxable year.

If we elect to be treated as a REIT, we will be required to make distributions, other than capital gain distributions, to our stockholders each year in the amount of at least
90% of our REIT taxable income As a result, we will continue to need additional capital to make new investments. If additional funds are unavailable or not available on
favorable terms, our ability to make new investments will be impaired.
If we elect to be treated as a REIT, we will be required to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, and as such we may require additional capital to make new
investments or carry existing investments. We may acquire additional capital from the issuance of securities senior to our common stock, including additional borrowings or
other indebtedness or the issuance of additional securities. We may also acquire additional capital through the issuance of additional equity. However, we may not be able to
raise additional capital in the future on favorable terms or at all. Unfavorable economic conditions could increase our funding costs, limit our access to the capital markets or
result in a decision by lenders not to extend credit to us. We may issue debt securities, other instruments of indebtedness or preferred stock, and we borrow money from banks
or other financial institutions, which we refer to collectively as “senior securities.” As a result of issuing senior securities, we will also be exposed to typical risks associated
with leverage, including increased risk of loss. If we issue preferred securities which will rank “senior” to our common stock in our capital structure, the holders of such
preferred securities may have separate voting rights and other rights, preferences or privileges more favorable than those of our common stock, and the issuance of such
preferred securities could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a transaction or a change of control that might involve a premium price for security holders or
otherwise be in our best interest.

To the extent our ability to issue debt or other senior securities is constrained, we will depend on issuances of additional common stock to finance new investments. If we raise
additional funds by issuing more of our common stock or senior securities convertible into, or exchangeable for, our common stock, the percentage ownership of our
stockholders at that time would decrease, and you may experience dilution.

Risks Related to Our Corporate Structure and Governance
The ability of our board of directors to revoke our REIT qualification or alter our business policies without stockholder approval may cause adverse consequences to our
stockholders.
Our Board of Directors determines our growth, investment, financing, capitalization, borrowing, REIT status, operations and distributions policies. Although our Board of
Directors has no present intention to amend or reverse any of these policies, they may be amended or revised without notice to stockholders. We cannot assure you that any
changes in our policies will serve fully the interests of all stockholders. In particular, if we elect to be taxed as a REIT, our articles of incorporation will provide that our board
of directors may revoke or otherwise terminate our REIT election, without the approval of our stockholders, if it determines that it is no longer in our best interest to continue to
qualify as a REIT. If we cease to be a REIT, we will not be allowed a deduction for dividends paid to stockholders in computing our taxable income and will be subject to U.S.
federal income tax at regular corporate rates and state and local taxes, which may have adverse consequences on our total return to our stockholders.
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Corridor may serve as a manager to other entities, which may create conflicts of interest not in the best interest of us or our stockholders.
Corridor’s services under the Management Agreement are not exclusive, and, while it currently does not have any contractual arrangement to do so, it is free to furnish the same
or similar services to other entities, including businesses that may directly or indirectly compete with us so long as its services to us are not impaired by the provision of such
services to others. Corridor and its members may have obligations to other entities, the fulfillment of which might not be in the best interests of us or our stockholders.

We will be dependent upon key personnel of Corridor for our future success.
We have entered into a management agreement with Corridor to provide full management services to us for real property asset investments. We will be dependent on the
diligence, expertise and business relationships of the management of Corridor to implement our strategy of acquiring real property assets. The departure of one or more
investment professionals of Corridor could have a material adverse effect on our ability to implement this strategy and on the value of our common stock. There can be no
assurance that we will be successful in implementing our strategy.

Provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Law and our charter and bylaws could deter takeover attempts and have an adverse impact on the price of our common
stock.
The following considerations related to provisions of Maryland General Corporation Law, and of our charter and bylaws, may have the effect of discouraging, delaying or
making difficult a change in control of our Company or the removal of our incumbent directors:
 

 
•  We are subject to the Business Combination Act of the Maryland General Corporation Law. However, pursuant to the statute, our Board of Directors has

adopted a resolution exempting us from the Maryland Business Combination Act for any business combination between us and any person to the extent
that such business combination receives the prior approval of our board.

 

 
•  Our Bylaws exempt from the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act acquisitions of stock by any person. If we amend our Bylaws to repeal the

exemption from the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act, the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act also may make it more difficult to obtain
control of our Company.

 

 •  Under our charter, our Board of Directors is divided into three classes serving staggered terms, which will make it more difficult for a hostile bidder to
acquire control of us.

 

 
•  In addition, our Board of Directors may, without stockholder action, authorize the issuance of shares of stock in one or more classes or series, including

preferred stock. See “Description of Securities.” Our Board of Directors also may, without stockholder action, amend our charter to increase the number
of shares of stock of any class or series that we have authority to issue.

The existence of these provisions, among others, may have a negative impact on the price of our common stock and may discourage third party bids for ownership of our
Company. These provisions may prevent any premiums being offered to you for our common stock.

Risks Related to Our Non-Real Estate Investments
We are dependent upon TCA’s key personnel to effectuate an orderly liquidation of our remaining securities portfolio.
TCA’s investment professionals and management will monitor and dispose of our remaining securities portfolio. The departure of one or more investment professionals of TCA
could have a material adverse effect on our ability to achieve an orderly liquidation of our remaining securities portfolio. We will rely on employees of TCA who will be
devoting significant amounts of their time to non-Company related activities of TCA. To the extent TCA’s investment professionals and management are unable to, or do not,
devote sufficient amounts of their time and energy to our affairs, our performance may suffer.

Our remaining securities investments in privately-held companies present certain challenges, including availability of information about these companies and illiquidity
that may impact our ability to liquidate these investments in a timely and/or advantageous manner.
We currently have securities investments remaining in privately-held companies. Generally, little public information exists about these companies, and we are required to rely
on the ability of TCA to obtain adequate information to evaluate the potential risks and returns involved with these companies. If TCA is unable to obtain all material
information about these
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companies, including with respect to operational, regulatory, environmental, litigation and managerial risks, TCA may not make a fully-informed investment decision, and we
may lose some or all of the money invested in these companies. Substantially all of these securities are subject to legal and other restrictions on resale or are otherwise less
liquid than publicly traded securities. The illiquidity of these investments may make it difficult for us to sell such investments at advantageous times and prices or in a timely
manner. In addition, if we are required to liquidate all or a portion of our remaining securities portfolio quickly, we may realize significantly less than the value at which we
previously have recorded our investments. We also may face other restrictions on our ability to liquidate an investment in the securities of a portfolio company to the extent that
we or one of our affiliates have material non-public information regarding such portfolio company.

All of our remaining securities investments are, and will continue to be, recorded at fair value. Because such valuations are inherently uncertain, our determinations of fair
value may differ materially from the values that would have been used if a ready market for these securities existed.
We continue to hold investments that are in the form of securities or loans that are not publicly traded. The fair value of these investments may not be readily determinable. For
securities investments that are reported at fair value, we will value these investments quarterly at fair value. We have retained Lincoln Partners Advisors, LLC (an independent
valuation firm) to provide third party valuation consulting services. The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for determining the fair value of the investments in good
faith. The types of factors that may be considered in fair value pricing of an investment include the nature and realizable value of any collateral, the portfolio company’s
earnings and ability to make payments, the markets in which the portfolio company does business, comparison to publicly traded companies, discounted cash flow and other
relevant factors. Because such valuations are inherently uncertain, our determinations of fair value may differ materially from the values that would have been used if a ready
market for these securities existed. As a result, we may not be able to dispose of our holdings at a price equal to or greater than the determined fair value, which could have a
negative impact on our net equity and earnings.

The lack of liquidity in our securities investments may make it difficult to liquidate our securities portfolio at favorable prices, and as a result, we may suffer losses.
We have historically invested in the equity of companies whose securities are not publicly traded, and whose securities may be subject to legal and other restrictions on resale or
otherwise be less liquid than publicly-traded securities. As of November 30, 2012 approximately 26% of our securities investments were invested in illiquid securities. The
illiquidity of these investments may make it difficult for us to sell these investments when desired. In addition, we may realize significantly less than the value at which we had
previously recorded these investments when we liquidate our securities portfolio. The illiquidity of most of our securities investments may make it difficult for us to dispose of
them at favorable prices, and, as a result, we may suffer losses.

If our acquisitions do not meet our performance expectations, you may not receive distributions.
We intend to make distributions on a quarterly basis to our stockholders out of assets legally available for distribution. We may not be able to achieve operating results that will
allow us to make distributions at a specific level or to increase the amount of these distributions from time to time. Also, restrictions and provisions in any credit facilities we
enter into or debt securities we issue may limit our ability to make distributions. We cannot assure you that you will receive distributions at a particular level or at all.

If we were deemed an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, applicable restrictions could make it impractical for us to continue our business as
contemplated and could have a material adverse effect on our business and the price of our securities.
We do not believe that we are an investment company under the 1940 Act. If during the period in which we are liquidating our securities portfolio we make an investment in
securities, or one of our infrastructure real property asset acquisitions were characterized as an investment in securities, we could be deemed an investment company for
purposes of the 1940 Act. If we were to be deemed an investment company, restrictions imposed by the 1940 Act, including limitations on our capital structure, could make it
impractical for us to continue our business as contemplated and would have a material adverse effect on our operations and the price of our common stock.
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Changes in laws or regulations or in the interpretations of laws or regulations could significantly affect our operations and cost of doing business.
We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations and are subject to judicial and administrative decisions that affect our operations, including loan originations,
maximum interest rates, fees and other charges, disclosures to portfolio companies, the terms of secured transactions, collection and foreclosure procedures and other trade
practices. If these laws, regulations or decisions change, we may have to incur significant expenses in order to comply, or we may have to restrict our operations. In addition, if
we do not comply with applicable laws, regulations and decisions, or fail to obtain licenses that may become necessary for the conduct of our business, we may be subject to
civil fines and criminal penalties, any of which could have a material adverse effect upon our business, results of operations or financial condition.

Risks Related to Investments in Real Estate and the U.S. Energy Infrastructure Sector
We may be unable to identify and complete acquisitions of real property assets.
Our ability to identify and complete acquisitions of real property assets on favorable terms and conditions are subject to the following risks:
 

 •  we may be unable to acquire a desired asset because of competition from other investors with significant capital, including publicly traded REITs and
institutional investment funds;

 

 •  competition from other investors may significantly increase the purchase price of a desired real property asset or result in less favorable terms;
 

 •  we may not complete the acquisition of a desired real property asset even if we have signed an agreement to acquire such real property asset because such
agreements are subject to customary conditions to closing, including completion of due diligence investigations to our satisfaction;

 

 •  we may be unable to finance acquisitions of real property assets on favorable terms or at all.

Net leases may not result in fair market lease rates over time.
We expect a large portion of our future income to come from net leases. Net leases typically have longer lease terms and, thus, there is an increased risk that if market rental
rates increase in future years, the rates under our net leases will be less than fair market rental rates during those years. As a result, our income and distributions could be lower
than they would otherwise be if we did not engage in net leases. We generally will seek to include a clause in each lease that provides increases in rent over the term of the lease,
but there can be no assurance we will be successful in obtaining such a clause.

Some losses related to our real property assets, including, among others, losses related to potential terrorist activities, may not be covered by insurance and would adversely
impact distributions to stockholders.
Our leases will generally require the tenant companies to carry comprehensive liability and casualty insurance on our properties comparable in amounts and against risks
customarily insured against by other companies engaged in similar businesses in the same geographic region as our tenant companies. We believe the required coverage will be
of the type, and amount, customarily obtained by an owner of similar properties. However, there are some types of losses, such as catastrophic acts of nature, acts of war or
riots, for which we or our tenants cannot obtain insurance at an acceptable cost. If there is an uninsured loss or a loss in excess of insurance limits, we could lose both the
revenues generated by the affected property and the capital we have invested in the property if our tenant company fails to pay us the casualty value in excess of such insurance
limit, if any, or to indemnify us for such loss. This would in turn reduce the amount of income available for distributions. We would, however, remain obligated to repay any
secured indebtedness or other obligations related to the property. Since September 11, 2001, the cost of insurance protection against terrorist acts has risen dramatically. The
cost of coverage for acts of terrorism is currently mitigated by the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act (“TRIA”). If TRIA is not extended beyond its current expiration date of
December 31, 2014, our tenants may incur higher insurance costs and greater difficulty in obtaining insurance that covers terrorist-related damages. There can be no assurance
our tenant companies will be able to obtain terrorism insurance coverage, or that any coverage they do obtain will adequately protect our properties against loss from terrorist
attack.

If a sale-leaseback transaction is re-characterized in a lessee company’s bankruptcy proceeding, our financial condition could be adversely affected.
We intend to enter into sale-leaseback transactions, whereby we purchase a property and then simultaneously lease the same property back to the seller. In the event of the
bankruptcy of a lessee company, a transaction structured as a sale-leaseback may be re-characterized as either a financing or a joint venture, either of which outcomes could
adversely affect our business.
 

22



Table of Contents

If the sale-leaseback were re-characterized as a financing, we might not be considered the owner of the property, and as a result would have the status of a creditor in relation to
the lessee company. In that event, we would no longer have the right to sell or encumber our ownership interest in the property. Instead, we would have a claim against the
lessee company for the amounts owed under the lease, with the claim arguably secured by the property. The lessee company/debtor might have the ability to restructure the
terms, interest rate and amortization schedule of its outstanding balance. If confirmed by the bankruptcy court, we could be bound by the new terms, and prevented from
foreclosing our lien on the property. If the sale-leaseback were re-characterized as a joint venture, we and the lessee company could be treated as co-venturers with regard to the
property. As a result, we could be held liable, under some circumstances, for debts incurred by the lessee company relating to the property. Either of these outcomes could
adversely affect our cash flow and the amount available for distribution.

We may not be able to sell our real property asset investments when we desire.
Investments in real property assets are relatively illiquid compared to other investments. Accordingly, we may not be able to sell real property asset investments when we desire
or at prices acceptable to us in response to changes in economic or other conditions. This could substantially reduce the funds available for satisfying our obligations and for
distribution to our stockholders.

Costs of complying with governmental laws and regulations, including those relating to environmental matters, may adversely affect our income and the cash available for
distribution.
We have invested, and expect to continue to invest, in real property assets, which are subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment and human
health and safety. These laws and regulations generally govern wastewater discharges, air emissions, the operation and removal of underground and aboveground storage tanks,
the use, storage, treatment, transportation and disposal of solid and hazardous materials, and the remediation of contamination associated with disposals. Environmental laws
and regulations may impose joint and several liability on tenants, owners or operators for the costs to investigate or remediate contaminated properties, regardless of fault or
whether the acts causing the contamination were legal. This liability could be substantial. In addition, the presence of hazardous substances, or the failure to properly remediate
these substances, may adversely affect our ability to sell, rent or pledge such property as collateral for future borrowings.

Some of these laws and regulations have been amended so as to require compliance with new or more stringent standards as of future dates. Compliance with new or more
stringent laws or regulations or stricter interpretation of existing laws may require material expenditures by us. Future laws, ordinances or regulations may impose material
environmental liability. Additionally, our tenant companies’ operations, the existing condition of land when we buy it, operations in the vicinity of our properties, such as the
presence of underground storage tanks, or activities of unrelated third parties may affect our properties. In addition, there are various local, state and federal fire, health, life-
safety and similar regulations with which we may be required to comply, and that may subject us to liability in the form of fines or damages for noncompliance. Any material
expenditures, fines, or damages we must pay will reduce our ability to make distributions.

State and federal laws in this area are constantly evolving, and we intend to monitor these laws and take commercially reasonable steps to protect ourselves from the impact of
these laws, including where deemed necessary, obtaining environmental assessments of properties that we acquire; however, we will not obtain an independent third-party
environmental assessment for every property we acquire. In addition, any such assessment that we do obtain may not reveal all environmental liabilities or whether a prior
owner of a property created a material environmental condition not known to us. The cost of defending against claims of liability, of compliance with environmental regulatory
requirements, of remediating any contaminated property, or of paying personal injury claims would materially adversely affect our business, assets or results of operations and,
consequently, amounts available for distribution.

Our focus on the energy infrastructure sector will subject us to more risks than if we were broadly diversified.
Because we specifically focus on the energy infrastructure sector, investments in our common stock may present more risks than if we were broadly diversified over numerous
sectors of the economy. Therefore, a downturn in the U.S. energy infrastructure sector would have a larger impact on us than on a company that does not concentrate in one
sector of the economy. The energy infrastructure sector can be significantly affected by the supply of and demand for specific products and services; the supply and demand for
crude oil, natural gas, and other energy commodities; the price of crude oil, natural gas, and other energy commodities; exploration, production and other capital expenditures;
government regulation; world and regional events and economic conditions.
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Energy infrastructure companies are subject to variations in the supply and demand of various energy commodities.
A decrease in the production of natural gas, natural gas liquids, crude oil, coal, refined petroleum products or other such commodities, or a decrease in the volume of such
commodities available for transportation, mining, processing, storage or distribution, may adversely impact the financial performance of companies in the energy infrastructure
sector. Production declines and volume decreases could be caused by various factors, including catastrophic events affecting production, depletion of resources, labor
difficulties, political events, OPEC actions, environmental proceedings, increased regulations, equipment failures and unexpected maintenance problems, failure to obtain
necessary permits, unscheduled outages, unanticipated expenses, inability to successfully carry out new construction or acquisitions, import supply disruption, increased
competition from alternative energy sources or related commodity prices. Alternatively, a sustained decline in demand for such commodities could also adversely affect the
financial performance of companies in the energy infrastructure sector. Factors that could lead to a decline in demand include economic recession or other adverse economic
conditions, higher fuel taxes or governmental regulations, increases in fuel economy, consumer shifts to the use of alternative fuel sources, changes in commodity prices or
weather. Factors that could lead to a decrease in market demand include a recession or other adverse economic conditions, an increase in the market price of the underlying
commodity, higher taxes or other regulatory actions that increase costs, or a shift in consumer demand for such products. Demand may also be adversely impacted by consumer
sentiment with respect to global warming and/or by any state or federal legislation intended to promote the use of alternative energy sources such as bio-fuels, solar and wind.
Should energy infrastructure companies experience variations in supply and demand as described above, the resulting decline in operating or financial performance could
impact the value or quality of our assets.

Many companies in the energy infrastructure sector are subject to the risk that they, or their customers, will be unable to replace depleted reserves of energy commodities.
Many companies in the energy infrastructure sector are either (i) engaged in the production of natural gas liquids, refined petroleum products, or aggregates such as crushed
stone, sand and gravel, or (ii) are engaged in transporting, storing, distributing and processing these items on behalf of producers. To maintain or grow their revenues, many
customers of these companies need to maintain or expand their reserves through exploration of new sources of supply, through the development of existing sources, through
acquisitions, or through long-term contracts to acquire reserves. The financial performance of companies in the energy infrastructure sector, which we expect to comprise all of
the tenants for the properties in which we plan to invest, may be adversely affected if the companies to which they provide service are unable to cost-effectively acquire
additional reserves sufficient to replace the natural decline. These adverse impacts on our tenants also could adversely impact the value or quality of our assets.

Energy infrastructure companies are and will be subject to extensive regulation because of their participation in the energy infrastructure sector, which could adversely
impact the business and financial performance of our tenants and the value of our assets.
Companies in the energy infrastructure sector are subject to significant federal, state and local government regulation in virtually every aspect of their operations, including how
facilities are constructed, maintained and operated, environmental and safety controls, and the prices they may charge for the products and services they provide. Various
governmental authorities have the power to enforce compliance with these regulations and the permits issued under them, and violators are subject to administrative, civil and
criminal penalties, including civil fines, injunctions or both. Stricter laws, regulations or enforcement policies could be enacted in the future that likely would increase
compliance costs, which could adversely affect the business and financial performance of our tenants in the energy infrastructure sector and the value or quality of our assets.

Energy infrastructure companies are and will be subject to the risk of fluctuations in commodity prices.
The operations and financial performance of companies in the energy infrastructure sector may be directly affected by energy commodity prices, especially those companies in
the energy infrastructure sector owning the underlying energy commodity. Commodity prices fluctuate for several reasons, including changes in market and economic
conditions, the impact of weather on demand or supply, levels of domestic production and imported commodities, energy conservation, domestic and foreign governmental
regulation and taxation and the availability of local, intrastate and interstate transportation systems. Volatility of commodity prices, which may lead to a reduction in production
or supply, may also negatively impact the performance of companies in the energy infrastructure sector that are solely involved in the transportation, processing, storing,
distribution or marketing of commodities. Volatility of commodity prices may also make it more difficult for companies in the energy infrastructure sector to raise capital to the
extent the market perceives that their performance may be tied directly or indirectly to commodity prices. Historically, energy commodity prices have been cyclical and
exhibited significant volatility. Should energy infrastructure companies experience variations in supply and demand as described above, the resulting decline in operating or
financial performance could impact the value or quality of our assets.
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Energy infrastructure companies are and will be subject to the risk of extreme weather patterns.
Extreme weather patterns, such as prolonged or abnormal seasons, or specific events, such as hurricanes, could result in significant volatility in the supply of energy and power.
This volatility may create fluctuations in commodity prices and earnings of companies in the energy infrastructure sector. Moreover, any extreme weather events, such as
hurricanes, could adversely impact the assets and valuation of our real property assets or investment securities.

Additional Risks to Common Stockholders
Our use of leverage increases the risk of investing in our securities and will increase the costs borne by common stockholders.
Our use of leverage through the issuance of any preferred stock or debt securities, and any additional borrowings or other transactions involving indebtedness (other than for
temporary or emergency purposes) are or would be considered “senior securities” and create risks. Leverage is a speculative technique that may adversely affect common
stockholders. If the return on securities acquired with borrowed funds or other leverage proceeds does not exceed the cost of the leverage, the use of leverage could cause us to
lose money.

Our issuance of senior securities involves offering expenses and other costs, including interest payments, which are borne indirectly by our common stockholders. Fluctuations
in interest rates could increase interest or dividend payments on our senior securities, and could reduce cash available for distribution on common stock. Increased operating
costs, including the financing cost associated with any leverage, may reduce our total return to common stockholders.

Rating agency guidelines applicable to any senior securities may impose asset coverage requirements, dividend limitations, voting right requirements (in the case of the senior
equity securities), and restrictions on our portfolio composition and our use of certain investment techniques and strategies. The terms of any senior securities or other
borrowings may impose additional requirements, restrictions and limitations that are more stringent than those required by a rating agency that rates outstanding senior
securities. These requirements may have an adverse effect on us and may affect our ability to pay distributions on common stock and preferred stock. To the extent necessary,
we may redeem our senior securities to maintain the required asset coverage. Doing so may require that we liquidate investments at a time when it would not otherwise be
desirable to do so.

In addition, lenders from whom we may borrow money or holders of our debt securities may have fixed dollar claims on our assets that are superior to the claims of our
stockholders, and we have granted, and may in the future grant, a security interest in our assets in connection with our debt. In the case of a liquidation event, those lenders or
note holders would receive proceeds before our stockholders. If the value of our assets increases, then leveraging would cause the book value of our common stock to increase
more than it otherwise would have had we not leveraged. Conversely, if the value of our assets decreases, leveraging would cause the book value of our common stock to
decline more than it otherwise would have had we not leveraged. Similarly, any increase in our revenue in excess of interest expense on our borrowed funds would cause our
net income to increase more than it would without the leverage. Any decrease in our revenue would cause our net income to decline more than it would have had we not
borrowed funds and could negatively affect our ability to make distributions on our common stock. Our ability to service any debt that we incur will depend largely on our
financial performance and the performance of our portfolio companies and will be subject to prevailing economic conditions and competitive pressures.

Sales of our common stock may put pressure on our stock price.
The sale of our common stock (or the perception that such sales may occur) may have an adverse effect on prices in the secondary market for our common stock. An increase in
the number of shares of common stock available may put downward pressure on the market price for our common stock and make it more difficult for stockholders to sell their
shares. These sales also might make it more difficult for us to sell additional equity securities in the future at a time and price we deem appropriate.

Additional Risks to Senior Security Holders
Generally, an investment in our senior securities is subject to the following risks:
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We will be subject to interest rate risk.
Distributions and interest payable on our senior securities are subject to interest rate risk. To the extent that distributions or interest on such securities are based on short-term
rates, our leverage costs may rise so that the amount of dividends or interest due to holders of senior securities would exceed available cash flow. To the extent that any of our
leverage costs are fixed, our leverage costs may increase when our senior securities mature. This might require us to sell investments at a time when we would otherwise not do
so, which may affect adversely our future ability to generate cash flow.

Preferred stock will be junior to any outstanding notes or other borrowings.
Preferred stock will be junior in liquidation and with respect to distribution rights to debt securities and any other borrowings. Senior securities representing indebtedness may
constitute a substantial lien and burden on preferred stock by reason of their prior claim against our income and against our net assets in liquidation. We may not be permitted
to declare dividends or other distributions with respect to any series of preferred stock unless at such time we meet applicable asset coverage requirements and the payment of
principal or interest is not in default with respect to any notes or other borrowings.

Our debt securities, upon issuance, are expected to be unsecured obligations and, upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, will rank: (1) senior to all of our outstanding
common stock and any outstanding preferred stock; (2) on a parity with any of our unsecured creditors and any unsecured senior securities representing our indebtedness; and
(3) junior to any of our secured creditors. Secured creditors of ours may include, without limitation, parties entering into interest rate swap, floor or cap transactions, or other
similar transactions with us that create liens, pledges, charges, security interests, security agreements or other encumbrances on our assets.

We may be subject to ratings and asset coverage risk.
To the extent that senior securities are rated, a rating does not eliminate or necessarily mitigate the risks of investing in our senior securities, and a rating may not fully or
accurately reflect all of the credit and market risks associated with a security. A rating agency could downgrade the rating of our shares of preferred stock or debt securities,
which may make such securities less liquid at an auction or in the secondary market, though probably with higher resulting interest rates. If a rating agency downgrades, or
indicates a potential downgrade to, the rating assigned to a senior security, we may alter our portfolio or redeem a portion of our senior securities. We may voluntarily redeem a
senior security under certain circumstances to the extent permitted by its governing documents.

Inflation may negatively impact our senior securities.
Inflation is the reduction in the purchasing power of money resulting from an increase in the price of goods and services. Inflation risk is the risk that the inflation adjusted or
“real” value of an investment in preferred stock or debt securities or the income from that investment will be worth less in the future. As inflation occurs, the real value of the
preferred stock or debt securities and the dividend payable to holders of preferred stock or interest payable to holders of debt securities declines.

Additional Risks Related to Warrants and Subscription Rights
An active public market for our warrants or subscription rights may not develop.
Currently, no public market exists for our warrants or for subscription rights we may issue. We cannot assure you that one will develop or be sustained. We do not currently
intend to apply to list the warrants, and may not list any subscription rights, on any national securities exchange or automated quotation system.

There may be dilution of the value of our common stock when our warrants or subscription rights are exercised or if we issue common stock below book value.
The issuance of additional common stock upon the exercise of any warrants or subscription rights, if the warrants or subscription rights are exercised at a time when the exercise
price is less than the book value per share of our common stock, will have a dilutive effect on the value of our common stock.

The warrants or subscription rights may have no value in bankruptcy.
In the event a bankruptcy or reorganization is commenced by or against us, a bankruptcy court may hold that unexercised warrants or subscription rights are executory contracts
subject to rejection by us with approval of the bankruptcy court. As a result, holders of warrants or subscription rights may, even if sufficient funds are available, not be entitled
to receive any consideration or may receive an amount less than they would be entitled to if they had exercised their warrants or subscription rights prior to the commencement
of any such bankruptcy or reorganization.

As a holder of warrants or subscription rights, you will not receive distributions on our common stock.
Holders of warrants or subscription rights will not have the right to receive any distributions and will not have any voting rights so long as their warrants or subscription rights
are unexercised.
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 ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

 ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
On December 20, 2012, subsequent to our fiscal year end, Pinedale LP closed on a Purchase and Sale Agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ultra Petroleum, relating to
the Acquisition of the Pinedale LGS assets.

Construction of the Pinedale LGS was completed in 2010 and consists of more than 150 miles of pipelines with 107 receipt points, and four central storage facilities that are
utilized by Ultra Petroleum as a method for the gathering of a commingled hydrocarbon stream, then this stream is separated into its components of water, condensate and
natural gas, and subsequently storing, selling or disposing of these separated components. Prior to entering the LGS, Ultra Petroleum will separate the produced stream into
wellhead natural gas and the liquids stream. The wellhead natural gas is then transported to market by a third-party. The remaining liquid, primarily water, is transported by
Ultra Petroleum through the Pinedale LGS to one of its four central storage facilities where it is separated into separate components. Condensate is a valuable hydrocarbon
commodity that is sold by Ultra Petroleum; water is transported to disposal wells or a treatment facility for re-use; and natural gas sold by Ultra Petroleum or otherwise used by
Ultra Petroleum for fueling onsite operational equipment. Ultra Petroleum’s non-operating working interest partners in the Pinedale field where the LGS is located pay Ultra
Petroleum a fee for the use of Ultra Petroleum’s LGS. As of June 30, 2012, Ultra Petroleum held an approximately 70% average working interest among the land it operates in
the Pinedale field. To date, no major operational issues have been reported with respect to the LGS.

The Pinedale LGS has a current capacity of approximately 45,000 barrels per day and average throughput during the four quarters ended September 30, 2012 of approximately
36,000 barrels per day. The underground pipelines constituting the majority of the Pinedale LGS and certain other components, such as the separators, have useful lives that
extend beyond the initial term of the Lease Agreement. We believe that the Pinedale LGS is capable of being expanded at a relatively low incremental cost by, for example,
adding additional separating equipment.

Ultra Petroleum was incorporated in 1979 and is an independent oil and gas company engaged in the development, production, operation, exploration and acquisition of oil and
natural gas properties. Ultra Petroleum leases approximately 93,000 gross (53,000 net) acres in and around the Pinedale and Jonah natural gas fields of the Greater Green River
Basin in southwest Wyoming. The most recently available EIA data, dated 2009, indicated that the Pinedale field was among the top five U.S. natural gas plays based on proved
reserves. As of December 31, 2011, Ultra Petroleum held an approximately 50% working interest in approximately 1,700 producing wells in these fields. The Pinedale and
Jonah fields have estimated natural gas reserves of over 48 Tcfe as of December 31, 2011.

As of December 31, 2011, Ultra Petroleum had an estimated 4.3 Tcfe of proved reserves and 10.2 Tcfe of proved, probable and possible (3P) reserves in the Pinedale and Jonah
fields. Ultra Petroleum’s third-party reservoir engineering firm, Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc., has identified an inventory of over 5,000 economic, future drilling
locations.

Most of Ultra Petroleum’s exploration and development in the Pinedale field takes place on land under the jurisdiction of the BLM. The BLM has the authority to approve or
deny oil and gas leases or to impose environmental restrictions on leases where appropriate. The BLM issued the Pinedale Record of Decision (“ROD”) in September 2008.
Under the ROD, Ultra Petroleum gained year-round access to the Pinedale field for drilling and completion activities in development areas, provided Ultra Petroleum conducts
an environmental mitigation effort, which includes the use of a liquids gathering system. This additional access resulted in increased drilling efficiencies and allowed for
accelerated development of the field.

Eastern Interconnect Project
We own 100 percent of a 40 percent undivided interest in the EIP. The EIP transmission assets move electricity across New Mexico between Albuquerque and Clovis. The
physical assets include 216 miles of 345 kilovolts transmission lines, towers, easement rights, converters and other grid support components.
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On November 1, 2012 we entered into the Agreement with PNM to sell our 40 percent undivided interest in the EIP upon lease termination on April 1, 2015 for $7.68 million.
Per the Agreement, PNM will also accelerate its remaining lease payments to us. Both lease payments due in 2013 were paid to us upon execution of the definitive Agreement
on November 1, 2012. In addition, per the Agreement, PNM paid $100,000 during the fourth quarter to compensate us for legal costs resulting from its filings with FERC. The
three remaining lease payments due April 1, 2014, October 1, 2014 and April 1, 2015 will be paid on January 1, 2014 in full.

We changed our estimated residual value used to calculate depreciation of the EIP which will result in higher depreciation expenses beginning in November of 2012 through the
expiration of the lease in April 2015. The incremental depreciation amounts to approximately $393,000 per quarter.

The negotiation of the end-of-lease purchase option was prompted in part by a directive from the FERC. FERC directed PNM, in consultation with us, to identify the party that
would provide transmission service over the leased portion of the EIP beyond the lease expiration in 2015. The Agreement completes the response to FERC’s order.

Wholly Owned Subsidiary—Mowood
We hold indirectly 100 percent of the equity interests in Mowood. Mowood is the holding company of Omega. Omega is a natural gas service provider located primarily on the
Fort Leonard Wood military post in south-central Missouri. Omega has a contract with the Department of Defense to provide natural gas and gas distribution services to Fort
Leonard Wood through Omega’s approximate 70 mile pipeline distribution system on the post. In addition, Omega provides natural gas marketing services to several customers
in the surrounding area.

Principal Location
Our principal executive office is located at 4200 W. 115th Street, Suite 210, Leawood, Kansas 66211.

 ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not currently subject to any material legal proceedings, nor, to our knowledge, is any material legal proceeding threatened against us.

 ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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 PART II

 ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES
Price Range of Common Stock
Since December 3, 2012, the Company’s common stock has been traded on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”), under the symbol “CORR”. Previously the common
stock was traded on the NYSE under the symbol “TTO”. The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices of our common shares and the distributions
declared by us for each fiscal quarter for our two most recent fiscal years:
 

       Cash  
   Price Range    Distribution 
   High    Low    per Share  
2011       
First quarter   $8.50    $6.79    $ 0.1000  
Second quarter   $9.27    $8.17    $ 0.1000  
Third quarter   $9.02    $7.41    $ 0.1000  
Fourth quarter   $8.38    $6.59    $ 0.1100  

2012       
First quarter   $9.44    $7.24    $ 0.1100  
Second quarter   $9.33    $7.93    $ 0.1100  
Third quarter   $9.44    $8.41    $ 0.1100  
Fourth quarter   $9.28    $8.26    $ 0.1100  

 
(1) Represents the distribution declared in the specified period.

The last reported price for our common stock as of December 31, 2012 was $6.03 per share. As of December 31, 2012, we had 29 stockholders of record.

Distributions
Our portfolio of real property assets and investment securities generates cash flow to us from which we expect to pay distributions to stockholders. At fiscal year-end 2012, the
most significant source of our stockholder distributions was the distributions from our investment securities. This information was utilized to provide the Board of Directors
with guidance regarding distribution payout. The amount of the distribution is recorded by the Company on the ex-dividend date.

The character of distributions made during the year may differ from their ultimate characterization for federal income tax purposes. On February 5, 2013, our Board of
Directors declared a $0.125 per share distribution to be paid on March 19, 2013 to stockholders of record on March 8, 2013. Although, there is no assurance that we will
continue to make regular distributions, we continue to believe that our investments should support sustainable 2013 distributions on a quarterly basis, and an estimated total
2013 annualized distributions of not less than $0.50 per share.

Federal and State Income Taxation
As a corporation, we are obligated to pay federal and state income tax on our taxable income. Our tax expense or benefit is included in the Consolidated Statements of Income.
Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for income tax purposes.

If we elect REIT status in the future, we will be taxed as a REIT rather than a C corporation and generally will not pay federal income tax on taxable income that is distributed
to our stockholders. Before withdrawal of the BDC election, our distributions from earnings and profits were treated as qualified dividend income (“QDI”) and return of capital.
Following the withdrawal, and assuming we subsequently elect REIT status, our distributions from earnings and profits will be treated as ordinary income and generally will not
qualify as QDI. We do not expect to qualify as a REIT prior to 2013, and therefore, our distributions would continue to be treated as QDI and return of capital. Thereafter, under
existing law, our distributions would be treated as ordinary income and return of capital.
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If we satisfy the REIT requirements throughout 2013, we expect to make an election to be treated as a REIT throughout 2013 by filing a Form 1120-REIT on or before
March 15, 2014, or such later date to which we have properly extended filing such return. If we elect REIT status in the future, we will be taxed as a REIT rather than a C
corporation and generally will not pay federal income tax on taxable income that is distributed to our stockholders. Currently, our distributions from earnings and profits are
treated as QDI and return of capital, with dividends received by corporate shareholders generally qualifying for the dividends received deduction (“DRD”). If we elect REIT
status, our distributions from earnings and profits will be treated as ordinary income and generally will not qualify as QDI and will not be qualifying for purposes of the DRD.
As a REIT, certain dividends related to long term capital gains may be taxed as capital gains dividends. If we make a REIT election, we will be subject to a corporate level tax
on certain built-in gains on certain assets if such assets are sold during the 10 year period following conversion. Built-in gain assets are assets whose fair market value exceeds
the REIT’s adjusted tax basis at the time of conversion. In addition, a REIT may not have any earnings and profits accumulated in a non-REIT year. Thus, upon conversion to a
REIT, the putative REIT is generally required to distribute to its stockholders all accumulated earnings and profits, if any. Such distribution would be taxable to the stockholders
as dividend income, and, as discussed above, may qualify as qualified dividend income for non-corporate stockholders and for the dividends received deduction for corporate
stockholders

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
We did not sell any securities during the year ended November 30, 2012 that were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
We did not repurchase any of our common shares during the year ended November 30, 2012.

Performance Graph
As a result of the Company’s withdrawal of its election to be regulated as a BDC and the anticipated liquidation of the securities portfolio, the performance comparable group
has also been revised to reflect a more appropriate set of benchmarks. As the Company intends to be treated as a REIT in the future, and is changing its focus to the acquisition
of real property energy infrastructure assets that are leased backed to operating companies such as utilities or other energy operators, it was determined that the FTSE NAREIT
Equity REIT Index (“FTSE NAREIT”), the Dow Jones Utilities Average Index (“DJ UTIL”), the S&P 500 (“SPX”), and the S&P Global Infrastructure Index (“SPGTINTR”),
are a more relevant set of indices. The graph assumes that, on February 2, 2007, a $100 investment was made in each of our common stock, FTSE NAREIT and the SPX, and
assumes the reinvestment of all cash dividends. The comparisons in the graph below are based on historical data and are not intended to forecast future performance of our
common stock.
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(1) Our shares began trading on the NYSE on February 2, 2007.

 ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The selected financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and
the financial statements and related notes included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Company’s consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mowood. See Note 2.B. in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further disclosure. Financial information presented below for
the years ended November 30, 2012, November 30, 2011, November 30, 2010, November 30, 2009 and November 30, 2008 has been derived from our financial statements
audited by Ernst & Young LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm. The historical data is not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for any future
period.

Results of operations for the years ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 and the financial position at November 30, 2012 and 2011 reflect the consolidation of the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, Mowood, effective, September 21, 2011.
 

   

Year Ended
November 30,

2012   

Year Ended
November 30,

2011   

Year Ended
November 30,

2010   

Year Ended
November 30,

2009   

Year Ended
November 30,

2008  
Income statement data:       
Sales revenue   $ 8,021,022   $ 2,161,723   $ —     $ —     $ —    
Lease income    2,552,975    1,063,740    —      —      —    

  

Total revenue    10,573,997    3,225,463    —      —      —    
  

Cost of sales    6,078,102    1,689,374    —      —      —    
Management fees, net of expense reimbursements    1,046,796    968,163    925,820    1,126,327    1,620,498  
All other expenses    3,692,803    2,001,839    926,937    911,779    1,037,624  

  

Total expenses    10,817,701    4,659,376    1,852,757    2,038,106    2,658,122  
  

Loss from operations, before income taxes    (243,704)   (1,433,913)   (1,852,757)   (2,038,106)   (2,658,122) 
  

Realized and unrealized gain (loss) on securities transactions, before
income taxes    20,181,877    4,583,748    19,446,071    1,126,632    (32,864,923) 
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Net distributions and dividend income from investments    (279,395)   651,673    1,853,247    1,743,017    2,914,966  
Other income    —      40,000    38,580    61,514    28,987  
Interest Expense    (81,123)   (36,508)   (45,619)   (627,707)   (1,650,926) 

  

Total other income (loss) and expense, net, before income taxes    19,821,359    5,238,913    21,292,279    2,303,456    (31,571,896) 
  

Income before income taxes    19,577,655    3,805,000    19,439,522    265,350    (34,230,018) 
  

Current and deferred tax (expense) benefit, net    (7,228,934)   (882,857)   (4,772,648)   (254,356)   9,859,785  
  

Net income (loss)   $12,348,721   $2,922,143   $14,666,874   $ 10,994   $(24,370,233) 
  

Per common share data:       
Distributions to common stockholders   $ 0.44   $ 0.41   $ 0.43   $ 0.62   $ 1.04  
Earnings (loss) per common share:       

Basic and diluted   $ 1.34    0.32   $ 1.61   $ 0.00   $ (2.74) 
 

   
November 30,

2012    
November 30,

2011    
November 30,

2010    
November 30,

2009    
November 30,

2008  
Balance sheet data:           
Securities investments   $ 75,086,032    $ 68,894,372    $ 93,736,230    $ 82,483,094    $ 105,790,858  
Leased property, net    12,995,169     13,832,540     —       —       —    
Property and equipment, net    3,589,022     3,842,675     —       —       —    
Other assets    19,761,610     7,717,809     2,305,163     6,994,959     6,530,199  

          

Total assets   $ 111,431,833    $ 94,287,396    $ 96,041,393    $ 89,478,053    $ 112,321,057  
          

Long-term debt    —       2,279,883     —       —       —    
Other liabilities    12,576,048     1,581,200     562,220     5,181,468     23,095,757  

          

Total liabilities    12,576,048     3,861,083     562,220     5,181,468     23,095,757  
          

Total stockholders’ equity   $ 98,855,785    $ 90,426,313    $ 95,479,173    $ 84,296,585    $ 89,225,300  
          

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 111,431,833    $ 94,287,396    $ 96,041,393    $ 89,478,053    $ 112,321,057  
          

 
(1) Management fee analysis for the years ending:
 

   
November 30,

2012    
November 30,

2011   
November 30,

2010   
November 30,

2009   
November 30,

2008  
Gross Management Fees   $1,046,796    $1,452,255   $1,233,823   $1,351,593   $2,313,731  
Capital Gain Incentive Fees Payable    —       —      —      —      (307,611) 
Expense Reimbursements      (484,092)   (308,003)   (225,266)   (385,622) 

    

Net Management Fees   $1,046,796    $ 968,163   $ 925,820   $1,126,327   $1,620,498  
    

The payable for capital gain incentive fees for the year-ended November 30, 2008, was a result of the increase or decrease in the fair value of investments and realized gains or
losses from investments. Pursuant to the previous Investment Advisory Agreement with TCA, which was terminated as of November 30, 2011, the capital gain incentive fee
was paid annually only if there were realization events and only if the calculation defined in the agreement resulted in an amount due. No capital gain incentive fees were due or
payable since the initial commencement of operations.
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(2) Other expense analysis for the years ending:
 

   
November 30,

2012    
November 30,

2011    
November 30,

2010    
November 30,

2009    
November 30,

2008  
Operating expenses   $3,314,969    $1,363,654    $ 926,937    $ 911,779    $1,037,624  
Asset acquisition expenses    377,834     638,185     —       —       —    

          

Total Other Expenses   $3,692,803    $2,001,839    $ 926,937    $ 911,779    $1,037,624  
          

Operating expense for the years ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 reflects the consolidation of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Mowood, effective, September 21,
2011. In addition, the variance in operating expenses and asset acquisition expenses is due to the combination of increased legal and external audit and tax fees associated with
the various interactions with the SEC, EIP and PNM related to pending sale transaction, REIT planning, the new XBRL filing requirements, and the pursuit of asset acquisitions
(EIP project during 2011 and Ultra during 2012). Other expenses do not include current and deferred income taxes.

(3) For the year ended November 30, 2008, the Company had unrealized depreciation of $41,581,120 (before deferred taxes) and realized gains of $8,716,197 (before deferred
taxes). The unrealized depreciation was triggered by write-downs of the Company’s public and private portfolio holdings; generally resulting from the broad, global economic
recession, major institution failures and bailouts and the accompanying collapse of most major asset class valuations in the latter part of the year. The realized gains were
attributable to the LONESTAR and Millennium realization events and the VantaCore debt redemption.

For the year ended November 30, 2009, the Company had unrealized appreciation of $24,247,380 (before deferred taxes) and realized losses of $23,120,748 (before deferred
taxes). The unrealized appreciation was driven by increased fair values of portfolio holdings resulting from a significant rebound in the MLP sector from the downturn in late
2008. During the credit crisis of 2008 and 2009, access to credit through the bank market became more restrictive and expensive. During that time, the Company was not able to
renew its credit facility and liquidated a portion of its portfolio holdings in order to pay off the credit facility, resulting in the recognition of realized losses.

For the year ended November 30, 2010, the Company had unrealized appreciation of $30,564,590 (before deferred taxes) and realized losses of $11,118,519 (before deferred
taxes). The unrealized appreciation was driven by primarily by an increase in the fair value of its private holdings, most notably International Resource Partners which increased
approximately $18 million during the year. Quest Midstream Partners completed its transformation into a publicly traded C-corp, PostRock Energy Corp. (NASDAQ: PSTR) in
March 2010. PSTR was a new corporation formed for the purpose of wholly owning all three Quest entities. Upon closing of the merger, the Company received nearly half a
million freely tradable common units of PSTR in exchange for its common units of Quest Midstream. Subsequently, the stock price declined significantly and the Company
sold its units in an orderly liquidation, resulting in the recognition of realized losses.

For the year ended November 30, 2011, the Company had unrealized depreciation of $22,268,455 (before deferred taxes) and realized gains of $26,852,203 (before deferred
taxes). The unrealized depreciation and realized gains were driven by primarily by International Resource Partners.

For the year ended November 30, 2012, the Company had unrealized appreciation of $4,352,628 (before deferred taxes) and realized gains of $15,829,249 (before deferred
taxes). The realized gain was driven primarily by the sale of High Sierra during the second quarter.

(4) The character of distributions made during the year may differ from the ultimate characterization for federal income tax purposes. For the year ended November 30, 2012,
the Company’s distributions, for book and tax purposes, were comprised of 100 percent return of capital. For the year ended November 30, 2011, the Company’s distributions
for tax purposes were comprised of 100 percent investment income and the source of the distributions for book purposes was 100 percent return of capital. For the year ended
November 30, 2010, the Company’s distributions, for book and tax purposes, were comprised of 100 percent return of capital. For the year ended November 30, 2009, the
Company’s distributions, for book and tax purposes, were comprised of 100 percent return of capital. For the year ended November 30, 2008, the Company’s distributions, for
book purposes, were comprised of 100 percent return of capital, and for tax purposes were comprised of 3.2 percent investment income and 96.8 percent return of capital.
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 ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K may be deemed “forward looking statements” within the meaning of the federal
securities laws. In many cases, these forward looking statements may be identified by the use of words such as “will,” “may,” “should,” “could,” “believes,” “expects,”
“anticipates,” “estimates,” “intends,” “projects,” “goals,” “objectives,” “targets,” “predicts,” “plans,” “seeks,” or similar expressions. Any forward-looking statement
speaks only as of the date on which it is made and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the factors discussed throughout this report.

Although we believe the expectations reflected in any forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, forward-looking statements are not guarantees of
future performance or results and we can give no assurance that these expectations will be attained. Our actual results may differ materially from those indicated by these
forward-looking statements due to a variety of known and unknown risks and uncertainties. In addition to the risk factors discussed in Part I, Item 1A of this report, such known
risks and uncertainties include, without limitation:
 

 •  the ability of our tenants to make payments under their respective leases, our reliance on certain major tenants and our ability to re-lease properties that are
currently vacant or that become vacant;

 

 •  our ability to obtain suitable tenants for our properties;
 

 •  changes in general economic conditions;
 

 •  the inherent risks associated with owning real estate, including local real estate market conditions, governing laws and regulations and illiquidity of real estate
investments;

 

 •  our ability to sell properties at an attractive price;
 

 •  our ability to repay debt financing obligations;
 

 •  our ability to refinance amounts outstanding under our credit facilities at maturity on terms favorable to us;
 

 •  the loss of any member of our management team;
 

 •  our ability to comply with certain debt covenants;
 

 •  our ability to integrate acquired properties and operations into existing operations;
 

 •  our continued ability to access the debt or equity markets;
 

 •  the availability of other debt and equity financing alternatives;
 

 •  market conditions affecting our debt and equity securities;
 

 •  changes in interest rates under our current credit facility and under any additional variable rate debt arrangements that we may enter into in the future;
 

 •  our ability to successfully implement our selective acquisition strategy;
 

 •  our ability to maintain internal controls and processes to ensure all transactions are accounted for properly, all relevant disclosures and filings are timely made
in accordance with all rules and regulations, and any potential fraud or embezzlement is thwarted or detected;

 

 •  changes in federal or state tax rules or regulations that could have adverse tax consequences;
 

 •  declines in the market value of our investment securities; and
 

 •  our ability to qualify as a real estate investment trust for federal income tax purposes.

This list of risks and uncertainties is only a summary and is not intended to be exhaustive. We disclaim any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements to
reflect actual results or changes in the factors affecting the forward-looking information.

Business Objective
Our goal is to acquire real property assets from energy companies that simultaneously lease the properties back from us under long-term triple net leases, under which the
tenants are required to pay all operating expenses of a property, including, but not limited to, real estate taxes, assessments and other governmental charges, insurance, utilities,
repairs and maintenance expenses.

We seek lease structures that provide base rents that are fixed and determinable, with escalators dependent upon increases in the Consumer Price Index. Leases may also include
participating rent features that allow for us to participate in the financial performance and/or value of the underlying energy infrastructure real property asset.
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Our objective is to provide our stockholders a stable distribution with long-term growth prospects of 1-3%. In order to achieve that objective, we target annualized total returns
from our current operations and infrastructure assets of 8-10% on average, over the long term. There is no assurance that our targets will be met in any particular period.

Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements include CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, as of November 30, 2012, and its wholly-owned portfolio company, Mowood, LLC
(“Mowood”). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Critical Accounting Policies
The financial statements included in this report are based on the selection and application of critical accounting policies, which require management to make significant
estimates and assumptions. Critical accounting policies are those that are both important to the presentation of our financial condition and results of operations and require
management’s most difficult, complex or subjective judgments. The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, recognition of distribution income and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, included in this report, further details information related to our significant accounting policies.

Investment Securities
Our investments in securities are classified as either trading or other equity securities:
 

 •  Trading securities – our publicly traded equity securities are classified as trading securities and are reported at fair value because we intend to sell these securities in order
to acquire real asset investments.

 

 •  Other equity securities represent interests in private companies for which we have elected to report these at fair value under the fair value option.

Securities transactions are accounted for on the date the securities are purchased or sold (trade date). Realized gains and losses are reported on an identified cost basis.

Our other equity securities are primarily in illiquid securities of privately-held companies that are generally subject to restrictions on resale, have no established trading market
and are fair valued on a quarterly basis. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the fair values of such securities, which are determined in accordance with procedures
approved by our Board of Directors, may differ materially from the values that would have been used had a ready market existed for the investments.

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on trading securities and other equity securities – Changes in the fair values of the Company’s securities during the period reported and
the gains or losses realized upon sale of securities during the period are reflected as other income within the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Across all long-lived assets and intangibles depreciation is computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful life of each asset. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as incurred, and improvements, which extend the useful lives of
assets, are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining estimated useful life of the asset.

We initially record long-lived assets at their acquisition cost, unless the transaction is accounted for as a business combination. If the transaction is accounted for as a business
combination, we allocate the purchase price to the acquired tangible and intangible assets and liabilities based on their estimated fair values. We determine the fair values of
assets and liabilities based on discounted cash flow models using current market assumptions, appraisals, recent transactions involving similar assets or liabilities and/or other
objective evidence, and depreciates the asset values over the estimated remaining useful lives.
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We may acquire long-lived assets that are subject to an existing lease contract with the seller or other lessee party and we may assume outstanding debt of the seller as part of
the consideration paid. If, at the time of acquisition, the existing lease or debt contract is not at current market terms, we will record an asset or liability at the time of acquisition
representing the amount by which the fair value of the lease or debt contract differs from its contractual value. Such amount is then amortized over the remaining contract term
as an adjustment to the related lease revenue or interest expense.

We periodically review our long-lived assets, primarily real estate, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets
may not be recoverable. Our review involves comparing current and future operating performance of the assets, the most significant of which is undiscounted operating cash
flows, to the carrying value of the assets.

Revenue Recognition
Specific policies for our revenue and other income items are as follows:
 

 

•  Sales Revenue – Mowood’s subsidiary, Omega, acting as a principal, provides for transportation services and natural gas supply for its customers on a firm basis.
In addition, Omega is paid fees for the operation and maintenance of its natural gas distribution system, including any necessary expansion of the distribution
system. Omega is responsible for the coordination, supervision and quality of the expansions while actual construction is generally performed by third party
contractors. Revenues related to natural gas distribution are recognized upon delivery of natural gas and upon the substantial performance of management and
supervision services related to the expansion of the natural gas distribution system. Revenues from expansion efforts are recognized in accordance with GAAP
using either a completed contract or percentage of completion method based on the level and volume of estimates utilized, as well as the certainty or uncertainty
of our ability to collect those revenues.

 

 
•  Lease Income – Income related to our leased property is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease when collectability is reasonably assured.

Rental payments on the leased property are typically received on a semi-annual basis and are included as lease income within the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Income.

 

 

•  Dividends and distributions from investments  – Dividends and distributions from investments are recorded on their ex-dates and are reflected as other income
within the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. Distributions received from our investments generally are characterized as ordinary income, capital
gains and distributions received from investment securities. The portion characterized as return of capital is paid by our investees from their cash flow from
operations. We record investment income, capital gains and distributions received from investment securities based on estimates made at the time such
distributions are received. Such estimates are based on information available from each company and/or other industry sources. These estimates may subsequently
be revised based on information received from the portfolio entities after their tax reporting periods are concluded, as the actual character of these distributions is
not known until after our fiscal year end.

 

 

•  Securities Transactions and Investment Income Recognition – Securities transactions are accounted for on the date the securities are purchased or sold (trade date).
Realized gains and losses are reported on an identified cost basis. Distributions received from our equity investments generally are comprised of ordinary income,
capital gains and distributions received from investment securities from the portfolio company. The Company records investment income and return of capital
based on estimates made at the time such distributions are received. Such estimates are based on information available from each portfolio company and/or other
industry sources. These estimates may subsequently be revised based on information received

Cost of Sales
Included in our cost of sales are the amounts paid for natural gas and propane, along with related transportation costs, which are delivered to customers, as well as the cost of
material and labor related to the expansion of the natural gas distribution system.

Federal and State Income Taxation
Currently, as a corporation, we are obligated to pay federal and state income tax on our taxable income. Our tax expense or benefit is included in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for income tax purposes.
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If we satisfy the REIT requirements throughout 2013, we expect to make an election to be treated as a REIT for tax purposes for 2013 by filing a Form 1120-REIT on or before
March 15, 2014, or such later date to which we have properly extended filing such income tax return. In any event, we will generally seek to acquire assets that allow for
significant tax depreciation in order to shield all or a significant portion of our taxable income such that our ability to pay distributions to our stockholders will not be materially
impacted by taxes in advance of our electing to be taxed as a REIT. Regardless of our tax status, an investment in us will generally not result in Unrelated Business Taxable
Income.

Change in Fiscal Year End
On February 5, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a change in the Company’s fiscal year end from November 30 to December 31. This change to the
calendar year reporting cycle began January 1, 2013. As a result of the change, the Company will be reporting a December 2012 fiscal month transition period, which will be
separately reported in the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the calendar quarter ending March 31, 2013 and in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the calendar year ending December 31, 2013.

Performance Review
Our stock price increased approximately 8.5 percent this year, closing at $8.46 on November 30, 2012 compared to $7.80 on November 30, 2011. This contributed to a total
investment return based on market value and assuming reinvestment of distributions of approximately 14.1 percent for the year ended November 30, 2012. Subsequent to year
end, we completed a follow on offering which totaled 14,950,000 million shares of common stock at a net offering price of $5.66 per share. We used approximately $73.6
million of the offering proceeds to fund Acquisition of the LGS.

Results of Operations
Net Sales and Revenues/Operating Income (Loss) before Income Taxes/Other Income and Expense/Income before Income Taxes
Following is a comparison of revenues, expenses, operating income (loss) before income taxes, other income and expense, and income before income taxes for the years
ended November 30, 2012 and November 30, 2011:
 

  
For the Year Ended

November 30,  
  2012   2011  
OPERATIONS   
Sales revenue  $ 8,021,022   $ 2,161,723  
Lease revenue   2,552,975    1,063,740  

Total Revenue   10,573,997    3,225,463  
Expenses   10,817,701    4,659,376  
Loss from Operations, before Income Taxes   (243,704)   (1,433,913) 
Other Income and Expense   
Net distributions and dividend income on securities   (279,395)   651,673  
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on securities   20,181,877    4,583,748  
Other Income   —      40,000  
Interest Expense   (81,123)   (36,508) 

Total Other Income and Expense, net   19,821,359    5,238,913  
Income before Income Taxes  $19,577,655   $ 3,805,000  
Net earnings per share (basic and diluted)  $ 1.34   $ 0 .32  
Weighted Average Shares   9,182,425    9,159,809  

Revenue from Operations:
Total reported revenue from operations for the year ended November 30, 2012 was approximately $10.57 million and revenue for the year ended November 30, 2011 was $3.22
million, respectively. This represents sales revenue from our wholly owned subsidiary, Mowood, for the period from September 21, 2011 through November 30, 2011 as well as
lease income from our Public Service Company of New Mexico (EIP) investment during the year.
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•  Sales revenue relating to Mowood operations for the years ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 were approximately $8.02 million and $2.16 million, respectively.
Mowood was consolidated as of September 21, 2011 as a result of the Company’s withdrawal as a BDC. Had Mowood been consolidated as an operating entity
during all of fiscal year 2011, sales revenue of approximately $9.44 million would have been reflected. The revenue reduction of approximately 15 percent for the
year 2012 revenues compared to the year 2011 revenues is largely attributable to the decrease in volumes sold as a result of lower gas usage due to warmer weather
in 2012.

 

 

•  Lease revenue is generated from our investment in EIP. The Company’s investment in EIP is leased under net operating leases with various terms. Lease revenue
for the years ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 were approximately $2.55 million and $1.06 million, respectively. The revenue increase of approximately 140
percent is attributable to the June 30, 2011 acquisition date of the lease, and therefore only five months of lease activity reported for the year ended November 30,
2011.

 

 •  As of November 30, 2012, 100 percent of the Company’s leased property, based on the gross book value of real estate investments, was leased to Public
Service Company of New Mexico (“PNM”).

 

 •  Approximately 24 percent and 33 percent of the Company’s total revenues from operations were derived from PNM for the years ended November 30,
2012 and 2011, respectively.

For 2013, revenue from operations will also include lease revenue from the LGS. The LGS is leased under a triple net operating lease that includes provisions for participating
rent; lease revenue related to the LGS is expected to be based on an annual minimum base rent of $20 million per year, or $1.67 million per month. Minimum base rent is
subject to annual maximum CPI adjustments of up to two percent.

Expenses from Operations:
Total reported expenses from operations for the year ended November 30, 2012 increased $6.1 million over expenses of $4.7 million at November 30, 2011 to $10.8 million.
The increase was primarily due to the consolidation of Mowood, as well as expenses associated with the EIP lease. The most significant components of the variation are outlined
in the following table:
 

   
For the Years Ended

November 30,  
   2012    2011  
Cost of Sales   $ 6,078,102    $1,689,374  
Management fees, net of expense reimbursements    1,046,796     968,163  
Asset acquisition expenses    377,834     638,185  
Depreciation    1,118,269     364,254  
Operating expenses    739,519     196,775  
Professional fees/directors’ fees/other    1,457,181     802,625  

    

Total   $10,817,701    $4,659,376  
    

 

 •  Costs of sales for our wholly owned subsidiary, Mowood, for the fiscal year 2012 and 2011 were $6.08 and $1.69 million, respectively. Mowood was consolidated
as of September 21, 2011 as a result of the Company’s withdrawal as a BDC.

 

 •  The full cost of sales for Mowood represents 71 percent of the increase in overall expenditures for the year 2012 as compared to the year 2011.
 

 
•  Had Mowood been consolidated as an operating entity during all of fiscal year 2011, cost of sales would have reflected approximately $7.58 million. The

variation in cost of sales for the year 2012 as compared to the full year 2011, reflect a percent decrease of approximately 20 percent, and is primarily the
result of the warmer weather experienced during 2012.
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•  Depreciation expense of approximately $837,000 and $294,000 was incurred on our EIP leased property for the fiscal years ended 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The lease was acquired on June 30, 2011 and as such, there were only five months of depreciation expense for the fiscal year 2011. In addition, due to the executed
Purchase Agreement related to the EIP leased property, the depreciation expense for 2012 includes approximately $131,000 of incremental depreciation expense.
Since Mowood was not consolidated until September 21, 2011 there are no comparable depreciation numbers for the full year 2011. Had Mowood been
consolidated as an operating entity during all of fiscal year 2011, Mowood’s depreciation expense would have been substantially level at $280,000 for both 2012
and 2011.
Depreciation expense is expected to increase in 2013 due to the December 20, 2012 Acquisition of the LGS for approximately $231 million. LGS will be
depreciated straight-line over a depreciable life of 26 years.

 

 •  Operating expenses for our wholly owned subsidiary, Mowood, for the fiscal year 2012 and 2011 were approximately $740,000 and $197,000, respectively.
Mowood was consolidated as of September 21, 2011 as a result of the Company’s withdrawal as a BDC.

 

 
•  Had Mowood been consolidated as an operating entity during the year 2011, operating expenses of approximately $711,000 would have been reflected.

The variation in operating expenses for the year 2012 as compared to the full year 2011, reflect an approximate four percent increase. This increase is
driven by an overall increase in payroll, third-party contractors and maintenance expenses.

 

 •  Management fees, net of expense reimbursements, for the fiscal year 2012 and 2011 were approximately $1.05 million and $968,000, respectively. The percent
increase is primarily due to an increase in the average value of our investment portfolio.

Management fees are expected to increase in 2013 due to the estimated net addition of approximately $154 million of Managed Assets in December of 2012 related to LGS.
 

 

•  All other expenses, which include acquisition costs, professional and directors’ fees and other expenses, for the fiscal years 2012 and 2011, totaled approximately
$1.84 million and $1.44 million, respectively. The variance of approximately $394,000, represents an increase of 27 percent and is primarily due to the
combination of increased legal and external audit and tax fees associated with the various interactions with the SEC, EIP and PNM related to pending sale
transaction, REIT planning, the new XBRL filing requirements, and the pursuit of asset acquisitions (EIP project during 2011 and Ultra during 2012).

Additional other expenses for 2013 will include the amortization of capitalized deferred lease costs in connection with the Acquisition and lease. Approximately $875,000 of
estimated deferred lease costs is expected to be amortized over the 15-year term of the lease.

Other Income and Expense:
Total other income and expense, net, for the years ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 was approximately $19.8, and $5.2 million, respectively.

Included in these amounts are net realized and unrealized gains for the fiscal years 2012 and 2011 of approximately $20.2 million and $4.6 million, respectively. This represents
an increase of approximately $14.6 million, which was primarily related to the sale of High Sierra during 2012.

The following table shows the gross distributions and dividend income received from our investment securities on a cash basis, less the amounts that were comprised of
distributions and dividends not reported in income received from investment securities (return of capital):
 

   

Year Ended
November 30,

2012   

Year Ended
November 30,

2011  
Gross distributions and dividend income received from investment securities   $ 4,705,975   $ 3,568,128  
Less distributions and dividends not reported in income received from investment securities    (4,985,370)   (2,916,455) 

  

Income received from investment securities, net   $ (279,395)  $ 651,673  
  

 
39



Table of Contents

Total interest expense for the fiscal year 2012 and 2011 was approximately $81,000 and $36,500, respectively.
 

 

•  Interest on the PNM debt for the fiscal year 2012 and 2011 was approximately $121,000 and $125,000, respectively. Interest expense, netted against amortization
on above market debt for fiscal years 2012 and 2011 of approximately $92,000 and $95,000, respectively, resulting in a net interest expense on the PNM debt of
approximately $29,000 and $30,000, respectively. The lease was acquired on June 30, 2011 and as such, there was only five months of net interest expense related
to PNM for the fiscal year 2011. In addition, debt payments were made semi-annually on April 1 and October 1, since the lease was acquired, with the last debt
payment made on October 1, 2012.

 

 •  Margin Loan related interest fees for the Company’s line of credit totaled approximately $25,000 and $100, respectively, for the fiscal year 2012 and 2011.
Mowood’s interest related to its credit facility for the fiscal years 2012 and 2011 was approximately $26,000 and $6,300, respectively.

Interest expense in 2013 will include incremental amortization of capitalized debt issuance costs associated with $70.0 million of senior debt incurred in connection with the
Acquisition. Interest expense on the debt is expected to be inclusive of a floating component calculated using an interest rate of LIBOR plus 3.25 percent, and a fixed rate
resulting from interest rates swaps executed in January of 2013. The amortization of deferred debt issuance costs is expected to be based on approximately $1.55 million of
estimated capitalized debt issuance costs amortized over the three-year term of the $70.0 million senior secured term loan.

Income before income taxes: Net income before income taxes for the year ended November 30, 2012 was $19.58 million compared to $3.81 million for the year ended
November 30, 2011. The variance in net income is primarily related to the changes in revenue and expenses as described above.

Following is a comparison of net revenues, operating income (loss) before income taxes, other income and expense, and income before income taxes for the years ended
November 30, 2011 and November 30, 2010:
 

   
For the Years Ended

November 30,  
   2011   2010  
OPERATIONS    
Sales revenue   $ 2,161,723   $ —    
Lease revenue    1,063,740    —    

  

Total Revenue    3,225,463    —    
Expenses    4,659,376    1,852,757  

  

Income (Loss) from Operations, before Income Taxes    (1,433,913)   (1,852,757) 
  

Other Income and Expense    
Net distributions and dividend income on securities    651,673    1,853,247  
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on securities    4,583,748    19,446,071  
Other Income    40,000    38,580  
Interest Expense    (36,508)   (45,619) 

  

Total Other Income and Expense, net    5,238,913    21,292,279  
  

Income before Income Taxes   $ 3,805,000   $19,439,522  
  

Net earnings per share (basic and diluted)   $ 0.32   $ 1.61  
Weighted Average Shares    9,159,809    9,107,070  

Revenue from Operations:
Total reported revenue from operations for the fiscal years ended November 30, 2011 and 2010, were approximately $3.2 million and zero, respectively. This represents sales
revenue from our wholly owned subsidiary, Mowood, for the period from September 21, 2011 through November 30, 2011 as well as lease income from our Public Service
Company of New Mexico (EIP) investment during the fiscal year 2011.
 

 

•  Sales revenue relating to Mowood operations for the years ended November 30, 2011 and 2010 were approximately $2.16 million and zero, respectively. Mowood
was consolidated as of September 21, 2011 as a result of the Company’s withdrawal as a BDC. Lease revenue for the years ended November 30, 2011 and 2010
were approximately $1.06 million and zero, respectively. The lease revenue increase of 100 percent is attributable to the June 30, 2011 acquisition date of the
lease.
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Expenses from Operations:
Total reported expenses from operations for the years ended November 30, 2011 increased approximately $2.8 million over expenses of $1.9 million at November 30, 2010 to
$4.7 million. The increase was primarily due to the consolidation of Mowood, as well as expenses associated with the EIP lease. The most significant components of the
variation are outlined in the following table:
 

   
For the Years Ended

November 30,  
   2011    2010  
Cost of Sales   $1,689,374    $ —     
Management fees, net of expense reimbursements    968,163     925,820  
Asset acquisition expenses    638,185     —     
Depreciation    364,254     —    
Operating expenses    196,775     —     
Professional fees/directors’ fees/other    802,625     926,937  

    

Total   $4,659,376    $1,852,757  
    

 

 •  Costs of sales for our wholly owned subsidiary, Mowood, for the fiscal year 2011 and 2010 were $1.69 million and zero, respectively. Mowood was consolidated
as of September 21, 2011 as a result of the Company’s withdrawal as a BDC.

 

 •  The full cost of sales for Mowood represents 60 percent of the increase in overall expenditures for the year 2011 as compared to the year 2010.
 

 
•  Depreciation expense of approximately $294,000 and zero was incurred on our EIP leased property for the fiscal year ended 2011. The lease was acquired on

June 30, 2011 and as such, there were only five months of depreciation expense for the fiscal year 2011 and none in 2010. Depreciation expense of approximately
$70,000 was incurred during 2011 as a result of the Mowood consolidation as of September 21, 2011.

 

 •  Operating expenses for our wholly owned subsidiary, Mowood, for the fiscal year 2012 and 2011 were approximately $197,000 and zero, respectively. Mowood
was consolidated as of September 21, 2011 as a result of the Company’s withdrawal as a BDC.

 

 
•  All other expenses, which include acquisition costs, professional and directors’ fees and other expenses, for the fiscal years 2011 and 2010, totaled approximately

$1.44 million and $927,000, respectively. The variance of approximately $514,000 represents an increase of 55 percent and is primarily due to the pursuit of the
EIP asset acquisition during 2011.

Other Income and Expense:
Total other income and expense, net, for the years ended November 30, 2011 and 2010 were approximately $5.2 million and $21.3 million, respectively. Included in these
amounts are net realized and unrealized gains for the fiscal years 2011 and 2010 of approximately $4.58 million and $19.45 million, respectively. This represents a decrease of
approximately $14.86 million.

The following table shows the gross distributions and dividend income received from our investment securities on a cash basis, less the amounts that were comprised of
distributions and dividends not reported in income received from investment securities (return of capital):
 

   

Year Ended
November 30,

2011   

Year Ended
November 30,

2010  
Gross distributions and dividend income received from investment securities   $ 3,568,128   $ 4,917,451  
Less distributions and dividends not reported in income received from investment securities    (2,916,455)   (3,064,204) 

  

Income received from investment securities, net   $ 651,673   $ 1,853,247  
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Income before income taxes: Net income before income taxes for the year ended November 30, 2011 was $3.81 million, compared to $19.44 million for the year ended
November 30, 2010. The variance in net income is primarily related to the changes in revenue and expenses as described above.

Federal and State Income Taxation
We anticipate that completion of the Acquisition will allow us to meet the income and assets tests necessary for us to qualify and elect to be taxed as a REIT for 2013. Because
certain of our assets may not produce REIT-qualifying income or be treated as interests in real property, we intend to contribute those assets into taxable REIT subsidiaries
prior to 2013 in order to limit the potential offset that such assets and income would have on our ability to qualify as a REIT for 2013.

Upon the completion of the Acquisition, the effectiveness of the Lease Agreement and consummation of the contribution transactions, and based on the value of our existing
assets as of November 30, 2012, we expect that our income for 2013 would satisfy the REIT income tests and at least 75% of our assets as will qualify under the REIT
requirements. We may liquidate a portion of our securities portfolio to allow us to meet both the asset and income tests necessary to qualify for REIT status for 2013.

If we qualify and elect REIT status in the future, we will be taxed as a REIT rather than a C corporation and generally will not pay federal income tax on taxable income that is
distributed to our stockholders. For years ended in 2012 and before, our distributions from earnings and profits were treated as QDI and return of capital. If we elect REIT
status, our distributions from earnings and profits will be treated as ordinary income and return of capital, and generally will not qualify as QDI. Regardless of our tax status, an
investment in us will generally not result in Unrelated Business Taxable Income.

Seasonality
The Company’s subsidiary, Mowood, experiences a substantial amount of seasonality in gas sales. As a result, overall sales and operating income are generally higher in the
first and fourth quarters and lower during the second and third quarters of each year. Due to the seasonal nature of Mowood, operating results for the interim periods are not
necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year.

Investment Updates
Following is a summary of the fair values of the other equity securities that we held at November 30, 2012 as they compare to the fair values at November 30, 2011.
 

Portfolio Company   
Fair Value at

November 30, 2012   
Fair Value at

November 30, 2011   $ Change   % Change 
Lightfoot   $ 8,669,366    $ 9,536,390    ($ 867,024)   (9%) 
VantaCore   $ 11,197,255    $ 6,750,526    $ 4,446,729    66% 
Lonestar   $ —      $ 57,000    ($ 57,000)   (100%) 

Lightfoot Capital Partners LP and Lightfoot Capital Partners GP LLC
The Company holds a direct investment in Lightfoot Capital Partners LP (6.7 percent) and Lightfoot Capital Partners GP (collectively “Lightfoot”) (1.5 percent). Lightfoot’s
assets consist of an 83.5 percent interest in Arc Terminals (“Arc”) and a minority position in a Liquefied Natural Gas facility located in Mississippi. Arc is an independent
terminal company with a shell capacity of 3.6 million barrels from eleven terminal assets. Arc provides storage and delivery services for gasoline, diesel and bio-diesel fuel,
aviation gas, ethanol, as well as other petroleum products. We hold observation rights on Lightfoot’s Board of Directors.

The fair value of Lightfoot as of November 30, 2012 decreased $867,024, or approximately 9 percent, as compared to the valuation at November 30, 2011, with the decrease
driven primarily by leases for new storage capacity in Alabama being secured at a slower than expected pace. For its third quarter of 2012, Arc had sufficient distributable cash
flow to pay a distribution, but instead retained cash for capital expenditures and potential future acquisitions. Arc continues to concentrate a majority of its capital expenditures
on projects that increase revenue and reduce operating expenses. Arc is also analyzing various strategic alternatives and acquisitions that would be expected to provide
incremental earnings.
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VantaCore Partners LP (“VantaCore”)
VantaCore is a private company focused on acquiring competitively advantaged aggregate and related businesses in the domestic U.S. market. Vantacore’s operations consist of
an integrated limestone quarry (with permitted surface reserves of about 80 million tons), a dock facility, two asphalt plants and a commercial asphalt lay down business located
in Clarksville, Tennessee, a limestone quarry located in Todd County, Kentucky, a sand and gravel business (with approximately 38 million tons of gravel reserves) located
near Baton Rouge, Louisiana serving the south central Louisiana market and a surface and underground limestone quarry (with approximately 197 million tons of reserves)
located in Pennsylvania serving energy and construction businesses in Pennsylvania, West Virginia and Ohio. We hold observation rights on VantaCore’s Board of Directors.

The fair value of VantaCore as of November 30, 2012 increased $4,446,729, or approximately 66 percent, as compared to the fair value at November 30, 2011. The increase is
attributable to VantaCore’s continued improved performance, mostly driven by the incremental results of Laurel Aggregates, as well as the success of its cost cutting initiatives
and the price increases that have gone into effect. VantaCore was again unable to meet its minimum quarterly distribution in cash for its quarter ended September 30, 2012.
Therefore, the common and preferred unit holders elected to receive their distributions as a combination of $0.26 per unit in cash and the remainder in preferred units. The
Company received approximately $316,000 in cash and 14,388 additional preferred units during the three month period ended November 30, 2012.

Formerly Owned High Sierra Energy, LP and High Sierra Energy, GP (“High Sierra”)
On June 19, 2012, NGL Energy Partners, LP and certain of its affiliates (collectively “NGL”) acquired High Sierra. We originally invested approximately $26.8 million in High
Sierra and received, in exchange, approximately $9.4 million in cash and approximately 1.2 million newly issued units of NGL. The Company recognized a third quarter
realized gain of approximately $15.83 million upon the sale. The NGL units are not subject to a lock-up agreement, however they can only be sold pursuant to an exemption
from the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)’s registration requirements, such as Rule 144. The Company received one-third of the total quarterly distribution for its
NGL common units in its third quarter and received full distributions in the fourth quarter.

Formerly Owned International Resource Partners, LP
The escrow receivable due the Company, which relates to the sale of International Resource Partners, LP, is anticipated to be released upon satisfaction of certain post-closing
obligations and/or the expiration of certain time periods (the shortest of which was to be 14 months from the April 2011 closing date of the sale). The fair value of the escrow
receivable reflects a discount for the potential that the full amount due to the Company will not be realized.

During the third quarter of 2012, the carrying value of the escrow receivable was reduced by $335,486 to its fair value as of August 31, 2012. Upon the satisfaction of certain
post-closing obligations, $628,863 of the escrow receivable due the Company, which relates to the sale of International Resource Partners, LP, was released and paid to the
Company on September 20, 2012. In addition, the escrow receivable was reduced by an additional $13,974 during the fourth quarter of 2012 to it fair value as of November 30,
2012. No clear agreement has been reached as to the remaining escrow balance and Management anticipates that it may take more than a year to satisfy other post-closing
obligations prior to receiving the approximately $699,000 escrow receivable balance remaining.

Mowood, LLC – Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Mowood is the holding company of Omega Pipeline Company, LLC (“Omega”). Omega is a natural gas service provider located primarily on the Fort Leonard Wood military
post in south-central Missouri. Omega serves the natural gas needs of Fort Leonard Wood and other customers in the surrounding area. We indirectly hold 100 percent of the
equity interests in Mowood. The Company provides a revolving line of credit to Mowood which allows for a maximum principal balance of $5.3 million. At November 30,
2012, the principal balance outstanding was $3.8 million. Omega’s results for the fiscal year 2012 are approximately 15 percent higher than originally expected as the base
business realized higher margins. In addition, revenues from several construction projects were recognized in the third and fourth quarters, which made a significant contribution
to overall year-to-date results.
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Eastern Interconnect Project
On November 1, 2012, we entered into the Agreement with PNM to sell our 40 percent undivided interest in the EIP upon lease termination on April 1, 2015 for $7.7 million.
PNM will also accelerate its remaining lease payments to us. Both lease payments due in 2013 were paid upon execution of the definitive Agreement on November 1, 2012. Per
the Agreement, PNM also paid us $100,000 to compensate us for legal costs resulting from our filings with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. The three remaining
lease payments due April 1, 2014, October 1, 2014 and April 1, 2015, will be paid on January 1, 2014 in full.

We changed our estimated residual value used to calculate its depreciation of the EIP, which will result in higher depreciation expenses beginning in November of 2012 through
the expiration of the lease in April 2015. The incremental depreciation amounts to approximately $393,000 per quarter.

Due to the changes in timing of lease payments, we adjusted the impact of future EIP lease payments in our pro forma AFFO calculation. We have not made any adjustments to
the GAAP treatment of the lease.

We purchased our EIP interest on June 30, 2011 for $12.8 million net of debt. As of our August 31, 2012 Form 10-Q filing, we anticipated a total of approximately $8.5 million
in remaining lease payments. Net of the final debt payment of $905,000 and interest expense of $46,381 received on October 1, 2012, we expect to receive gross total lease
payments of approximately $7.1 million through April 2015. Combined with the sale price of $7.7 million we expect approximately 7% annualized gross return on our
investment. Although this is at the low end of our long-term targeted range, we feel it is appropriate for the risk profile of the asset.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
We are focused on meeting the requirement that a substantial percentage of our assets be REIT-qualifying investments that produce REIT qualifying income. Other than the
LGS, we do not currently have any signed agreements or binding letters of intent for such acquisitions. There are opportunities that are in preliminary stages of review, and
consummation of any of these opportunities depends on a number of factors beyond our control. There can be no assurance that any of these acquisition opportunities will result
in consummated transactions. We may liquidate a portion of our securities portfolio necessary to allow us to meet both the asset and income tests necessary to qualify for REIT
status for 2013. As part of our disciplined investment philosophy, we plan to use a moderate level of leverage, approximately 25% to 50% of assets.

On November 30, 2011, the Company entered into a 180-day rolling evergreen Margin Loan Facility Agreement (“Margin Loan Agreement”) with Bank of America, N.A. In
December of 2012, the assets which secured this facility were sold, and as a result, this Margin Loan Agreement was terminated effective December 20, 2012.

On October 29, 2010, Mowood entered into a Revolving Note Payable Agreement (“Note Payable Agreement”) with a financial institution with a maximum borrowing base of
$1,250,000. The Note Payable Agreement was amended and restated on October 29, 2011 and then second amended and restated on October 29, 2012. Borrowings on the Note
Payable are secured by all of Mowood’s assets. Interest accrues at LIBOR, plus 4 percent (4.209 percent at November 30, 2012), is payable monthly, with all outstanding
principal and accrued interest payable on the termination date of October 29, 2013. As of November 30, 2012 the outstanding borrowings under this agreement totaled
$120,000. The Note Payable Agreement contains various restrictive covenants, with the most significant relating to minimum consolidated fixed charge ratio, the incidence of
additional indebtedness, member distributions, extension of guaranties, future investments in other subsidiaries and change in ownership. Mowood was in compliance with the
various covenants of the Note Payable Agreement as of November 30, 2012.

In connection with the Acquisition, Pinedale LP entered into a $70 million secured term credit facility with KeyBank that provides for monthly payments of principal and
interest. Outstanding balances under the credit facility generally accrue interest at a variable annual rate equal to LIBOR plus 3.25%. The credit facility will be secured by the
LGS. Pinedale LP is obligated to pay all accrued interest quarterly and is further obligated to pay monthly, beginning March 7, 2014, 0.42% of the proposed amount outstanding
on the loan on March 1, 2014.

We have executed interest rate swap derivatives to add stability to our interest expense and to manage our exposure to interest rate movements on our LIBOR based borrowings.
Interest rate swaps involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty in exchange for us making fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without
exchange of the underlying notional amount.

Our registration statement covering a proposed maximum aggregate offering price of $300,000,000 of securities was declared effective on June 8, 2012. The common equity
offering conducted on December 13, 2012 reduced the total available shelf by the gross proceeds of the offering and subsequent exercise of the underwriter’s overallotment
option on December 24, 2012. The remaining availability is $ 210.3 million of maximum aggregate offering price of securities.
 

44



Table of Contents

We intend to enter into a $20 million revolving line of credit with KeyBank. The primary term of the facility is anticipated to be three years with the option for a one-year
extension. Outstanding balances under the revolving credit facility are expected to accrue interest at a variable annual rate equal to LIBOR plus 4.0% or the Prime Rate plus
2.75%. We intend to use the facility to fund general working capital needs and if necessary, to provide short-term financing for the acquisition of additional real property assets.

As of November 30, 2012 the securities in our portfolio included: (i) publicly-traded master limited partnership (“MLP”) equity securities and (ii) illiquid securities issued by
privately-held companies. The publicly traded securities can be liquidated more readily than the others. In December of 2012, we liquidated approximately $27.5 million of our
publicly traded securities value as of November 30, 2012, and generated cash of approximately $26.1 million to fund a portion of the purchase price of the LGS. We will report
the gains (losses) on the securities transactions as Other Income and separate from Income from Operations. Our cash and publicly traded securities, after the offering, on
December 31, 2012, totaled approximately $21.4 million, including the exercise of the underwriters’ overallotment option in full.

We do not plan to make additional investments in securities (other than short-term, highly liquid investments to be held pending acquisition of real property assets) and intend to
liquidate our remaining securities portfolio in an orderly manner.

Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our significant contractual payment obligations as of November 30, 2012.
 
   Payments due by period  
   Total    Less than 1 year   1-3 years   3-5 years   More than 5 years 
Operating Lease Obligations   $27,522    $ 27,522    $ —      $ —      $ —    

          

  $27,522    $ 27,522    $ —      $ —      $ —    
          

The Mowood Revolving Note Payable is not included in the table above because the repayment timing is uncertain.
In addition to our historical contractual obligations as of November 30, 2012, Pinedale LP has entered into a $70 million secured term credit facility with KeyBank to finance a
portion of the Acquisition. The primary term of the credit facility is three years, with an option for a one-year extension. Under the KeyBank credit facility, Pinedale LP is
obligated to make monthly principal payments, which are to begin in the second year of the term, equal to 0.42% of the $70 million loan outstanding.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have, and are not expected to have, any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition,
changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Major Tenants
EIP. The Company’s investment in EIP is leased under net operating leases with various terms. As of November 30, 2012, approximately 100 percent of the Company’s leased
property, based on the gross book value of real estate investments, was leased to PNM. PNM is referred to as the Major Tenant. Approximately 24 percent of the Company’s
total revenue for the year ended November 30, 2012 was derived from the Major Tenant.

In view of the fact that the Major Tenant leases a substantial portion of the Company’s net leased property which is a significant source of revenues and operating income, its
financial condition and ability and willingness to satisfy its obligations under its lease with the Company, have a considerable impact on the results of operation.

The Major Tenant is currently subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is required to file with the SEC annual reports
containing audited financial statements and quarterly reports containing unaudited financial statements. The audited financial statements and unaudited financial statements of
the Major Tenant can be found on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. The Company makes no representation as to the accuracy or completeness
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of the audited and unaudited financial statements of the Major Tenant but has no reason not to believe the accuracy or completeness of such information. In addition, the Major
Tenant has no duty, contractual or otherwise, to advise the Company of any events that might have occurred subsequent to the date of such financial statements which could
affect the significance or accuracy of such information. None of the information in the public reports of the Major Tenant that are filed with the SEC is incorporated by
reference into, or in any way form part of this filing.

Pinedale LGS. Subsequent to year end, the Company entered into a lease guaranteed by Ultra Petroleum Corp. (“Major Tenant 2”), which is material to the Company. In view of
the fact that Major Tenant 2 leases a substantial portion of the Company’s net leased property which is a significant source of revenues and operating income, its financial
condition and ability and willingness to satisfy its obligations under its lease with the Company, are expected to have a considerable impact on the results of operation going
forward.

Major Tenant 2 is currently subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is required to file with the SEC annual reports
containing audited financial statements and quarterly reports containing unaudited financial statements. The audited financial statements and unaudited financial statements of
Major Tenant 2 can be found on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. The Company makes no representation as to the accuracy or completeness of the audited and unaudited
financial statements of Major Tenant 2 but has no reason not to believe the accuracy or completeness of such information. In addition, Major Tenant 2 has no duty, contractual
or otherwise, to advise the Company of any events that might have occurred subsequent to the date of such financial statements which could affect the significance or accuracy
of such information. Certain information in the public reports of Major Tenant 2 that are filed with the SEC have been, and will continue to be, incorporated by reference into
this filing.

Distributions
The following table sets forth distributions for the three years ended November 30, 2012, November 30, 2011 and November 30, 2010.
 

Period   Amount  
2012   
Fourth Quarter   $0.1100  
Third Quarter   $0.1100  
Second Quarter   $0.1100  
First Quarter   $0.1100  

2011   
Fourth Quarter   $0.1100  
Third Quarter   $0.1000  
Second Quarter   $0.1000  
First Quarter   $0.1000  

2010   
Fourth Quarter   $0.1000  
Third Quarter   $0.1000  
Second Quarter   $0.1000  
First Quarter   $0.1300  

Our portfolio of real property assets and investment securities generate cash flow to us from which we pay distributions to stockholders. For the historical period ended
November 30, 2012, the most significant source of our stockholder distributions were distributions from our investment securities. Following consummation of the Acquisition
in December of 2012, the most significant source of our stockholder distributions is expected to be lease revenues generated by the LGS Lease. The amount of a distribution
declaration is recorded on the ex-dividend date.

The character of distributions made during the year may differ from their ultimate characterization for federal income tax purposes. During the year ended November 30, 2012,
the Board of Directors declared total annual distributions of $0.44 per share ($0.11 per quarter).
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Beginning in 2013, we intend to make publicly available standard performance measures utilized by REITs, including Funds from Operations (“FFO”) and Adjusted Funds from
Operations (“AFFO”). A REIT is generally required to distribute during the taxable year an amount equal to at least 90 percent of the REIT taxable income (determined under
IRC section 857(b)(2), without regard to the deduction for dividends paid). We intend to adhere to this requirement in order to qualify as a REIT. The Board of Directors will
continue to determine the amount of any distribution that we expect to pay our stockholders.

Impact of Inflation and Deflation
Deflation can result in a decline in general price levels, often caused by a decrease in the supply of money or credit. The predominant effects of deflation are high
unemployment, credit contraction and weakened consumer demand. Restricted lending practices could impact our ability to obtain financings or to refinance our properties and
our tenants’ ability to obtain credit. During inflationary periods, we intend for substantially all of our tenant leases to be designed to mitigate the impact of inflation. These
provisions include clauses enabling us to receive percentage rent based on increases in certain agreed upon metrics, which are expected to generally increase as prices rise.

Performance Measurement
In the past, we have provided investors with a measure of cash flow from operations, labeled distributable cash flow. Prospectively, and with this pro forma information, we
intend to provide standard performance measures utilized by REITs, including FFO and AFFO.

FFO
As defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investors, FFO represents net income (loss) before allocation to minority interests (computed in accordance with GAAP,
excluding gains (or losses) from sales of depreciable operating property, real estate-related depreciation and amortization (excluding amortization of deferred financing costs or
loan origination costs)) and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. FFO is a supplemental, non-GAAP financial measure.

We present FFO because we consider it an important supplemental measure of our operating performance and believe that it is frequently used by securities analysts, investors
and other interested parties in the evaluation of REITs, many of which present FFO when reporting their results. FFO is a key measure used by Corridor in assessing
performance and in making resource allocation decisions.

FFO is intended to exclude GAAP historical cost depreciation and amortization of real estate and related assets, which assumes that the value of real estate diminishes ratably
over time. Historically, however, real estate values have risen or fallen with market conditions, and that may also be the case with the energy infrastructure assets which we
expect to acquire. Because FFO excludes depreciation and amortization unique to real estate, gains and losses from property dispositions and extraordinary items, it provides a
performance measure that, when compared year over year, reflects the impact to operations from trends in base and participating rent, company operating costs, development
activities and interest costs, thereby providing perspective not immediately apparent from net income.

We calculate FFO in accordance with standards established by the Board of Governors of the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, in its March 1995 White
Paper (as amended in November 1999 and April 2002), which may differ from the methodology for calculating FFO utilized by other equity REITs and, accordingly may not be
comparable to such other REITs. FFO does not represent amounts available for management’s discretionary use because of needed capital replacement or expansion, debt
service obligations or other commitments and uncertainties. FFO should not be considered as an alternative to net income (loss) (computed in accordance with GAAP), as an
indicator of our financial performance or cash flow from operating activities (computed in accordance with GAAP), as an indicator of our liquidity, or as an indicator of funds
available for our cash needs, including our ability to make distributions or serve our indebtedness.

AFFO
We define AFFO as FFO plus transaction costs, amortization of debt issuance costs, deferred leasing costs, and above market rent, less maintenance capital expenditures (if
any), amortization of debt premium and adjustments to lease revenue resulting from the EIP sale. Management uses AFFO as a measure of long-term sustainable operations
measurement.

We target a total return of 8% to 10% per annum on the infrastructure assets that we own, measured over the long-term. We intend to generate this return from the base rent of
our leases plus growth through acquisitions and participating portions of our rent. If we are successful growing our AFFO per share of common stock, we anticipate being able
to increase distributions to our stockholders. In addition, the increase in our AFFO per share of common stock should result in capital appreciation. For our business as a whole,
a key performance measure is AFFO yield, defined as AFFO divided by invested capital, which measures the sustainable return on capital that we have deployed.
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AFFO does not represent amounts available for management’s discretionary use because of needed capital replacement or expansion, debt service obligations or other
commitments and uncertainties. AFFO should not be considered as an alternative to net income (loss) (computed in accordance with GAAP), as an indicator of our financial
performance or to cash flow from operating activities (computed in accordance with GAAP), as an indicator of our liquidity, or as an indicator of funds available for our cash
needs, including our ability to make distributions or service our indebtedness.

In light of the per share AFFO growth that we foresee in our operations, we are targeting 1% to 3% annual dividend growth. We can provide no assurances regarding our total
return or annual dividend growth. See “Risk Factors” for a discussion of the many factors that may affect our ability to make distributions at targeted rates, or at all.

Following is a comparison of FFO and AFFO for the historical and pro forma year ended November 30, 2012 attributable to CorEnergy stockholders: The pro forma column
reflects the completion as of December 1, 2011 of the LGS acquisition actually completed December 20, 2012. The pro forma column therefore includes the purchase of the
LGS, execution of the Lease Agreement, the sale of 14.95 million shares of our common stock, which includes 1.95 million shares issued in the overallotment option, the
execution of the $70 million secured term credit facility with KeyBank, and the $30 million co-investment by Prudential.
 

FFO AND AFFO RECONCILIATION   

Historical
For the year

ended
November 30, 2012   

Pro Forma
For the year

ended 
November 30,

2012  
Net Income (attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders):   $ 12,348,721    $ 6,086,255  
Add:     

Depreciation and amortization attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders    1,118,269     8,360,661  
Gains or losses from sales of property    —      —    
Distributions received from investment securities    4,985,370     1,924,337  
Income tax expense, net    7,228,934     3,161,288  

Less:     
Net realized and unrealized gain on trading securities    4,009,933     273,835  
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on other equity securities    16,171,944     5,018,152  

    

Funds from operations (FFO)    5,499,417     14,240,554  
Add:     

Transaction costs attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders    377,834     377,834  
Amortization of debt issuance costs attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders    —      417,672  
Amortization of deferred lease costs attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders    —      46,321  
Amortization of above market leases    291,939     291,939  

Less:     
EIP Lease Adjustment    2,171,238     2,171,238  
Non-incremental capital expenditures    —      —   
Amortization of debt premium    91,883     91,883  

    

Adjusted funds from operations (AFFO)   $ 3,906,069    $13,111,199  
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FFO
Pro forma FFO for 2012 totals approximately $14.2 million. FFO was calculated in accordance with the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trust’s definition
above. In addition, we have made adjustments for non-cash items impacting net income by eliminating a net realized and unrealized gain on trading securities of approximately
$274 thousand, net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on other equity securities of approximately $5.0 million, adding back distributions received from investment securities of
approximately $1.9 million and tax expense of approximately $3.2 million.

AFFO
Pro forma AFFO for 2012 totals approximately $13.1 million. In addition to the adjustments outlined in the AFFO definition above, we have included an adjustment to lease
income associated with the EIP investment. Based on the economic return to CorEnergy resulting from the sale of our 40 percent undivided interest in EIP, we determined that it
was appropriate to eliminate the portion of EIP lease income attributable to return of capital, as a means to more accurately reflect EIP lease income contribution to CorEnergy
sustainable FFO. CorEnergy believes that the portion of return of capital, unless adjusted, overstates the CorEnergy’s distribution paying capabilities and is not representative of
sustainable EIP income over the life of the lease.

 ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our business activities contain elements of market risk. We consider fluctuations in the value of our securities portfolio to be our principal market risk. There were no material
changes to our market risk exposure at November 30, 2012 as compared to the end of our preceding fiscal period of November 30, 2011.

Our equity and debt securities are reported at fair value in the current period, as determined by our Investment Committee. The fair value of securities is determined using
readily available market quotations from the principal market if available. The fair value of securities that are not publicly traded or whose market price is not readily available is
determined in good faith by our Investment Committee. Because there are no readily available market quotations for many of the securities in our portfolio, we value a large
portion of our securities at fair value as determined in good faith by our Investment Committee under a valuation policy and a consistently applied valuation process. Due to the
inherent uncertainty of determining the fair value of securities that do not have readily available market quotations, the fair value of our securities may differ significantly from
the fair values that would have been used had a ready market quotation existed for such securities, and these differences could be material.

As of November 30, 2012, the fair value of our securities portfolio (excluding short-term investments) totaled approximately $75.1 million. We estimate that the impact of a 10
percent increase or decrease in the fair value of these securities, net of related deferred taxes, would increase or decrease net assets applicable to common stockholders by
approximately $4.7 million.

Debt securities in our portfolio may be based on floating or fixed rates. As of November 30, 2012, we had no floating rate debt outstanding.

We consider the management of risk essential to conducting our businesses. Accordingly, our risk management systems and procedures are designed to identify and analyze our
risks, to set appropriate policies and limits and to continually monitor these risks and limits by means of reliable administrative and information systems and other policies and
programs.

 ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Our financial statements and financial statement schedules are set forth beginning on page F-1 in this Annual Report and are incorporated herein by reference.
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 ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

 ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our management is responsible for the preparation, consistency, integrity, and fair presentation of the financial statements. The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis and, in management’s opinion, are fairly presented. The financial statements include
amounts that are based on management’s informed judgments and best estimates.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Company. Our management has established and
maintains comprehensive systems of internal control that provide reasonable assurance as to the consistency, integrity, and reliability of the preparation and presentation of
financial statements and the safeguarding of assets. The concept of reasonable assurance is based upon the recognition that the cost of the controls should not exceed the benefit
derived. Our management monitors the systems of internal control and maintains an internal auditing program that assesses the effectiveness of internal control. Our
management assessed our disclosure controls and procedures and our systems of internal control over financial reporting for financial presentations in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. This assessment was based on criteria for effective internal control established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO Report).

Based on this assessment, our management believes we maintained effective systems of internal control that provided reasonable assurance as to adequate design and effective
operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and that the Company’s systems of internal control over financial reporting for financial presentations in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles as of November 30, 2012.

The Board of Directors exercises its oversight role with respect to the systems of internal control primarily through its Audit and Valuation Committee, which is comprised
solely of independent outside directors. The Committee oversees systems of internal control and financial reporting to assess whether their quality, integrity, and objectivity are
sufficient to protect shareholders’ investments.

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) during the
fiscal quarter ended November 30, 2012, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Ernst & Young has issued an audit report on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. This report begins on the next page.
 

50



Table of Contents

Report of independent registered public accounting firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc
We have audited CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc’s control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust ,Inc’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in
the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

In our opinion, CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2012, based on the
COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet of CorEnergy
Infrastructure Trust, Inc (the Company) as of November 30, 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholder’s equity, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended November 30, 2012 of CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc and our report dated February 13, 2013, expressed an unqualified thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

February 13, 2013
Kansas City, MO
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Oversight and Monitoring
As part of our internal control processes; we monitor, on an ongoing basis, compliance by tenants with their lease obligations and other factors that could affect the financial
performance of any of our properties. Monitoring involves receiving assurances that each tenant has paid real estate taxes, assessments and other expenses relating to the
properties it occupies and confirming that appropriate insurance coverage is being maintained by the tenant. We review financial statements of tenants and undertake regular
physical inspections of the condition and maintenance of properties. Additionally, we periodically analyze each tenant’s financial condition, the industry in which each tenant
operates and each tenant’s relative strength in its industry. In addition, monitoring may be accomplished by attendance at Board of Directors meetings, the review of periodic
operating and financial reports, an analysis of capital expenditure plans as they relate to the owned assets, and periodic consultations with engineers, geologists and other
experts. The performance of each asset will be periodically compared to performance of similarly sized companies with comparable assets and businesses to assess performance
relative to peers. Other monitoring activities are expected to provide the necessary access to monitor compliance with existing covenants, enhance ability to make qualified
valuation decisions, and assist in the evaluation of the nature of the risks involved in the various components of the portfolio.

 ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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 PART III

 ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Codes of Ethics
We have adopted a code of ethics, which applies to our principal executive officer and principal financial officer. We have also adopted a code of ethics that establishes
procedures for personal investments and restricts certain personal securities transactions. Personnel subject to the code of ethics may invest in securities for their personal
investment accounts, including securities that may be purchased or held by us, so long as such investments are made in accordance with the code of ethics. This information
may be obtained, without charge, upon request by calling us at (913) 387-2790 or toll-free at (877) 699-2677 and on our Web site at http://corenergy.corridortrust.com

You may also read and copy the codes of ethics at the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Public Reference Room in Washington, D.C. You may obtain information on the
operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the Securities and Exchange Commission at (800) SEC-0330. In addition, the codes of ethics are available on the EDGAR
Database on the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Internet site at http://www.sec.gov. You may obtain copies of the codes of ethics, after paying a duplicating fee, by
electronic request at the following email address: publicinfo@sec.gov, or by writing the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Public Reference Section, Washington, D.C.
20549.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”) imposes a wide variety of regulatory requirements on publicly-held companies and their insiders. The Sarbanes-
Oxley Act requires us to review our policies and procedures to determine whether we comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder. We will
continue to monitor our compliance with all future regulations that are adopted under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and will take actions necessary to ensure that we are in compliance
therewith.

As of November 30, 2012, we are an accelerated filer. As an accelerated filer for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2012, we are required to prepare and include in our annual
report to stockholders for such period a report regarding management’s assessment of our internal control over financial reporting under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(the “1934 Act”) and have included this report in Item 9A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Additional information incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2013 Annual Stockholder Meeting to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.

 ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2013 Annual Stockholder Meeting to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the
end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.

 ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
Incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2013 Annual Stockholder Meeting to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the
end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.

 ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
Incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2013 Annual Stockholder Meeting to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the
end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.

 ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
Incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2013 Annual Stockholder Meeting to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the
end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.
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 PART IV

 ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

1. The Financial Statements listed in the Index to Financial Statements on Page F-1.

2. The Exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index below.
 
Exhibit

No.  Description of Document

3.1(a)  Articles of Incorporation (1)

3.1(b)  Articles of Amendment (2)

3.2  Bylaws (3)

4.1  Form of Stock Certificate (4)

4.2  Form of Warrant dated December 2006 (5)

4.3
 

Registration Rights Agreements with Merrill Lynch & Co; Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, and Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated
dated January 9, 2006 (1)

4.4  Registration Rights Agreement dated April 2007 (5)

10.1  Dividend Reinvestment Plan (6)

10.2  Management Agreement dated December 1, 2011 (7)

10.3(a)  Advisory Agreement dated December 1, 2011 (7)

10.3(b) Amended Advisory Agreement dated December 21, 2012 – filed herewith

10.4  Custody Agreement with U.S. Bank National Association dated September 13, 2005 (1)

10.5  First Amendment to the Custody Agreement with U.S. Bank National Association dated May 24, 2010 (8)

10.6  Stock Transfer Agency Agreement with Computershare Investor Services, LLC dated September 13, 2005 (1)

10.7(a)  Second Amended Administration Agreement dated December 1, 2011 (7)

10.7(b) Amendment and Assignment to the Second Amended Administration Agreement dated August 7, 2012 – filed herewith

10.8  Warrant Agreement with Computershare Investor Services, LLC as Warrant Agent dated December 8, 2005 (1)

10.9  Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated December 7, 2012, by and between Ultra Wyoming, Inc. and Pinedale Corridor, LP (9)

10.10  Subscription Agreement, dated December 7, 2012, by and among Pinedale GP, Inc., Ross Avenue Investments, LLC and Pinedale Corridor, LP (9)

10.11
 

Term Credit Agreement, dated December 7, 2012, by and among Pinedale Corridor, LP, KeyBank National Association, as lender and KeyBank National
Association, as administrative agent (9)

10.12  Amendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated December 13, 2012, by and between Ultra Wyoming, Inc. and Pinedale Corridor, LP (10)

10.13  First Amendment to Subscription Agreement by and among Pinedale Corridor, LP, Pinedale GP, Inc. and Ross Avenue Investments, LLC (10)
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10.14
  

Amended and Restated Term Credit Agreement, dated December 14, 2012, by and among Pinedale Corridor, LP, KeyBank National Association, as lender and
KeyBank National Association, as administrative agent (10)

10.15   Lease Agreement dated December 20, 2012 by and between Pinedale Corridor, LP and Ultra Wyoming LGS, LLC (11)

10.16   First Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of Pinedale Corridor, LP by and between Pinedale GP, Inc. and Ross Avenue Investments, LLC (11)

14.1   Code of Ethics for Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer – filed herewith

23.1   Consent of Ernst & Young LLP dated February 13, 2013 – filed herewith

31.1
  

Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002—filed
herewith.

31.2
  

Certification by Chief Accounting Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002—filed
herewith.

32.1
  

Certification by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002—filed herewith.

101
  

The following materials from CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2012, formatted in XBRL
(Extensible Business Reporting Language):

 
 (i) the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
 

 (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Income
 

 (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow
 

 (iv) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, furnished herewith.
 
(1) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-2, filed August 28, 2006 (File No. 333-136923).
 

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s current report on Form 8-K, filed December 3, 2012
 

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s current report on Form 8-K, filed November 11, 2012.
 

(4) Incorporated by reference to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-2, filed January 9, 2007 (File No. 333-136923).
 

(5) Incorporated by reference to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-2, filed July 3, 2007 (File No. 333-142859).
 

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2007 and filed on October 12, 2007.
 

(7) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s current report on Form 8-K, filed December 1, 2011.
 

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, for the year ended November 30, 2010, filed January 26, 2011.
 

(9) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s current report on Form 8-K, filed December 7, 2012
 

(10) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s current report on Form 8-K, filed December 14, 2012
 

(11) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s current report on Form 8-K, filed December 21, 2012

All other exhibits for which provision is made in the applicable regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under the related instruction or are
inapplicable and therefore have been omitted.
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 Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc (the Company) as of November 30, 2012 and 2011, and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended November 30, 2012. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc at
November 30, 2012 and 2011, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended November 30, 2012, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust Inc’s internal
control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 13, 2013, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/Ernst & Young LLP

February 13, 2013
Kansas City, MO
 

F-2



Table of Contents

 CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
 
   November 30, 2012   November 30, 2011 
Assets     

Trading securities, at fair value   $ 55,219,411    $ 27,037,642  
Other equity securities, at fair value    19,866,621     41,856,730  
Leased property, net of accumulated depreciation of $1,131,680, and $294,309, respectively    12,995,169     13,832,540  
Cash and cash equivalents    14,333,456     2,793,326  
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $1,751,202 and $1,483,616, respectively    3,589,022     3,842,675  
Escrow receivable    698,729     1,677,052  
Accounts receivable    1,570,257     1,402,955  
Intangible lease asset, net of accumulated amortization of $413,580 and $121,641, respectively    681,191     973,130  
Lease receivable    —        474,152  
Prepaid expenses    537,184     140,017  
Receivable for Adviser expense reimbursement    —        121,962  
Deferred tax asset    —        27,536  
Other assets    1,940,793     107,679  

    

Total Assets   $ 111,431,833    $ 94,287,396  
    

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity Liabilities     
Management fees payable to Adviser   $ 249,326    $ 365,885  
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities    2,636,305     1,107,765  
Line of credit    120,000     —     
Long-term debt    —        2,279,883  
Lease obligation    27,522     107,550  
Deferred tax liability    7,172,133     —     
Unearned Income    2,370,762     —     

    

Total Liabilities   $ 12,576,048    $ 3,861,083  
    

Stockholders’ Equity     
Warrants, no par value; 945,594 issued and outstanding at November 30, 2012 and November 30, 2011 (5,000,000

authorized)   $ 1,370,700    $ 1,370,700  
Capital stock, non-convertible, $0.001 par value; 9,190,667 shares issued and outstanding at November 30, 2012 and

9,176,889 shares issued and outstanding at November 30, 2011 (100,000,000 shares authorized)    9,191     9,177  
Additional paid-in capital    91,763,475     95,682,738  
Accumulated retained earnings (deficit)    5,712,419     (6,636,302) 

    

Total Stockholders’ Equity   $ 98,855,785    $ 90,426,313  
    

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity   $ 111,431,833    $ 94,287,396  
    

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc.
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
 

   

For the Year
Ended

November 30,
2012   

For the Year
Ended

November 30,
2011   

For the Year
Ended

November 30,
2010  

Revenue     
Sales revenue   $ 8,021,022   $ 2,161,723   $ —     
Lease income    2,552,975    1,063,740    —    

  

Total Revenue    10,573,997    3,225,463    —    
  

Expenses     
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation expense)    6,078,102    1,689,374    —    
Management fees, net of expense reimbursements    1,046,796    968,163    925,820  
Asset acquisition expenses    377,834    638,185    —    
Professional fees    1,141,045    548,759    590,486  
Depreciation expense    1,118,269    364,254    —    
Operating expenses    739,519    196,775    —    
Directors’ fees    85,050    70,192    92,053  
Other expenses    231,086    183,674    244,398  

  

Total Expenses    10,817,701    4,659,376    1,852,757  
  

Loss from Operations, before Income Taxes    (243,704)   (1,433,913)   (1,852,757) 
  

Other Income and Expense     
Net distributions and dividend income    (279,395)   651,673    1,853,247  
Net realized and unrealized (loss) gain on trading securities    4,009,933    2,299,975    (894,531) 
Net realized and unrealized gain on other equity securities    16,171,944    2,283,773    20,340,602  
Other Income    —      40,000    38,580  
Interest Expense    (81,123)   (36,508)   (45,619) 

  

Total Other Income and Expense    19,821,359    5,238,913    21,292,279  
  

Income before income taxes    19,577,655    3,805,000    19,439,522  
  

Taxes     
Current tax expense    (29,265)   (253,650)   —    
Deferred tax expense    (7,199,669)   (629,207)   (4,772,648) 

Income tax expense, net    (7,228,934)   (882,857)   (4,772,648) 
  

Net Income   $12,348,721   $ 2,922,143   $14,666,874  
  

Earnings Per Common Share:     
Basic and Diluted   $ 1.34   $ 0.32   $ 1.61  

Weighted Average Shares of Common Stock Outstanding:     
Basic and Diluted    9,182,425    9,159,809    9,107,070  

Dividends declared per share   $ 0.44   $ 0.41   $ 0.43  

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc.
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
 

   Capital Stock        Additional Paid-   
Retained Earnings

(Accumulated     
   Shares    Amount   Warrants    in Capital   Deficit)   Total  
Balance at November 30, 2009    9,078,090    $9,078    $1,370,700    $101,929,307   $ (19,012,500)  $84,296,585  

        

Net Income           14,666,874    14,666,874  
Distributions to stockholders sourced as return of capital          (3,915,124)    (3,915,124) 
Reinvestment of distributions to stockholders    68,416     69       430,769     430,838  

        

Balance at November 30, 2010    9,146,506     9,147     1,370,700     98,444,952    (4,345,626)   95,479,173  
        

Net Income           2,922,143    2,922,143  
Distributions to stockholders sourced as return of capital          (3,755,607)    (3,755,607) 
Reinvestment of distributions to stockholders    30,383     30       252,212     252,242  
Consolidation of wholly-owned subsidiary          741,181    (5,212,819)   (4,471,638) 

        

Balance at November 30, 2011    9,176,889     9,177     1,370,700     95,682,738    (6,636,302)   90,426,313  
        

Net Income          —       12,348,721    12,348,721  
Distributions to stockholders sourced as return of capital          (4,040,273)    (4,040,273) 
Reinvestment of distributions to stockholders    13,778     14       121,010     121,024  

        

Balance at November 30, 2012    9,190,667    $9,191    $1,370,700    $ 91,763,475   $ 5,712,419   $98,855,785  
        

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc.
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
 

   
For the Year Ended
November 30, 2012   

For the Year Ended
November 30, 2011   

For the Year Ended
November 30, 2010  

Operating Activities     
Net Income   $ 12,348,721   $ 2,922,143   $ 14,666,874  

Adjustments:     
Distributions received from investment securities    4,985,370    2,845,434    3,064,204  
Deferred income tax, net    7,199,669    629,207    4,772,648  
Depreciation expense    1,118,269    364,254    —     
Amortization of intangible lease asset    291,939    121,641    —     
Amortization of assumed debt premium    (91,883)   (94,611)   —     
Realized and unrealized (gain) loss on trading securities    (4,009,933)   (2,299,975)   894,531  
Realized and unrealized gain on other equity securities    (16,171,944)   (2,283,773)   (20,340,602) 
Changes in assets and liabilities:     

Decrease (increase) in interest, dividend and distribution receivable    —       42,778    (42,774) 
Decrease in lease receivable    474,152    237,077    —     
Increase in accounts receivable    (167,302)   (92,473)   —     
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets    (233,272)   70,109    (13,429) 
Increase (decrease) in management fees payable to Adviser, net of expense

reimbursement    5,403    25,632    (30,926) 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities    1,528,541    275,003    (47,625) 
Increase in unearned income    2,370,762    —       —     

  

Net cash provided by operating activities   $ 9,648,492   $ 2,762,446   $ 2,922,901  
  

Investing Activities     
Purchases of long-term investments of trading and other equity securities    —       (38,060,281)   (10,633,882) 
Proceeds from sale of long-term investment of trading and other equity securities    9,354,306    53,950,583    15,762,612  
Proceeds from receipt of escrow receivable    628,863    —       —     
Acquisition expenditures and deferred lease costs    (942,707)   —       —     
Cash paid in business combination    —       (12,250,000)   —     
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment    3,076    —       —     
Purchases of property and equipment    (30,321)   (1,045)   —     

  

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities   $ 9,013,217   $ 3,639,257   $ 5,128,730  
  

Financing Activities     

Payments on long-term debt    (2,188,000)   (1,221,000)   —     
Payments on lease obligation    (80,028)   (44,816)   —     
Deferred financing costs    (1,054,302)   —       —     
Advances from revolving line of credit    5,285,000    —       —     
Repayments on revolving line of credit    (5,165,000)   (400,000)   (4,600,000) 
Distributions paid to common stockholders    (3,919,249)   (3,503,365)   (3,484,284) 

  

Net cash used in financing activities   $ (7,121,579)  $ (5,169,181)  $ (8,084,284) 
  

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents   $ 11,540,130   $ 1,232,522   $ (32,653) 
Consolidation of wholly-owned subsidiary    —       94,611    —     
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of year    2,793,326    1,466,193    1,498,846  

  

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period   $ 14,333,456   $ 2,793,326   $ 1,466,193  
  

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information     
Interest paid   $ 203,611   $ 176,595   $ 66,703  
Income taxes paid   $ 96,000   $ 253,650   $ —     

Non-Cash Investing Activities     
Security proceeds from sale of long-term investment of other equity securities   $ 26,565,400   $ —      $ —     

Non-Cash Financing Activities     
Reinvestment of distributions by common stockholders in additional common shares   $ 121,024   $ 252,242   $ 430,838  

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc.
 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

November 30, 2012

1. Introduction and Basis of Presentation
CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc, formerly known as Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation, (the “Company”) was organized as a Maryland corporation on September 8,
2005. The Company completed its initial public offering in February 2007 as a non-diversified closed-end management investment company regulated as a business
development company (“BDC”) under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”). The Company withdrew its election to be treated as a BDC on
September 21, 2011 in order to pursue qualification as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”). Historically as a BDC, the Company invested primarily in privately held
companies operating in the U.S. energy infrastructure sector. The Company’s shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CORR.”

The financial statements included in this report are based on the selection and application of critical accounting policies, which require management to make significant
estimates and assumptions. Critical accounting policies are those that are both important to the presentation of our financial condition and results of operations and require
management’s most difficult, complex or subjective judgments.

Beginning with the filing of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year-ended November 30, 2011, the Company’s consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mowood, LLC (“Mowood”). Mowood is the holding company for Omega Pipeline Company, LLC (“Omega”). Omega owns
and operates a natural gas distribution system in Fort Leonard Wood, Missouri. Omega is responsible for purchasing and coordinating delivery of natural gas to Fort Leonard
Wood, as well as performing maintenance and expansion of the pipeline. In addition, Omega provides gas marketing services to local commercial end users. All significant
inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Presentation
Consolidation of Mowood was initiated at the time the Company withdrew its election to be treated as a BDC (September 21, 2011) and began reporting its financial results in
accordance with general corporate reporting guidelines instead of under the AICPA Investment Company Audit Guide (the “Guide”). At that time, the presentation of the
Company’s financial statements changed. Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the presentation required for general corporate entities and to provide
comparability of financial results across reporting periods. The reclassification of account balances for prior years, which are summarized below, did not impact the Company’s
financial position or reported net results of operations:
 

 
•  Components of Stockholders’ Equity on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of November 30, 2010 have been combined. Accumulated net investment loss, net of

income taxes of $(3,308,522), accumulated realized loss, net of income taxes of $(18,532,648), and net unrealized appreciation of investments, net of income
taxes of $17,495,544 have been combined into Accumulated Deficit.

 

 
•  Items on the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended November 30, 2010 have been reclassified and aggregated to conform to the presentation of

the results of operations for the years ended November 30, 2012 and 2011. However, there was no impact to net income or earnings per share. Income from
investment securities are no longer considered to be part of the Company’s operations and therefore have been classified as other income.

 

 •  Components of cash flows for the year ended November 30, 2010 have been reclassified and aggregated to conform to the presentation of cash flows for the years
ended November 30, 2012 and 2011.
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect the results of the Company’s operations for the year ended November 30, 2010 and the period from December 1,
2010 to September 21, 2011, during which time the Company reported under the Guide, and therefore reported and accounted for Mowood as an investment carried at fair
value. Subsequent to September 21, 2011, the Company ceased reporting under the Guide. The results of operations for Mowood for the year ended November 30, 2012 and for
the period from September 21, 2011 to November 30, 2011, and related balances at November 30, 2012 and 2011, are included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements as of and for the years ended November 30, 2012 and 2011.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
A. Use of Estimates – The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amount of assets and liabilities, recognition of distribution income and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

B. Investment Securities – The Company’s investments in securities are classified as either trading or other equity securities:
 

 •  Trading securities – the Company’s publicly traded equity securities are classified as trading securities and are reported at fair value because the Company intends
to sell these securities in order to acquire real asset investments.

 

 •  Other equity securities – the Company’s other equity securities represent interests in private companies for which the Company has elected to report these at fair
value under the fair value option.

 

 
•  Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on trading securities and other equity securities – Changes in the fair values of the Company’s securities during the period

reported and the gains or losses realized upon sale of securities during the period are reflected as other income within the accompanying Consolidated Statements
of Income.

C. Security Transactions and Fair Value – Security transactions are accounted for on the date the securities are purchased or sold (trade date). Realized gains and losses are
reported on an identified cost basis.

For equity securities that are freely tradable and listed on a securities exchange or over-the-counter market, the Company fair values those securities at their last sale price on
that exchange or over-the-counter market on the valuation date. If the security is listed on more than one exchange, the Company will use the price from the exchange that it
considers to be the principal exchange on which the security is traded. Securities listed on the NASDAQ will be valued at the NASDAQ Official Closing Price, which may not
necessarily represent the last sale price. If there has been no sale on such exchange or over-the-counter market on such day, the security will be valued at the mean between the
last bid price and last ask price on such day.

An equity security of a publicly traded company acquired in a private placement transaction without registration is subject to restrictions on resale that can affect the security’s
liquidity and fair value. Such securities that are convertible into or otherwise will become freely tradable will be valued based on the market value of the freely tradable security
less an applicable discount. Generally, the discount will initially be equal to the discount at which the Company purchased the securities. To the extent that such securities are
convertible or otherwise become freely tradable within a time frame that may be reasonably determined, an amortization schedule may be used to determine the discount.

The major components of net realized and unrealized gain on trading securities for the years ended November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
 

  For the Years Ended  

Description  
November 30,

2012   
November 30,

2011   
November 30,

2010  
Net unrealized gain on trading securities  $3,985,269   $ 238,617   $ 3,119,424  
Net realized gain on trading securities   24,664    2,061,358    (4,013,955) 
Total net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on trading securities  $4,009,933   $2,299,975   $ (894,531) 
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The Company holds investments in illiquid securities including debt and equity securities of privately-held companies. These investments generally are subject to restrictions on
resale, have no established trading market and are fair valued on a quarterly basis. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the fair values of such investments, which
are determined in accordance with procedures approved by the Company’s Board of Directors, may differ materially from the values that would have been used had a ready
market existed for the investments. The Company’s Board of Directors may consider other methods of valuing investments as appropriate and in conformity with GAAP.

The Company determines fair value to be the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The Company has determined the principal market, or the market in which the Company exits its private portfolio investments with the greatest volume
and level of activity, to be the private secondary market. Typically, private companies are bought and sold based on multiples of EBITDA, cash flows, net income, revenues, or
in limited cases, book value.

For private company investments, value is often realized through a liquidity event of the entire company. Therefore, the value of the company as a whole (enterprise value) at
the reporting date often provides the best evidence of the value of the investment and is the initial step for valuing the Company’s privately issued securities. For any one
company, enterprise value may best be expressed as a range of fair values, from which a single estimate of fair value will be derived. In determining the enterprise value of a
portfolio company, an analysis is prepared consisting of traditional valuation methodologies including market and income approaches. The Company considers some or all of
the traditional valuation methods based on the individual circumstances of the portfolio company in order to derive its estimate of enterprise value.

The fair value of investments in private portfolio companies is determined based on various factors, including enterprise value, observable market transactions, such as recent
offers to purchase a company, recent transactions involving the purchase or sale of the equity securities of the company, or other liquidation events. The determined equity
values may be discounted when the Company has a minority position, or is subject to restrictions on resale, has specific concerns about the receptivity of the capital markets to a
specific company at a certain time, or other comparable factors exist.

The Company undertakes a multi-step valuation process each quarter in connection with determining the fair value of private investments. An independent valuation firm has
been engaged by the Company to provide independent, third-party valuation consulting services based on procedures that the Company has identified and may ask them to
perform from time to time on all or a selection of private investments as determined by the Company. The multi-step valuation process is specific to the level of assurance that
the Company requests from the independent valuation firm. For positive assurance, the process is as follows:
 

 •  The independent valuation firm prepares the valuations and the supporting analysis.
 

 •  The Investment Committee of the Adviser reviews the valuations and supporting analyses, prior to approving the valuations.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents – The Company maintains cash balances at financial institutions in amounts that regularly exceed FDIC insured limits. The Company’s cash
equivalents are comprised of short-term, liquid money market instruments.

E. Accounts Receivable – Accounts receivable are presented at face value net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts are considered past due based on the terms of sale
with the customers. The Company reviews accounts for collectability based on an analysis of specific outstanding receivables, current economic conditions and past collection
experience. At November 30, 2012, Management determined that an allowance for doubtful accounts related to our leases was not required. Lease payments by our Major
Tenant, as defined within Note 9, have remained timely and without lapse.

F. Revenue and Other Income Recognition – Specific policies for the Company’s revenue and other income items are as follows:
 

 

•  Sales Revenue – Omega, acting as a principal, provides for transportation services and natural gas supply for its customers on a firm basis. In addition, Omega is
paid fees for the operation and maintenance of its natural gas distribution system, including any necessary expansion of the distribution system. Omega is
responsible for the coordination, supervision and quality of the expansions while actual construction is generally performed by third party contractors. Revenues
related to natural gas distribution are recognized upon delivery of natural gas and upon the substantial performance of management and supervision services
related to the expansion of the natural gas distribution system. Revenues from expansion efforts are recognized in accordance with GAAP using either a completed
contract or percentage of completion method based on the level and volume of estimates utilized, as well as the certainty or uncertainty of our ability to collect
those revenues.
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•  Lease Income – Income related to the Company’s leased property is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease when collectability is reasonably

assured. Prior to November 1, 2012 rental payments on the leased property were typically received on a semi-annual basis and were included as lease income
within the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.
Upon the November 1, 2012 execution of the Asset Purchase Agreement related to our leased property (see Note 7 for further information), rental payments on the
leased property are to be received in advance and are classified as unearned income and included in liabilities within the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Unearned
income is amortized ratably over the lease period as revenue recognition criteria are met.

 

 

•  Dividends and distributions from investments  – Dividends and distributions from investments are recorded on their ex-dates and are reflected as other income
within the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. Distributions received from the Company’s investments generally are characterized as ordinary
income, capital gains and distributions received from investment securities. The portion characterized as return of capital is paid by our investees from their cash
flow from operations. The Company records investment income, capital gains and/or distributions received from investment securities based on estimates made at
the time such distributions are received. Such estimates are based on information available from each company and/or other industry sources. These estimates may
subsequently be revised based on information received from the entities after their tax reporting periods are concluded, as the actual character of these
distributions is not known until after the fiscal year end of the Company.
For the year ended November 30, 2012, the Company estimated the allocation of investment income and distributions received from investment securities for the
distributions received during the period from its portfolio companies within the Consolidated Statements of Income. For this period, the Company has estimated
approximately 3 percent as investment income and approximately 97 percent distributions received from investment securities. The return of capital portions of the
distributions are reflected on the Consolidated Cash Flow Statements as “distributions received from investment securities.”

 

 

•  Securities Transactions and Investment Income Recognition — Securities transactions are accounted for on the date the securities are purchased or sold (trade
date). Realized gains and losses are reported on an identified cost basis. Distributions received from our equity investments generally are comprised of ordinary
income, capital gains and distributions received from investment securities from the portfolio company. The Company records investment income and return of
capital based on estimates made at the time such distributions are received. Such estimates are based on information available from each portfolio company and/or
other industry sources. These estimates may subsequently be revised based on information received from the portfolio companies after their tax reporting periods
are concluded, as the actual character of these distributions are not known until after our fiscal year end.
During the year ended November 30, 2012, the Company reallocated the amount of 2011 investment income and return of capital it recognized based on the 2011
tax reporting information received from individual portfolio companies. This reclassification amounted to a decrease in net distributions and dividend income on
securities of approximately $448,000 or $.05 per share ($281,000 or $0.03 per share, net of deferred tax benefit); an increase in net realized and unrealized gains on
trading and other equity securities of $448,000 or $.05 per share ($281,000 or $0.03 per share, net of deferred tax expense) for the year ended November 30, 2011.

G. Cost of Sales – Included in the Company’s cost of sales are the amounts paid for gas and propane, along with related transportation, which are delivered to customers, as well
as the cost of material and labor related to the expansion of the natural gas distribution system.

H. Distributions to Stockholders – The amount of any quarterly distributions to stockholders will be determined by the Board of Directors. Distributions to stockholders are
recorded on the ex-dividend date. The character of distributions made during the year may differ from their ultimate characterization for federal income tax purposes. For the
years ended November 30, 2012, November 30, 2011 and November 30, 2010, the source of the Company’s distributions for book purposes was primarily received from
investment securities. For the year ended November 30, 2012, the Company’s distributions for tax purposes were comprised of 100 percent return of capital. For the year ended
November 30, 2011, the Company’s distributions for tax purposes were comprised of 100 percent qualified dividend income. For the year ended November 30, 2010, the
Company’s distributions for tax purposes were comprised of 100 percent return of capital.
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I. Federal and State Income Taxation – The Company, as a corporation, is obligated to pay federal and state income tax on its taxable income. Currently, the highest regular
marginal federal income tax rate for a corporation is 35 percent. The Company may be subject to a 20 percent federal alternative minimum tax on its federal alternative
minimum taxable income to the extent that its alternative minimum tax exceeds its regular federal income tax.

The Company’s trading securities and other equity securities are limited partnerships or limited liability companies which are treated as partnerships for federal and state
income tax purposes. As a limited partner, the Company reports its allocable share of taxable income in computing its own taxable income. The Company’s tax expense or
benefit is included in the Consolidated Statement of Income based on the component of income or gains (losses) to which such expense or benefit relates. Deferred income taxes
reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
purposes. A valuation allowance is recognized if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred income tax asset
will not be realized.

J. Leases – The Company includes assets subject to lease arrangements within Leased property, net of accumulated depreciation in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Lease
payments received are reflected in lease income on the Consolidated Statements of Income, net of amortization of any off market adjustments.

Certain initial direct costs incurred related to a lease are capitalized and amortized over the lease term. As of November 30, 2012, approximately $754,000 of deferred lease
costs related to probable leases are included in Other Assets within the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The deferred costs will be amortized over the anticipated 15 year life of the
new lease and will be included in Amortization expense within the Consolidated Income Statement. See Footnote 15 for further discussion.

K. Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles – Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from five to twenty years. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as incurred, and improvements,
which extend the useful lives of assets, are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining estimated useful life of the asset.

The Company initially records long-lived assets at their acquisition cost, unless the transaction is accounted for as a business combination. If the transaction is accounted for as a
business combination, the Company allocates the purchase price to the acquired tangible and intangible assets and liabilities based on their estimated fair values. The Company
determines the fair values of assets and liabilities based on discounted cash flow models using current market assumptions, appraisals, recent transactions involving similar
assets or liabilities and/or other objective evidence, and depreciates the asset values over the estimated remaining useful lives.

In connection with these transactions, the Company may acquire long-lived assets that are subject to an existing lease contract with the seller or other lessee party and the
Company may assume outstanding debt of the seller as part of the consideration paid. If, at the time of acquisition, the existing lease or debt contract is not at current market
terms, the Company will record an asset or liability at the time of acquisition representing the amount by which the fair value of the lease or debt contract differs from its
contractual value. Such amount is then amortized over the remaining contract term as an adjustment to the related lease revenue or interest expense.

The Company periodically reviews its long-lived assets, primarily real estate, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
such assets may not be recoverable. The Company’s review involves comparing current and future operating performance of the assets, the most significant of which is
undiscounted operating cash flows, to the carrying value of the assets. Based on this analysis, a provision for possible loss is recognized, if any. No impairment write-downs
were recognized during the year ended November 30, 2012 and 2011.

Costs in connection with the direct acquisition of a new asset are capitalized and amortized over the life of the asset. As of November 30, 2012, approximately $189,000 in asset
acquisition costs related to the Pinedale LGS acquisition is included in Other Assets within the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The asset acquisition costs will be depreciated over
the anticipated 26 year life of the newly acquired asset and will be included in Depreciation expense within the Consolidated Income Statement. See Footnote 15 for further
discussion.
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L. Asset Acquisition Expenses – Costs in connection with the research of real property acquisitions are expensed as incurred until determination that the acquisition of the real
property is probable. Upon the determination, costs in connection with the acquisition of the property are capitalized as per above.

M. Offering Costs – Offering costs related to the issuance of common stock are charged to additional paid-in capital when the stock is issued.

As of November 30, 2012, approximately $617,000 in offering costs is included in Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets within the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

N. Debt Issuance Costs – Costs in connection with the issuance of new debt are capitalized and amortized over the debt term.

As of November 30, 2012, approximately $437,000 in debt issuance costs is included in Other Assets on the Balance Sheets. The deferred costs will be amortized over the
anticipated 3 year term of the newly acquired debt and will be included in Interest Expense within the Consolidated Income Statement. See Footnote 15 for further discussion.

O. Recent Accounting Pronouncement – In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04 “Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure
Requirements” in GAAP and the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”). ASU No. 2011-04 amends FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures, to establish common requirements for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value measurements in accordance with GAAP and IFRSs.
ASU No. 2011-04 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011 and for interim periods within those fiscal years.

3. Concentrations
The Company has historically invested in securities of privately-held and publicly-traded companies in the midstream and downstream segments of the U.S. energy
infrastructure sector. As of November 30, 2012, investments in securities of energy infrastructure companies represented approximately 67 percent of the Company’s total
assets. The Company is now focused on identifying and acquiring real property assets in the U.S. energy infrastructure sector that are REIT qualified.

The Company’s leased property at November 30, 2012 was leased to a single entity, Public Service Company of New Mexico (“PNM”), as further described in Note 7 below.
PNM’s financial condition and ability and willingness to satisfy its obligations under its leases with the Company has a considerable impact on the Company’s results of
operations.

Mowood, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, has a ten-year contract, expiring in 2015, with the Department of Defense (“DOD”) to provide natural gas and gas
distribution services to Fort Leonard Wood. Revenue related to the DOD contract accounted for 83 and 88 percent of sales revenues for the fiscal year ended November 30,
2012, and for the period from September 21, 2011 through November 30, 2011, respectively. Mowood, through its wholly owned subsidiary Omega, performs management and
supervision services related to the expansion of the natural gas distribution system used by the DOD. The amount due from the DOD accounts for 84 and 85 percent of the
consolidated accounts receivable balances at November 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Mowood’s contracts for its supply of natural gas are concentrated among select providers. Payments to its largest supplier of natural gas during 2012 accounted for 29 percent
of cost of sales for the year ended November 30, 2012.

4. Agreements
On December 1, 2011, the Company executed a Management Agreement with Corridor InfraTrust Management, LLC (“Corridor”). The Management Agreement has a current
expiration date of June 30, 2012. The terms of the Management Agreement include a quarterly management fee equal to 0.25 percent (1.00 percent annualized) of the value of
the Company’s average monthly Managed Assets for such quarter. For purposes of the Management Agreement, “Managed Assets” means all of the securities of the Company
and all of the real property assets of the Company (including any securities or real property assets purchased with or attributable to any borrowed funds) minus all of the accrued
liabilities other than (1) deferred taxes and (2) debt entered into for the purpose of leverage. For purposes of the definition of Managed Assets, “securities” includes the
Company’s security portfolio, valued at then current market value. For purposes of the definition of Managed Assets, “real property assets” includes the assets of the Company
invested, directly or indirectly, in equity interests in or loans secured by real estate and personal property owned in connection with such real estate (including
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acquisition related costs and acquisition costs that may be allocated to intangibles or are unallocated, valued at the aggregate historical cost, before reserves for depreciation,
amortization, impairment charges or bad debts or other similar noncash reserves.) The Management Agreement also includes a quarterly incentive fee of 10 percent of the
increase in distributions paid over a threshold distribution equal to $0.125 per share per quarter. The Management Agreement also requires at least half of any incentive fees to
be reinvested in the Company’s common stock.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, Corridor assumed the Company’s Administrator Agreement, retroactive to August 7, 2012. Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C. (“TCA”)
served as the Company’s administrator until that date. The Company pays the administrator a fee equal to an annual rate of 0.04 percent of aggregate average daily managed
assets, with a minimum annual fee of $30,000.

On December 1, 2011, we entered into an Advisory Agreement by and among the Company, TCA and Corridor, under which TCA provided certain securities focused
investment services necessary to evaluate, monitor and liquidate the Company’s remaining securities portfolio (“Designated Advisory Services”), and also provide the
Company with certain operational (i.e. non-investment) services (“Designated Operational Services”). Effective December 21, 2012, that agreement was replaced by an
Amended Advisory Agreement pursuant to which TCA provides investment services related to the monitoring and disposition of our current securities portfolio.

U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC serves as the Company’s fund accounting services provider. The Company pays the provider a monthly fee computed at an annual rate of
$24,000 on the first $50,000,000 of the Company’s Net Assets, 0.0125 percent on the next $200,000,000 of Net Assets, 0.0075 percent on the next $250,000,000 of Net Assets
and 0.0025 percent on the balance of the Company’s Net Assets.

5. Income Taxes
Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and tax purposes.
Components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of November 30, 2012 and November 30, 2011 are as follows:
 

Description   
November 30,

2012   
November 30,

2011  
Deferred Tax Assets:    

Organization costs   $ (17,668)  $ (20,068) 
Net operating loss carryforwards    (6,411,230)   (2,624,525) 
Cost recovery of leased assets    (36,443)   (119,970) 
Asset acquisition costs    (134,415)   —    
AMT and State of Kansas credit    (196,197)   (205,039) 

  

Sub-total   $ (6,795,953)  $(2,969,602) 
  

Deferred Tax Liabilities:    
Basis reduction of investment in partnerships   $11,655,817   $ 2,244,914  
Net unrealized gain on investment securities    2,312,269    697,152  

  

Sub-total   $13,968,086   $ 2,942,066  
  

Total net deferred tax liability (asset)   $ 7,172,133   $ (27,536) 
  

At November 30, 2012, a valuation allowance on deferred tax assets was not deemed necessary because the Company believes it is more likely than not that there is an ability
to realize its deferred tax assets through future taxable income. Any adjustments to the Company’s estimates of future taxable income will be made in the period such
determination is made. The Company recognizes the tax benefits of uncertain tax positions only when the position is “more likely than not” to be sustained upon examination by
the tax authorities based on the technical merits of the tax position. The Company’s policy is to record interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions as part of tax expense. As
of November 30, 2012, the Company had no uncertain tax positions and no penalties and interest were accrued. The Company does not expect any change to its unrecognized
tax positions in the twelve months subsequent to November 30, 2012. Tax years subsequent to the year ending November 30, 2006 remain open to examination by federal and
state tax authorities.

Total income tax expense differs from the amount computed by applying the federal statutory income tax rates of 35 percent for the years ended November 30, 2012 and 2011
and 34 percent for the year ended November 30, 2010 to gain (loss) from operations and other income for the years presented , as follows:
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   For the Years Ended  

Description   
November 30,

2012   
November 30,

2011   
November 30,

2010  
Application of statutory income tax rate   $6,852,179   $1,331,750   $ 6,609,437  
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit    442,455    133,158    353,799  
Dividends received deduction    (1,221)   (86)   —    
Change in deferred tax liability due to change in overall tax rate    (64,479)   (23,432)   288,968  
Change in deferred tax valuation allowance    —      (558,533)   (2,479,556) 

  

Total income tax expense   $7,228,934   $ 882,857   $ 4,772,648  
  

Total income taxes are computed by applying the federal statutory rate plus a blended state income tax rate. During the year, the Company re-evaluated its overall federal and
state income tax rate, decreasing it from 37.62 percent to 37.26 percent, due to anticipated state apportionment of income and gains.

The components of income tax expense include the following for the years presented:
 

  For the Years Ended  

Description  
November 30,

2012   
November 30,

2011   
November 30,

2010  
Current tax expense    

AMT expense (benefit)  $ (8,842)  $ 200,000   $ —    
State (reflects a federal tax benefit in deferred tax expense)   38,107    53,650    —    

Total current tax expense  $ 29,265   $ 253,650   $ —     
Deferred tax expense    

Federal  $6,762,974   $ 585,386   $4,530,152  
State (net of federal tax benefit)   436,695    43,821    242,496  

Total deferred tax expense  $7,199,669   $ 629,207   $4,772,648  
Total income tax expense  $7,228,934   $ 882,857   $4,772,648  

The deferred income tax expense for the years ended November 30, 2011 and 2010 includes the impact of the change in valuation allowance for such respective years.

As of November 30, 2012, the Company had a net operating loss for federal income tax purposes of approximately $17,234,000. The net operating loss may be carried forward
for 20 years. If not utilized, this net operating loss will expire as follows: $8,000, $4,002,000, $3,353,000, $24,000 and $9,847,000 in the years ending November 30, 2028,
2029, 2030, 2031 and 2032 respectively. As of November 30, 2012, an alternative minimum tax credit of $194,267 was available, which may be credited in the future against
regular income tax. This credit may be carried forward indefinitely.

The aggregate cost of securities for federal income tax purposes and securities with unrealized appreciation and depreciation, were as follows:
 

Description   
November 30,

2012   
November 30,

2011  
Aggregate cost for federal income tax purposes   $41,995,195   $65,471,208  

  

Gross unrealized appreciation    33,892,176    8,307,122  
Gross unrealized depreciation    (801,340)   (4,883,958) 

  

Net unrealized appreciation   $33,090,836   $ 3,423,164  
  

6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Various inputs are used in determining the fair value of the Company’s assets and liabilities. These inputs are summarized in the three broad levels listed below:
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 •  Level 1 – quoted prices in active markets for identical investments
 

 •  Level 2 – other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar investments, market corroborated inputs, etc.)
 

 •  Level 3 – significant unobservable inputs (including the Company’s own assumptions in determining the fair value of investments)

In general, and where applicable, the Company uses readily available market quotations based upon the last updated sales price from the principal market to determine fair
value. This pricing methodology applies to the Company’s Level 1 trading securities.

The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with investing in those securities. The following tables provide the
fair value measurements of applicable Company assets and liabilities by level within the fair value hierarchy as of November 30, 2012 and November 30, 2011. These assets
and liabilities are measured on a recurring basis.

November 30, 2012
 

       Fair Value  
Description   November 30, 2012   Level 1    Level 2    Level 3  
Investments:         
Trading securities   $ 55,219,411    $27,480,191    $27,739,220    $ —    
Other equity securities    19,866,621     —       —       19,866,621  

        

Total Investments   $ 75,086,032    $27,480,191    $27,739,220    $19,866,621  
        

November 30, 2011
 

    Fair Value  
Description   November 30, 2011    Level 1    Level 2   Level 3  
Assets:           
Trading securities   $ 27,037,642    $27,037,642    $  —    $ —    
Other equity securities    41,856,730     —       —       41,856,730  

          

Total Assets   $ 68,894,372    $27,037,642    $ —      $41,856,730  
          

The changes for all Level 3 securities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs for the years ended November 30, 2012 and
November 30, 2011, are as follows:
 

   
Year ended

November 30, 2012  
Year ended

November 30, 2011 
Fair value beginning balance   $ 41,856,730   $ 72,929,409  
Total realized and unrealized gains included in net income    16,190,428    1,026,134  
Purchases    —      20,987,605  
Sales    (35,919,672)   (42,275,886) 
Return of capital adjustments impacting cost basis of securities    (2,260,865)   (1,518,285) 
Transfers out    —      (9,292,247) 

  

Fair value ending balance   $ 19,866,621   $ 41,856,730  
  

The amount of total gains (losses) for the period included in net income
attributable to the change in unrealized gains (losses) relating to securities
still held at the reporting date which are included in net realized and
unrealized gain on other equity securities within the statement of income   $ 5,018,152   $ (3,287,478) 
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As of November 30, 2011, the Company’s other equity securities, which represented security interests in private companies, and were classified as Level 3 assets, included High
Sierra Energy, LP. On June 19, 2012, NGL Energy Partners, LP and certain of its affiliates (collectively “NGL”) acquired High Sierra Energy, LP and High Sierra Energy GP,
LLC (collectively “High Sierra”) pursuant to which NGL, a New York Stock Exchange listed company, paid to the limited partners of High Sierra approximately $9.4 million in
cash and approximately 1.2 million newly issued units of NGL. A realized gain of $15.8 million was recognized during the third quarter of 2012 upon the sale. NGL is
classified as a Level 2 Trading security above.

The Company utilizes the beginning of reporting period method for determining transfers between levels. There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 or 3 for the year ended
November 30, 2012. For the year ended November 30, 2011, there were transfers out of Level 3 assets in the amount of $9,292,247, which represents the values of the
Company’s equity interest in Mowood and subordinated debt issued to Mowood at the beginning of the year that were eliminated upon consolidation. There were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 for the year ended November 30, 2011.

Valuation Techniques and Unobservable Inputs
An equity security of a publicly traded company acquired in a private placement transaction without registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”),
is subject to restrictions on resale that can affect the security’s liquidity (and hence its fair value). If the security has a common share counterpart trading in a public market, the
Company generally determines an appropriate percentage discount for the security in light of the restrictions that apply to its resale (taking into account, for example, whether
the resale restrictions of Rule 144 under the 1933 Act apply). This pricing methodology applies to the Company’s Level 2 trading securities.

The Company’s other equity securities, which represent security interests in private companies, are classified as Level 3 assets. Valuation of these investments is determined by
weighting various valuation metrics for each security. Significant judgment is required in selecting the assumptions used to determine the fair values of these investments. See
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies.

The Company’s investments in private companies are typically valued using one of or a combination of the following the following valuation techniques: (i) analysis of
valuations for publicly traded companies in a similar line of business (“public company analysis”), (ii) analysis of valuations for comparable M&A transactions (“M&A
analysis”) and (iii) discounted cash flow analysis. The table entitled “Quantitative Table for Valuation Techniques” outlines the valuation technique(s) used for each asset
category.

The public company analysis utilizes valuation multiples for publicly traded companies in a similar line of business as the portfolio company to estimate the fair value of such
investment. Typically, the Company’s analysis focuses on the ratio of enterprise value to earnings before interest expense, income tax expense, depreciation and amortization
(“EBITDA”) which is commonly referred to as an EV/EBITDA multiple. The Company selects a range of multiples given the trading multiples of similar publicly traded
companies and applies such multiples to the portfolio company’s EBITDA to estimate the portfolio company’s trailing, proforma, projected or average (as appropriate)
EBITDA to estimate the portfolio company’s enterprise value and equity value. The Company also selects a range of trading market yields of similar public companies and
applies such yields to the portfolio company’s estimated distributable cash flow. When calculating these values, the Company applies a discount, when applicable, to the
portfolio company’s estimated equity value for the size of the company and the lack of liquidity in the portfolio company’s securities.

The M&A analysis utilizes valuation multiples for historical M&A transactions for companies or assets in a similar line of business as the portfolio company to estimate the fair
value of such investment. Typically, the Company’s analysis focuses on EV/EBITDA multiples. The Company selects a range of multiples based on EV/EBITDA multiples for
similar M&A transactions or similar companies and applies such ranges to the portfolio company’s analytical EBITDA to estimate the portfolio company’s enterprise value.

The discounted cash flow analysis is used to estimate the equity value for the portfolio company based on estimated DCF of such portfolio company. Such cash flows include
an estimate of terminal value for the portfolio company. A present value of these cash flows is determined by using estimated discount rates (based on the Company’s estimate
for weighted average cost of capital for such portfolio company).

Under all of these valuation techniques, the Company estimates operating results of its portfolio companies (including EBITDA). These estimates utilize unobservable inputs
such as historical operating results, which may be unaudited, and projected operating results, which will be based on expected operating assumptions for such portfolio
company. The Company also consults with management of the portfolio companies to develop these financial projections. These estimates will be sensitive to changes in
assumptions specific to such portfolio company as well as general assumptions for the
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industry. Other unobservable inputs utilized in the valuation techniques outlined above include: possible discounts for lack of marketability, selection of publicly-traded
companies, selection of similar M&A transactions, selected ranges for valuation multiples, selected range of yields and expected required rates of return and weighted average
cost of capital. The various techniques will be weighted as appropriate; and other factors may be weighted into the valuation, including recent capital transactions of the
Company.

Changes in EBITDA multiples, or discount rates may change the fair value of the Company’s portfolio investments. Generally, a decrease in EBITDA multiples or DCF
multiples, or an increase in discount rates, when applicable, may result in a decrease in the fair value of the Company’s portfolio investments.

Due to the inherent uncertainty of determining the fair value of investments that do not have a readily available market value, the fair value of the Company’s investments may
fluctuate from period to period. Additionally, the fair value of the Company’s investments may differ from the values that would have been used had a ready market existed for
such investments and may differ materially from the values that the Company may ultimately realize.

The following table summarizes the significant unobservable inputs that the Company uses to value its portfolio investments categorized as Level 3 as of November 30, 2012.

Quantitative Table for Valuation Techniques
 
Assets at            Range   Weighted 
Fair Value   Fair Value    Valuation Technique   Unobservable Inputs  Low   High   Average  
Other equity securities, at fair value

  
$19,866,621  

  
Public company historical EBITDA
analysis   Historical EBITDA Valuation Multiples   9.4x    10.4x    9.95x  

    
Public company projected EBITDA
analysis   Projected EBITDA Valuation Multiples   8.1x    9.8x    8.95x  

    Public company yield analysis   Distributable Cash Flow Yield   8.11%   9.11%   8.61% 
    M&A company analysis   EV/LTM 2012 EBITDA   9.3x    9.9x    9.6x  
    Discounted cash flow   Weighted Average Cost of Capital   9.5%   13.0%   11.25% 

Certain condensed financial information of the unconsolidated affiliates follows. The information is the most recently available financial information for these companies,
which is the last twelve months ending September 30, 2012 as reported by the portfolio companies for VantaCore Partners LP ( 11.09 percent equity interest) and Lightfoot
Capital Partners LP (6.67 percent equity interest).
 

Revenues   $83,969,000    Current assets   $ 33,430,000  

Operating expenses   $65,351,000    Noncurrent assets   $295,658,000  

Net income   $ 4,643,000    Current liabilities   $ 16,248,000  

    Noncurrent liabilities   $110,549,000  

    Partner’s equity   $202,291,000  

The following section describes the valuation methodologies used by the Company for estimating fair value for financial instruments not recorded at fair value, but fair value is
included for disclosure purposes only, as required under disclosure guidance related to the fair value of financial instruments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — The carrying value of cash, amounts due from banks, federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements approximates fair
value.
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Escrow Receivable — The escrow receivable due the Company, which relates to the sale of International Resource Partners, LP, is anticipated to be released upon satisfaction of
certain post-closing obligations and/or the expiration of certain time periods (the shortest of which was to be 14 months from the April 2011 closing date of the sale). The fair
value of the escrow receivable reflects a discount for the potential that the full amount due to the Company will not be realized. During the third quarter, the carrying value of
the escrow receivable was reduced by $335,486 to its fair value. In addition, during September of 2012, the Company received $628,863 of the escrow receivable due the
Company, and during the fourth quarter, the carrying value of the escrow receivable was further reduced by $13,974. No clear agreement has been reached as to the remaining
escrow balance and Management anticipates that it may take more than a year to satisfy other post-closing obligations, prior to receiving the approximately $699,000 escrow
balance remaining.

Long-term Debt — The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is calculated, for disclosure purposes, by discounting future cash flows by a rate equal to the Company’s
current expected rate for an equivalent transaction. The remaining principal balance outstanding on the debt assumed in the Eastern Interconnect Project (“EIP”) was paid in full
on the maturity date of October 1, 2012.

Line of Credit — The carrying value of the line of credit approximates the fair value due to its short term nature.
 
   Level within   November 30, 2012    November 30, 2011  

Description   
the Fair Value

Hierarchy   
Carrying
Amount    Fair Value    

Carrying
Amount    Fair Value  

Financial Assets           
Cash and cash equivalents   Level 1   $14,333,456    $14,333,456    $2,793,326    $2,793,326  
Escrow receivable   Level 2   $ 698,729    $ 698,729    $1,677,052    $1,677,052  
Financial Liabilities           
Long-term debt   Level 2   $ —      $ —      $2,279,883    $2,320,851  
Line of credit   Level 1   $ 120,000    $ 120,000    $ —      $ —    

7. Eastern Interconnect Project
Acquisition of Eastern Interconnect Project
On June 30, 2011, the Company purchased 100 percent ownership of a 40 percent undivided interest in the EIP for approximately $15.6 million, including the assumption of
$3.4 million of debt. The acquisition of the EIP was accounted for as a business combination, in accordance with ASC 805. The Company incurred costs of approximately
$600,000 in connection with the acquisition which were expensed during the year ended November 30, 2011. The transaction resulted in the acquisition of assets and liabilities
as follows:
 

Physical assets   $14,126,849  
Lease receivable    711,229  
Intangible lease asset    1,094,771  
Debt    (3,409,000) 
Fair value premium on debt    (186,493) 
Interest payable    (87,356) 

  

Net cash consideration paid   $12,250,000  
  

Physical Assets:
The EIP transmission assets move electricity across New Mexico between Albuquerque and Clovis. The physical assets include 216 miles of 345 kilovolts transmission lines,
towers, easement rights, converters and other grid support components. Originally, the assets were depreciated for book purposes over an estimated useful life of 20 years.
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The amount of depreciation of leased property reflected during the year ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 was $837,371 and $294,309, respectively. The 2012 amount
includes one month of incremental depreciation of $131,028 (see second paragraph under Pending Sale heading below).

Lease:
EIP is leased on a triple net basis through April 1, 2015 to PNM, an independent electric utility company serving approximately 500,000 customers in New Mexico. Public
Service Company of New Mexico is a subsidiary of PNM Resources (NYSE: PNM). Per the Lease Agreement, at the time of expiration of the lease, the Company could choose
to renew the lease with the lessee, the lessee could offer to repurchase the EIP, or the lease could be allowed to expire and the Company could find another lessee. Under the
terms of the Lease Agreement, the Company was to receive semi-annual lease payments.

At the time of acquisition, the rate of the lease was determined to be above market rates for similar leased assets and the Company recorded an intangible asset of $1,094,771 for
this premium which is being amortized as contra-lease income over the remaining lease term. See Note 10 below for further information as to the intangible asset.

Debt
The Company assumed a note with an outstanding principal balance of $3.4 million. The debt was collateralized by the EIP transmission assets. The note matured on October 1,
2012 and accrued interest at an annual rate of 10.25 percent, with principal and interest payments due on a semi-annual basis. At the time of acquisition, the interest rate on the
assumed debt was determined to be above market rates for similar debt and the Company recorded an intangible of $186,493 for this premium, which was fully amortized as of
November 30, 2012, and was a contra-interest expense over the remaining debt term.

Pending Sale of Eastern Interconnect Project
On November 1, 2012 the Company entered into a definitive Asset Purchase Agreement (“Purchase Agreement”) with PNM to sell the Company’s 40 percent undivided interest
in the EIP upon lease termination on April 1, 2015 for $7.68 million. Per the Purchase Agreement, PNM will also accelerate its remaining lease payments to the Company. Both
lease payments due in 2013 were paid to the Company upon execution of the Purchase Agreement on November 1, 2012. In addition, per the Purchase Agreement, PNM paid
$100,000 during the fourth quarter to compensate the Company for legal costs resulting from its filings with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. The three remaining
lease payments due April 1, 2014, October 1, 2014 and April 1, 2015 will be paid on January 1, 2014 in full.

The Company changed its estimated residual value used to calculate depreciation of the EIP, which will result in higher depreciation expenses beginning in November of 2012
through the expiration of the lease in April 2015. The incremental depreciation amounts to approximately $393,000 per quarter.

The negotiation of the end-of-lease purchase option was prompted in part by a directive from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”). FERC directed PNM, in
consultation with the Company, to identify the party that would provide transmission service over the leased portion of the EIP beyond the lease expiration in 2015. The
Purchase Agreement completes the response to FERC’s order.

8. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of the following:
 

Description   November 30, 2012  November 30, 2011 
Natural gas pipeline   $ 5,215,424   $ 5,215,424  
Vehicles and trailers    110,782    98,717  
Computers    14,018    12,150  

  

Gross property and equipment    5,340,224    5,326,291  
Less accumulated depreciation    (1,751,202)   (1,483,616) 

  

Net property and equipment   $ 3,589,022   $ 3,842,675  
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The amount of depreciation of property and equipment recognized for the year ended November 30, 2012 was $280,898. The amount of depreciation of property and equipment
recognized for the period from September 21, 2011 through November 30, 2011 was $69,945.

9. Leases
The Company’s investment in EIP is leased to PNM under net operating leases with various terms. PNM is referred to as the “Major Tenant”. Upon the execution of the
Purchase Agreement on November 1, 2012, the schedule of the rental payments under the lease, prior to the anticipated April 1, 2015 closing date, were changed from a semi-
annual basis. The last scheduled semi-annual lease payment per the Lease Agreement was received by the Company on October 1, 2012. In accordance with the Purchase
Agreement, PNM’s remaining basic rent payments due to the Company are to be accelerated. The semi-annual payments of approximately $1.42 million that were originally
scheduled to be due on April 1, and October 1, 2013, respectively, were received by the Company on November 1, 2012. Therefore, as of November 30, 2012, PNM had paid
$2,370,762 in future minimum rental payments in advance. The amount is reported as an unearned income liability within the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The future contracted minimum rental receipts for all net leases as of November 30, 2012 are as follows:
 

Years Ending November 30,   Amount  
2013    —    
2014   $4,267,371  
Thereafter    —    

  

Total   $4,267,371  
  

See discussion within Footnote 7 as to the $7.68 million that is anticipated to be received by the Company from PNM upon the pending sale of the Company’s 40 percent
undivided interest in the EIP to PNM on April 1, 2015.

In view of the fact that the Major Tenant leases a substantial portion of the Company’s net leased property which is a significant source of revenues and operating income, its
financial condition and ability and willingness to satisfy its obligations under its lease with the Company, have a considerable impact on the results of operation.

The Major Tenant is currently subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is required to file with the SEC annual reports
containing audited financial statements and quarterly reports containing unaudited financial statements. The audited financial statements and unaudited financial statements of
the Major Tenant can be found on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. The Company makes no representation as to the accuracy or completeness of the audited and unaudited
financial statements of the Major Tenant but has no reason not to believe the accuracy or completeness of such information. In addition, the Major Tenant has no duty,
contractual or otherwise, to advise the Company of any events that might have occurred subsequent to the date of such financial statements which could affect the significance
or accuracy of such information. None of the information in the public reports of the Major Tenant that are filed with the SEC is incorporated by reference into, or in any way
form part of this filing.

On February 9, 2010, Mowood sold one of its wholly owned subsidiaries to an unrelated third party. As part of that agreement, Mowood retained a lease obligation, including
insurance and other maintenance costs, for office space to be used by the subsidiary that was sold through April 2013. The fair value of the future minimum lease payments and
estimated costs were recorded as a liability upon the sale of the subsidiary.
 

   
Lease

Obligation   
Interest
Portion  

Estimated
Expenses    

Total
Obligation 

Year Ending November 30, 2012   $ 26,708    $ (245)  $ 1,059    $ 27,522  
      

  $ 26,708    $ (245)  $ 1,059    $ 27,522  
      

10. Intangibles
The Company has recorded an intangible lease asset for the fair value of the amount by which the remaining contractual lease payments exceed market lease rates at the time of
acquisition. The intangible lease asset is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term, which expires on April 1, 2015 Amortization of the intangible
lease asset is reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income as a reduction to lease income.
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Description   November 30, 2012  November 30, 2011 
Intangible lease asset   $ 1,094,771   $ 1,094,771  
Accumulated amortization    (413,580)   (121,641) 

  

Net intangible lease asset   $ 681,191   $ 973,130  
  

Remaining estimated amortization on the lease is as follows:
 

Year ending November 30,   Amount  
2013   $291,939  
2014    291,939  
2015    97,313  

  

  $681,191  
  

11. Credit Facilities
On November 30, 2011, the Company entered into a 180-day rolling evergreen Margin Loan Facility Agreement (“Margin Loan Agreement”) with Bank of America, N.A. The
terms of the Margin Loan Agreement provide for a $10,000,000 facility that is secured by certain of the Company’s assets. Outstanding balances generally will accrue interest
at a variable rate equal to one-month LIBOR plus 0.75 percent and unused portions of the facility will accrue a fee equal to an annual rate of 0.25 percent. The Company did not
have any borrowings outstanding as of November 30, 2012, and the facility was not utilized during the year ended November 30, 2012. As of November 30, 2012, the
Company had segregated trading securities with an aggregate fair value of $1,225,160 to serve as collateral for potential borrowings under the Margin Loan facility.

On October 29, 2010, Mowood entered into a Revolving Note Payable Agreement (“Note Payable Agreement”) with a financial institution with a maximum borrowing base of
$1,250,000. The Note Payable Agreement was amended and restated on October 29, 2011 and then second amended and restated on October 29, 2012. Borrowings on the Note
Payable are secured by all of Mowood’s assets. Interest accrues at LIBOR, plus 4 percent (4.209 percent at November 30, 2012), is payable monthly, with all outstanding
principal and accrued interest payable on the termination date of October 29, 2013. As of November 30, 2012 the outstanding borrowings under this Note Payable Agreement
totaled $120,000. The Note Payable Agreement contains various restrictive covenants, with the most significant relating to minimum consolidated fixed charge ratio, the
incidence of additional indebtedness, member distributions, extension of guaranties, future investments in other subsidiaries and change in ownership. Mowood was in
compliance with the various covenants of the Note Payable Agreement as of November 30, 2012.

12. Warrants
At November 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company had 945,594 warrants issued and outstanding. The warrants were issued to stockholders that invested in the Company’s initial
private placements and became exercisable on February 7, 2007 (the closing date of the Company’s initial public offering of common shares), subject to a lock-up period with
respect to the underlying common shares. As of November 30, 2012, each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one common share at the exercise price of $11.41 per common
share. Warrants were issued as separate instruments from the common shares and are permitted to be transferred independently from the common shares. The warrants have no
voting rights and the common shares underlying the unexercised warrants have no voting rights until such common shares are received upon exercise of the warrants. All
warrants expire on February 6, 2014.

13. Earnings Per Share
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:
 

   For the Years Ended  

   
November 30,

2012    
November 30,

2011    
November 30,

2010  
Net income   $12,348,721    $2,922,143    $14,666,874  
Basic and diluted weighted average shares    9,182,425     9,159,809     9,107,070  
Basic and diluted earnings per share   $ 1.34    $ 0.32    $ 1.61  
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(1) Warrants to purchase shares of common stock were outstanding during the periods reflected in the table above, but were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share because the warrants’ exercise price was greater than the average market value of the common shares and, therefore, the effect would be anti-dilutive.

The changes in earnings per share for the year ended November 30, 2012 to the year ended November 30, 2011, reflected the weighted average change in overall net income
upon the consolidation of Mowood financial information and lease operating and securities transactions.

14. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
 

   For the Fiscal Quarter Ended  

   
February 28,

2012   
May 31,

2012   
August 31,

2012   
November 30,

2012  
Sales revenue   $ 2,437,310   $ 1,439,958   $ 1,927,626   $2,216,128  
Lease income    638,244    638,244    638,244    638,243  

  

Total revenue    3,075,554    2,078,202    2,565,870    2,854,371  
  

Cost of sales    2,004,672    1,031,114    1,381,161    1,661,155  
Management fees, net of expense reimbursements    247,381    254,965    298,051    246,399  
All other expenses    599,865    892,759    1,082,911    1,117,268  

  

Total expenses    2,851,918    2,178,838    2,762,123    3,024,822  
  

Income (loss) from operations, before income taxes    223,636    (100,636)   (196,253)   (170,451) 
  

Realized and unrealized gain on securities transactions, before income taxes    8,931,466    3,237,325    8,492,502    (479,416) 
Distributions and income from investments, net    85,262    55,462    (502,176)   82,057  
Interest Expense    (27,409)   (25,229)   (16,780)   (11,705) 

  

Total other income (loss) and expense, net, before income taxes    8,989,319    3,267,558    7,973,546    (409,064) 
  

Income (loss) before income taxes    9,212,955    3,166,922    7,777,293    (579,515) 
  

Current and deferred tax expense, net    (3,465,914)   (1,190,162)   (2,788,785)   215,927  
  

Net income   $ 5,747,041   $ 1,976,760   $ 4,988,508   $ (363,588) 
  

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share   $ 0.63   $ 0.21   $ 0.54   $ (.04) 
  

 
   For the Fiscal Quarter Ended  

   
February 28,

2011   
May 31,

2011   
August 31,

2011   
November 30,

2011  
Sales revenue   $ —     $ —     $ —     $ 2,161,723  
Lease income    —      —      425,496    638,244  

  

Total revenue    —      —      425,496    2,799,967  
  

Cost of sales    —      —      —      1,689,374  
Management fees, net of expense reimbursements    234,680    241,193    248,367    243,923  
All other expenses    153,843    157,012    944,404    746,580  

  

Total expenses    388,523    398,205    1,192,771    2,679,877  
  

Income (loss) from operations, before income taxes    (388,523)   (398,205)   (767,275)   120,090  
  

Realized and unrealized gain (loss) on securities transactions, before income taxes    677,745    4,441,071    2,043,019    (2,578,087) 
Distributions and income from investments, net    561,786    253,396    (189,001)   25,492  
Other income    —      40,000    —      —    
Interest Expense    —      —      (14,064)   (22,444) 

  

Total other income (loss) and expense, net, before income taxes    1,239,531    4,734,467    1,839,954    (2,575,039) 
  

Income before Income Taxes    851,008    4,336,262    1,072,679    (2,454,949) 
  

Current and deferred tax benefit (expense), net    262,262    (1,553,250)   (482,040)   890,171  
  

Net income (loss)   $1,113,270   $ 2,783,012   $ 590,639   $(1,564,778) 
  

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share   $ 0.12   $ 0.30   $ 0.07   $ (0.17) 
  

 
(1) Results of operations for the fiscal quarter ended November 30, 2011 reflect the consolidation of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Mowood, LLC, effective

September 21, 2011.
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15. Subsequent Events
Name Change
On November 30, 2012, Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation filed Articles of Amendment with the State Department of Assessments and Taxation of Maryland to change
its name to CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc. effective as of December 3, 2012.

Asset Acquisition
On December 20, 2012, our subsidiary, Pinedale Corridor, LP (“Pinedale LP”), closed on a Purchase and Sale Agreement with an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Ultra
Petroleum Corp. (NYSE: UPL) (“Ultra Petroleum”). Pinedale LP acquired a system of gathering, storage and pipeline facilities (the “Liquids Gathering System” or “LGS”),
with associated real property rights in the Pinedale Anticline in Wyoming (the “Acquisition”) for $205 million in cash and certain investment securities having an approximate
market value of $23.0 million.

Lease Agreement
Pinedale LP entered into a customized long-term triple net Lease Agreement on December 20, 2012, relating to the use of the LGS (the “Lease Agreement”) with Ultra
Wyoming LGS, LLC, another indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Ultra Petroleum (“Ultra Newco”). Ultra Newco will utilize the LGS to gather and transport a commingled
stream of oil, natural gas and water, then further using the LGS to separate this stream into its separate components. Ultra Newco’s obligations under the Lease Agreement will
be guaranteed by Ultra Petroleum and Ultra Petroleum’s operating subsidiary, Ultra Resources, Inc. (“Ultra Resources”), pursuant to the terms of a Parent Guaranty (the
“Guaranty”). Annual rent for the initial term under the Lease Agreement will be a minimum of $20 million (as adjusted annually for changes based on the Consumer Price
Index (“CPI”)) and a maximum of $27.5 million, with the exact rental amount determined the actual volume of the components handled by the LGS, subject to Pinedale LP not
being in default under the Lease Agreement.

Subscription Agreement
On December 14, 2012, Pinedale LP and Pinedale GP, Inc., a newly formed subsidiary of the Company and the general partner of Pinedale LP (“Pinedale GP”), entered into a
Subscription Agreement with Ross Avenue Investments, LLC, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Prudential Financial, Inc. (collectively “Prudential”), pursuant to which
Prudential agreed to fund a portion of the Acquisition by investing $30 million in cash in Pinedale LP. Pinedale GP funded a portion of the Acquisition by contributing
approximately $108.31 million in cash and certain equity securities to Pinedale LP. The investments contemplated by the Subscription Agreement closed on December 20,
2012. Prudential holds a limited partner interest in Pinedale LP, and Pinedale GP holds a general partner interest. Prudential holds 18.95% of the economic interest in Pinedale
LP, and Pinedale GP holds approximately 81.05% of the economic interest.

Underwriting Agreement
On December 18, 2012 we closed a follow on public offering of 13,000,000 shares of common stock, raising approximately $78 million in gross proceeds at $6.00 per share
(net proceeds of approximately $73.6 million after underwriters’ discount). On December 24, 2012 we closed the sale of an additional 1,950,000 shares of common stock at
$6.00 per share, less the same underwriting discount, for total net proceeds of $11.04 million. The additional shares were sold pursuant to an over-allotment option granted to the
underwriters of the Company’s public offering of 13,000,000 shares. Approximately $73.6 million of the net proceeds from this offering were used to finance the Acquisition.

Credit Agreement
On December 20, 2012, Pinedale LP closed on a $70 million secured term credit facility with KeyBank National Association (“KeyBank”) serving as a lender and the
administrative agent on behalf of other lenders participating in the credit facility. Funding of the credit facility was conditioned on our contribution of the proceeds of the public
offering to Pinedale LP and the receipt by Pinedale LP of the $30,000,000 co-investment funds from Prudential. Outstanding balances under the credit facility will generally
accrue interest at a variable annual rate equal to LIBOR plus 3.25%. The credit facility will remain in effect through December 2015, with an option to extend through
December 2016. The credit facility will be secured by the LGS.
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Pursuant to the credit facility, in January of 2013, the Company executed interested rate swap derivatives. Interest rate swaps involved the receipt of variable rate amounts from
a counterparty in exchange for the Company making fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying notional amount.

Margin Loan Facility Agreement
On November 30, 2011, the Company entered into a 180-day rolling evergreen Margin Loan Facility Agreement (“Margin Loan Agreement”) with Bank of America, N.A. In
December of 2012, the assets which secured this facility were sold, and as a result, this Margin Loan Agreement was terminated effective December 20, 2012.

Distributions
On February 5, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a first quarter distribution of $0.125 per share to be paid on March 19, 2013 to stockholders of record on
March 8, 2013.

Change in Fiscal Year End
On February 5, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a change in the Company’s fiscal year end from November 30 to December 31. This change to the
calendar year reporting cycle began January 1, 2013. As a result of the change, the Company will be reporting a December 2012 fiscal month transition period, which will be
separately reported in the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the calendar quarter ending March 31, 2013 and in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the calendar year ending December 31, 2013.
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 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)
Officers and Directors as of December 1, 2012
 

Name   CORR Position
Conrad S. Ciccotello   Director
John R. Graham   Director
Charles E. Heath   Director
Richard C. Green   Director and Chairman of the Board
David J. Schulte   Director and Chief Executive Officer/President
Rebecca M. Sandring   Chief Accounting Officer/Treasurer/Secretary
Rachel A. Stroer   Assistant Secretary

Director and Officer Compensation
The Company does not compensate any of its directors who are “interested persons” (as defined in Section 2 (a) (19) of the 1940 Act) or any of its officers. For the year ended
November 30, 2012, the aggregate compensation paid by the Company to the independent directors was $84,000. The Company did not pay any special compensation to any of
its directors or officers.

Forward-Looking Statements
This report contains “forward-looking statements.” By their nature, all forward-looking statements involve risk and uncertainties, and actual results could differ materially from
those contemplated by the forward-looking statements.

Certifications
The Company’s Chief Executive Officer submitted to the New York Stock Exchange the annual CEO certification as required by Section 303A.12(a) of the NYSE Listed
Company Manual.

The Company has filed with the SEC the certification of its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Proxy Voting Policies
A description of the policies and procedures that the Company uses to determine how to vote proxies relating to portfolio securities owned by the Company is available to
stockholders (i) without charge, upon request by calling the Company at (913) 981-1020 or toll-free at (877) 699-2677 and on the Company’s Web site at
http://corenergy.corridortrust.com; and (ii) on the SEC’s Web site at www.sec.gov.

Privacy Policy
The Company is committed to maintaining the privacy of its stockholders and safeguarding their non-public personal information. The following information is provided to help
you understand what personal information the Company collects, how the Company protects that information and why, in certain cases, the Company may share information
with select other parties.

Generally, the Company does not receive any non-public personal information relating to its stockholders, although certain non-public personal information of its stockholders
may become available to the Company. The Company does not disclose any non-public personal information about its stockholders or a former stockholder to anyone, except as
required by law or as is necessary in order to service stockholder accounts (for example, to a transfer agent).

The Company restricts access to non-public personal information about its stockholders to employees of its Adviser with a legitimate business need for the information. The
Company maintains physical, electronic and procedural safeguards designed to protect the non-public personal information of its stockholders.

Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan
If a stockholder’s shares of common stock (“common shares”) of the Company are registered directly with the Company or with a brokerage firm that participates in the
Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan (the “Plan”) through the facilities of the Depository Trust Company and such stockholder’s account is coded dividend reinvestment by
such brokerage firm, all distributions are automatically reinvested for stockholders by the Plan Agent, Computershare Trust Company, Inc. (the “Agent”) in additional common
shares (unless a stockholder is ineligible or elects otherwise).
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The Company will use primarily newly-issued shares of the Company’s common stock to implement the Plan, whether its shares are trading at a premium or discount to net
asset value (“NAV”). However, the Company reserves the right to instruct the Agent to purchase shares in the open market in connection with the Company’s obligations under
the Plan. The number of newly issued shares will be determined by dividing the total dollar amount of the distribution payable to the participant by the closing price per share of
the Company’s common stock on the distribution payment date, or the average of the reported bid and asked prices if no sale is reported for that day. If distributions are
reinvested in shares purchased on the open market, then the number of shares received by a stockholder shall be determined by dividing the total dollar amount of the
distribution payable to such stockholder by the weighted average price per share (including brokerage commissions and other related costs) for all shares purchased by the
Agent on the open-market in connection with such distribution. Such open-market purchases will be made by the Agent as soon as practicable, but in no event more than 30 days
after the distribution payment date.

There will be no brokerage charges with respect to shares issued directly by us as a result of distributions payable either in shares or in cash. However, each participant will pay
a pro rata share of brokerage commissions incurred with respect to the Plan Agent’s open-market purchases in connection with the reinvestment of distributions. If a participant
elects to have the Plan Agent sell part or all of his or her common shares and remit the proceeds, such participant will be charged his or her pro rata share of brokerage
commissions on the shares sold plus a $15.00 transaction fee. The automatic reinvestment of distributions will not relieve participants of any federal, state or local income tax
that may be payable (or required to be withheld) on such distributions.

Participation in the Plan is completely voluntary and may be terminated at any time without penalty by giving notice in writing to the Agent at the address set forth below, or by
contacting the Agent as set forth below; such termination will be effective with respect to a particular distribution if notice is received prior to the record date for such
distribution.

Additional information about the Plan may be obtained by writing to Computershare Trust Company, N.A., P.O. Box 43078, Providence, Rhode Island 02940-3078, by
contacting them by phone at (800) 426-5523, or by visiting their Web site at www.computershare.com.
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CORENERGY INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST, INC.

 SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 

CORENERGY INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST, INC.
 (Registrant)

By:  /s/ Rebecca M. Sandring
 Rebecca M. Sandring
 Chief Accounting Officer
 (Principal Accounting Officer)

 February 13, 2013

By:  /s/ David J. Schulte
 David J. Schulte
 Chief Executive Officer and Director
 (Principal Executive Officer)

 February 13, 2013

By:  /s/ Richard C. Green

 
Richard C. Green
Chairman of the Board

 February 13, 2013

By:  /s/ Conrad S. Ciccotello

 
Conrad S. Ciccotello
Director

 February 13, 2013



Exhibit 10.3(b)

AMENDED ADVISORY AGREEMENT

This Amended Advisory Agreement (the “Agreement”) is dated as of December 21, 2012 (the “Effective Date”) and is entered into by and among CorEnergy
Infrastructure Trust, Inc. (formerly Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation), a Maryland corporation (the “Company”), Corridor InfraTrust Management, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company (the “Manager”), and Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company (the “Advisor”). The Company and the Manager have
entered into a separate agreement pursuant to which the Manager shall provide management and other services to the Company (the “Management Agreement”).
 

1. Appointment of the Advisor. The Company appoints the Advisor to provide securities focused investment management services (the “Designated Advisory Services”) for
the benefit of the Company.

 

2. Designated Advisory Services. The Designated Advisory Services shall include: (i) providing the Manager as may be reasonably requested with certain of Advisor’s
existing research or analysis as may be helpful to Manager’s analysis of investment opportunities for the Company; and (ii) subject to the overall supervision and review of
the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”), furnishing continuously a securities portfolio liquidation program for the Company, consistent with the investment
objective and policies of the Company, with respect to the liquidation of the following securities owned by the Company, or its wholly-owned subsidiary, as of the
Effective Date: the equity securities of Lightfoot Capital Partners LP and Lightfoot Capital Partners GP LLC (“Lightfoot”), VantaCore Partners LP (“VantaCore”) and
common units of NGL Energy Partners, LP (the “Securities Portfolio”). The Advisor will determine from time to time how and when to sell the securities constituting the
securities portfolio, subject always to the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, and any registration statement of the Company under the
Securities Act of 1933 (the “1933 Act”) covering the Company’s shares, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”), as any of the same
may be amended from time to time, and to the investment objectives of the Company, as each of the same shall be from time to time in effect, and subject, further, to such
policies and instructions as the Board may from time to time establish. To carry out such determinations, the Advisor will exercise full discretion and act for the Company
in the same manner and with the same force and effect as the Company itself might or could do with respect to all other things necessary or incidental to the furtherance or
conduct of any securities sales transactions. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Advisor shall, during the term and subject to the provisions of this
Agreement: (i) advise as to the composition of the securities portfolio of the Company, the nature and timing of the changes therein and the manner of implementing such
changes; (ii) assist Manager in the performance of due diligence on existing securities portfolio companies and (iii) provide the Manager its quarterly research reports or
other updates and related information as the Manager may, from time to time, reasonably request.



3. Possession of Assets. The Advisor shall not at any time be the custodian of, and shall have no access to, either funds or securities of the Company, except to the extent
necessary for it to perform its obligations pursuant to this Agreement. The Advisor will not have the authority to place orders for the execution of transactions involving the
assets of the Company, other than the securities held by the Company, through any brokers, dealers, or banks. The Advisor shall have no authority to commit the Company
to any contract, liability, or other obligation.

 

4. Fees and Expenses.
Commencing on the Effective Date, the Manager shall pay to the Advisor, for the Designated Advisory Services, a management fee in an amount equal to at least
$100,000 per year (the “Base Fee”), paid in quarterly installments of at least $25,000 each fiscal quarter of the Company. As part of the Base Fee, the Manager shall
pay to the Advisor an incremental amount at an annual rate of (i) $50,000 per year if the Company’s Invested Capital doubles, (ii) $75,000 per year if the
Company’s Invested Capital triples and (iii) $100,000 per year if the Company’s Invested Capital quadruples, as of the end of any fiscal quarter as compared to the
Company’s Invested Capital immediately prior to the Effective Date. The term “Invested Capital” means the aggregate historical cost of the assets of the Company
invested, directly or indirectly, in equity interests in or loans secured by real estate and personal property owned in connection with such real estate (including
acquisition related costs and acquisition costs that may be allocated to intangibles or are unallocated), all before reserves for depreciation, amortization, impairment
charges or bad debts or other similar noncash reserves. The Base Fee for each fiscal quarter shall be paid within thirty days following the end of such fiscal quarter.
In case of the termination of this Agreement during any fiscal quarter, the Base Fee for that quarter shall be reduced proportionately on the basis of the number of
calendar days in that quarter during which this Agreement is in effect. In addition to payment of the Base Fee, the Advisor shall be reimbursed by the Manager on a
quarterly basis for all out-of-pocket expenses reasonably incurred by the Advisor in providing the Designated Advisory Services. The Advisor shall submit to the
Manager an itemized list within fifteen days after the end of each fiscal quarter reflecting the items as to which the Advisor anticipates reimbursement. Unless any
request for reimbursement is disputed by the Manager in good faith, the Manager shall reimburse the Advisor for all such itemized expenses within fifteen days after
the receipt by the Manager of the list of such expenses. In the event of a dispute, the parties shall negotiate in good faith to resolve such dispute promptly.

 

5. Representations and Warranties.
 

 (a) Each of the Advisor and the Manager represents and warrants to the other and to the Company that:
 

 (i) This Agreement constitutes a valid and binding obligation of such party enforceable against such party in accordance with its terms.
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 (ii) This Agreement does not conflict with or result in a violation of default under any material agreement to which such party is subject.
 

 (b) The Advisor represents and warrants to the Manager and to the Company that:
 

 (i) The Advisor has delivered to the Manager a copy of Part II of the Advisor’s Form ADV, as amended, which is current as of the date of this Agreement.
 

 (ii) The Advisor is a registered investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (the “Advisers Act”).
 

 (c) The Manager represents and warrants to the Advisor that:
 

 (i) The Manager has delivered to the Company a copy of Part II of the Advisor’s Form ADV, as amended, as provided to the Manager by the Advisor.
 

 (ii) The Manager has delivered to the Advisor a copy of the Management Agreement.
 

6. Agreements with Clients. The Advisor acknowledges that the Manager has entered into the Management Agreement, a copy of which was received and reviewed by the
Advisor. In performing its services hereunder, the Advisor agrees, subject to the limitations set forth herein, to be bound by, and comply with, all of the terms, conditions
and provisions of the Management Agreement that are binding on the Manager and that could relate in any way to the Designated Advisory Services.

 

7. Indemnification.
 

 

(a) The Manager shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Advisor and the Advisor’s members, managers, affiliates, employees, agents, successors and assigns
(collectively, the “Advisor Indemnitees”) and the Company and the Company’s stockholders, directors, officers, affiliates, employees, agents, successors and
assigns (collectively, the “Company Indemnitees”) from and against any and all claims, suits, actions, losses, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses (including, but
not limited to, costs of investigation and reasonable attorneys’ fees) (collectively “claims”) incurred by any of the Advisor Indemnitees or the Company
Indemnitees based upon, arising out of, attributable to or resulting from the Manager’s failure to comply with any term, condition or provision of this Agreement,
the conduct of the business of the Company or the financing thereof, or the Advisor’s provision of the Designated Advisory Services (except to the extent the
Manger shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Advisor pursuant to Section 7(b) of this Agreement).

 

 (b) The Advisor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Manager and the Manager’s members, managers, affiliates, employees, agents, successors and assigns
(collectively, the “Manager Indemnitees”) and the Company Indemnities
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from and against any and all claims incurred by any of the Manager Indemnitees or the Company Indemnitees based upon, arising out of, attributable to or resulting
from (i) the Advisor’s gross negligence, malfeasance or violation of applicable law in the performance of its services hereunder, or (ii) the Advisor’s failure to
comply with any term, condition or provision of this Agreement.

 

 

(c) In the event indemnification is not available for any claim under this Section 7, the Manager and the Advisor will contribute to such claim based on the relative fault
and benefit of such parties. The Manager hereby indemnifies and agrees to hold harmless the Company from any obligation to pay the Advisor or reimburse the
Advisor for any fees or expenses incurred by the Advisor in providing services to or for the benefit of the Company. The provisions of this Section 7 and the party’s
obligations hereunder shall survive the termination of the term of this Agreement.

 

8. Use of Name. The Manager may use the Advisor’s name as may be required by applicable regulations and disclosure requirements, and may use the Advisor’s name and
the “Tortoise” logo for certain marketing purposes from time to time as approved by the Advisor.

 

9. Release. The Advisor acknowledges and agrees that all obligations owed to it hereunder are obligations of the Manager, and the Advisor hereby releases and forever
discharges the Company from any and all liabilities, claims, charges, and expenses arising hereunder.

 

10. Term of Agreement; Termination. This Agreement shall continue in effect until December 31, 2013 and, except as provided below, shall be continued from year to year
thereafter, to the extent the Manager continues to serve as the Manager to the Company. This Agreement shall automatically terminate (and no further fees shall be payable
hereunder) at such point as the Advisor has liquidated the entire Securities Portfolio and is thus no longer providing the Designated Advisory Services. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, so long as the Management Agreement remains in place, the Advisor shall be entitled to receive the management fee described in Section 4. The obligations
of the Advisor to provide the Designated Advisory Services to the Company may also be terminated at any time, without the payment of any penalty, by the Company on
not more than 60 days’ written notice to the Advisor, or by the Advisor on not more than 60 days’ written notice to the Company and the Manager. This Agreement shall
automatically terminate (and no further fees shall be payable hereunder) in the event of its assignment. The term “assignment” for purposes of this paragraph having the
meaning defined in Section 202(a)(1) of the Advisers Act.

 

11. Miscellaneous.
 

 (a) Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement must be in writing and shall be effective when delivered personally (or by facsimile
transmission), to the parties at their respective address set forth below:
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If to the Manager or the Company:
Corridor InfraTrust Management, LLC
4200 W. 115th Street, Suite 210
Leawood, Kansas 66211
Fax No.: (913) 387-2791
Attention: Richard C. Green

If to the Advisor:
Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C.
11550 Ash Street, Suite 300
Leawood, Kansas 66211
Fax No.: (913) 981-1021
Attention: Terry Matlack

or to such other address as a party may designate by delivery of notice as set for the above.
 

 (b) This Agreement may not be amended or changed except by an instrument in writing executed by each of the parties to this Agreement. It shall be construed in
accordance with, and any dispute arising in connection herewith shall be governed by, the laws of the State of Delaware.

 

 (c) This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when taken together shall constitute an original.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their representatives thereunto duly authorized.
 

CORENERGY INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST, INC.

By:  /s/ David J. Schulte
Name:  David J. Schulte
Title:  Chief Executive Officer and President

CORRIDOR INFRATRUST MANAGEMENT, LLC

By:  /s/ Richard C. Green, Jr.
Name:  Richard C. Green, Jr.
Title:  Managing Director

TORTOISE CAPITAL ADVISORS, L.L.C.

By:  /s/ Terry Matlack
Name:  Terry Matlack
Title:  Managing Director
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Exhibit 10.7(b)

AMENDMENT AND ASSIGNMENT

THIS AMENDMENT AND ASSIGNMENT (this “Amendment and Assignment”) dated as of August 7, 2012, is by and among Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C.
(“Tortoise”), Corridor InfraTrust Management, LLC (“Corridor”), and Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation (“TTO”).

WHEREAS, Tortoise and TTO are parties to a Second Amended Administration Agreement dated December 1, 2011 (the “Agreement”), whereby Tortoise provides
certain administrative services to TTO in exchange for a fee; and

WHEREAS, Corridor has entered into a Management Agreement with TTO requiring Corridor to perform or cause to be performed certain duties and responsibilities,
and Corridor recommended that TTO enter into the Agreement with Tortoise for Tortoise to assume certain of the administrative duties and responsibilities described in the
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Tortoise desires to assign its rights and obligations under the Agreement to Corridor; and

WHEREAS, Tortoise, Corridor and TTO desire to enter into this Amendment and Assignment, which is effective as of August 7, 2012 (the “Effective Date”).

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:
1. Tortoise hereby assigns to Corridor all of its rights, duties and responsibilities under the Agreement, and Corridor hereby accepts such assignment and agrees to perform all
duties and responsibilities of Tortoise as described in the Agreement, as the same is being amended by this Amendment and Assignment.
2. TTO hereby consents to the assignment of the Agreement from Tortoise to Corridor as provided herein and agrees that such consent fully satisfies all conditions required for
TTO’s consent under the terms of and in accordance with the Agreement. TTO further agrees that Tortoise shall be released from all future obligations arising under the
Agreement from and after the Effective Date, and Corridor shall assume responsibility for all future obligations under the Agreement arising from and after the Effective Date
(but not any obligations arising prior to the Effective Date).
3. The Agreement is hereby amended, creating the Third Amended Administration Agreement dated as of August 7, 2012, by deleting the second sentence of the second
paragraph of the Preamble, by changing the effective date of the Agreement to August 7, 2012, and by deleting Item 3 of the Agreement, renumbering the remaining items
sequentially and amending the references to item numbers to reflect the renumbered item number. In addition, the paragraph under Item 2 of the Agreement shall be amended to
read as follows:



The Administrator agrees to maintain and keep all books, accounts and other records of the Corporation that relate to activities performed by the administrator hereunder.
The Administrator agrees that all records which it maintains for the Corporation shall at all times remain the property of the Corporation, shall be readily accessible during
normal business hours, and shall be promptly surrendered upon the termination of the Agreement or otherwise on written request. Records shall be surrendered in usable
machine-readable form. The Administrator shall have the right to retain copies of such records subject to observance of its confidentiality obligations under this
Agreement.

4. All of the references in the Agreement to Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C. are replaced by Corridor.
5. All of the references in the Agreement to net asset value are replaced by book value.
6. The parties agree that, except as otherwise set forth herein, all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect as the Third Amended
Administration Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed and delivered this Agreement as of the date first above written.
 
CORRIDOR INFRATRUST MANAGEMENT, LLC

By:  /s/ Richard C. Green, Jr.

 
Richard C. Green, Jr.
Managing Director

TORTOISE CAPITAL ADVISORS, L.L.C.

By:  /s/ Terry Matlack
 Terry Matlack, Manager

TORTOISE CAPITAL RESOURCES CORPORATION

By:  /s/ David J. Schulte
 David J. Schulte
 Chief Executive Officer and President
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CORENERGY INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST, INC.

CODE OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS CONDUCT



CODE OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS CONDUCT
(as adopted on November 13, 2006 and modified on November 12, 2012)

TABLE OF CONTENTS
 
   Page 

Introduction    1  

Purpose of the Code    1  

Conflicts of Interest    1  

Corporate Opportunities    2  

Public Disclosure    2  

Confidentiality    2  

Fair Dealing    2  

Protection and Proper Use of Company Assets    3  

Compliance with Applicable Laws, Rules and Regulations    3  

Accuracy of Company Records    3  

Retaining Business Communications    3  

Open Door Policy    3  

Sanctions for Code Violations    4  

Waivers of the Code    4  



CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc.
Code Of Business Conduct

Introduction

CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc. (the “Company”) is committed to the highest ethical standards and to conducting our business with the highest level of integrity.

Each of us at the Company, including management and members of our Board of Directors, is responsible for maintaining integrity and for complying with the policies
contained in this Code. If you have a question or concern about what is proper conduct for you or anyone else, please discuss the question with any member of management, or
follow the procedures outlined in this Code.

Purpose of the Code

This Code is intended to:
 

 • ensure that ethical standards are maintained;
 

 • help you recognize ethical issues and take the appropriate steps to resolve these issues;
 

 • assist you in reporting any unethical or illegal conduct; and
 

 • reaffirm our commitment to a culture within our company that values honesty and accountability.

All personnel will acknowledge annually in writing that they have received a copy of this Code, read it, and understand that the Code contains the Company’s
expectations regarding conduct of its personnel.

Conflicts of Interest

You must avoid any conflict, or the appearance of a conflict, between your personal interests and the interests of the Company. A conflict exists when your personal
interest interferes with the interests of the Company as a whole, or when you take actions or have interests that may make it difficult for you to perform your job objectively and
effectively. For example, a conflict of interest may exist if:
 

 • you cause the Company to provide you or a member of your family improper personal benefit;
 

 • the Company invests in companies affiliated with you or a member of your family; or
 

 • you use any nonpublic information about the Company, our affiliates, our lenders, our clients, or our other business partners for your personal gain, or the gain of a
member of your family.
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You must disclose conflicts of interest, or actions or relationships that might give rise to a conflict, to the Secretary of the Company. In the event that the Secretary of the
Company is involved in the action or relationship giving rise to the conflict of interest, you should disclose the conflict to a member of senior management.

Corporate Opportunities

Each of us has a duty to advance the interests of the Company. Therefore, you may not:
 

 • take for yourself personally opportunities, including investment opportunities, discovered through the use of your position with the Company, or through the use of
the Company’s property or information;

 

 • use the Company’s property, information, or position for your personal gain or the gain of a family member; or
 

 • compete, or prepare to compete, with the Company.

Public Disclosure

The Company is committed to a policy of fair, accurate, timely, and clear disclosure to shareholders of material information regarding our business. This policy extends
to our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and to our other public communications. All individuals involved in our regulatory reporting process and in
preparing and making public communications regarding our business must take reasonable steps to comply with this policy, including the steps described in our Policy on
Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Internal Controls.

Confidentiality

You must not disclose confidential information regarding the Company, our affiliates, our lenders, our portfolio holdings, our clients, our shareholders, or our other
business partners, unless you are informed by the Secretary of the Company that such disclosure is authorized or required by law. Confidential information includes all non-
public information that might be harmful to, or useful to the competitors of, the Company, our affiliates, our lenders, our portfolio holdings, our clients, or our other business
partners.

Fair Dealing

You must endeavor to deal ethically with companies or individuals with whom we do business or come into contact, including fellow personnel of the Company.
Unethical conduct may include:
 

 • manipulation;
 

 • concealment;
 

 • abuse of privileged information; or
 • misrepresentation of material facts.
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Protection and Proper Use of Company Assets

The Company’s assets are to be used only for legitimate business purposes. You should protect the Company’s assets and ensure that they are used efficiently.

Incidental personal use of telephones, fax machines, copy machines, personal computers and similar equipment is generally allowed if there is no significant added cost
to the Company, it does not interfere with your work duties, and is not related to an illegal activity or to any outside business.

Compliance with Applicable Laws, Rules and Regulations

Each of us has a duty to comply with the laws, rules and regulations that apply to our business. Please talk to the Secretary of the Company if you have any questions
about how to comply with these laws, rules and regulations.

Accuracy of Company Records

The Company requires honest and accurate recording and reporting of information in order to make responsible business decisions. This includes such data as financial
records and personnel records.

Financial books, records and accounts must accurately reflect transactions and events, and conform both to required accounting principles and to the Company’s system
of internal controls.

Retaining Business Communications

The law requires us to maintain certain types of corporate records, usually for specified periods of time. The Company has established retention policies. The Company
expects all personnel to comply with our published records retention policies. If personnel believe, or the Company informs you, that the Company’s records are relevant to
litigation, or potential litigation, then all personnel must preserve those records until the Company determines the records are no longer needed. If personnel have any questions
about the records retention policy, please contact the Secretary of the Company.

Open Door Policy

All of us have the duty to help uphold this Code and to maintain a culture at the Company that values honest and ethical behavior. You should report suspected
violations of applicable laws, rules, regulations, or the Code to the Secretary of the Company. If for any reason you feel uncomfortable reporting the suspected violation to the
Secretary of the Company, or are still concerned after making a report to the Secretary of the Company, you may contact any other member of senior management. If after
contacting members of management, you do not believe that your concern has been appropriately addressed you may submit, on a confidential, anonymous basis if you so
desire, comments by setting forth such comments in writing and forwarding them to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, in care of the Secretary of the Company. Such
comments should be provided in a sealed envelope to be labeled with a legend: “To be opened by the Audit Committee only.” Personnel may deposit such envelope in the
Company’s internal mail system or deliver it by hand to the Secretary of the Company, who will deliver it unopened to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. If you would
like to discuss a matter with the Audit Committee, you should indicate this in the submission and include a telephone number at which you may be contacted if the Audit
Committee deems it appropriate. Retaliation or retribution for reporting suspected violations is prohibited.
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Sanctions for Code Violations

Violations of the Code will result in appropriate corrective action, up to and including dismissal. If the violation involves potentially criminal activity, the individual or
individuals in question may be reported, as warranted, to the appropriate authorities.

Waivers of the Code

Waivers of this Code, if any, will be promptly disclosed to shareholders as required by law. This Code incorporates the provisions relating to disclosure and/or approval
of waivers of the Code required by the New York Stock Exchange, or any other national securities exchange or national securities association on which the Company’s
securities trade.
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-176944) of CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc. and in the related Prospectus of
our reports dated February 13, 2012, with respect to the consolidated financial statements CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc., and the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting of CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended November 30, 2012.

/s/Ernst & Young LLP

February 13, 2013
Kansas City, MO



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, David J. Schulte, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this Annual report on Form 10-K of CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

 
Date: February 13, 2013     /s/ David J. Schulte

    David J. Schulte
    Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Rebecca M. Sandring, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this Annual report on Form 10-K of CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

 
Date: February 13, 2013     /s/ Rebecca M. Sandring

    Rebecca M. Sandring
    Chief Accounting Officer/Treasurer



Exhibit 32.1
 
Exhibit 32.1   SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION   

Pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2001, the undersigned officers of CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc. (the
“Company”), hereby certify that the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2012, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
hereof (the “Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that the
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
/s/ David J. Schulte
David J. Schulte
Chief Executive Officer
Date: February 13, 2013

/s/ Rebecca M. Sandring
Rebecca M. Sandring
Chief Accounting Officer, Treasurer
Date: February 13, 2013

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is not being filed as part of this report. A signed original of this written statement
required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its
staff upon request.
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